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In deepest gratitude for His Majesty King

Bhumibol  Adulyadej ’s benevolence,

the SEC follows in His Majesty’s footsteps

and aspirations by living up to His Majesty’s

Philosophy of Sufficiency Economy to

develop a sustainable capital market for

the benefits and well-being of the public.   
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Message from the Chairman

         Global conditions are rapidly evolving and increasingly
interconnected, as exemplified by the constant introduction
of new advanced technologies. Meanwhile, Thailand is facing
the challenge of strategic limitations, and thus needs to
expedite the development of strategic infrastructures,
including those in the financial sector, to strengthen
competitiveness and promote economic and social prosperity,
stability, and sustainability.
         Given such circumstances, the National Economic
and Social Development Plan gives more emphasis on
(1) raising competitiveness and efficiency of the financial
sector by, mostly but not exclusively, improving the regulatory
framework, the service quality and fairness for consumers
and private sectors, and (2) ensuring oversight of risks on
market interconnectivity and capital flows. The framework
also accommodates the adoption of new financial technologies
to boost efficiency, and enable businesses and the public to
access financial products conveniently and cost-effectively. 
         The SEC’s supervisory direction and market
development efforts align with the National Development
Plan, with a special emphasis on infrastructural issues.
For example:      
         (1) Promoting the Thai capital market as an
attractive venue for fund mobilization by local and
regional businesses. This involves building market
confidence through issuer oversight, trading activity
surveillance, and effective enforcement. The enactment

     The SEC’s supervisory direction
and market development efforts
align with the National Development
Plan, with a special emphasis on
infrastructural issues.
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of the Amendment to the Securities and Exchange Act
of 1992, which came into force in December 2016, is a
significant milestone in further clarifying the types of offences
and increasing enforcement measures to enhance efficiency
and responsiveness in line with international standards.
The amended Law also supports market linkage and
financial product innovations.
         Adherence to international standards will also increase
the appeal of the Thai capital market.  As such, the SEC
has been collaborating with stakeholders and other regulatory
agencies to ensure the Thai financial sector is ready for
the Financial Sector Assessment Program (FSAP),
to be administered by the World Bank and the International
Monetary Fund towards the end of 2018.
         Regarding fund mobilization for large-scale infrastructure
projects, the SEC is supporting the government policy to
create Thailand Future Fund, which will allow the government
to tap the capital market while simultaneously introducing
another quality investment product into the market.
         (2) Use of technology to drive financial innovation
increases inclusive market accessibility at reasonable
costs. For example, investors can better obtain important
information necessary for investment decision-making;
new market participants will have platforms for developing
innovative services and financial products; businesses can
explore alternative fund mobilization channels such as
equity crowdfunding; and technology can lower the costs
of regulatory compliance for businesses. We also encourage
market participants to strengthen their information technology
systems to prevent potential threats from cyber attacks.
         (3) Creation of a conducive environment for
financial institutions and businesses to offer products
and services that put investors first. Professionalism of
sales staff is vital not only for providing reliable investment
information, but also ensuring proper investor protection.
We have been working to demonstrate how stakeholders
could adopt good governance principles for the benefit of
their own business and recommended more emphasis
on self-discipline than compulsory compliance. 

         (4) Development of tools for investors include
supplying useful knowledge and tips to investors through
various channels to improve their decision-making, urging
investors to exercise their rights, supporting intermediaries
to provide independent, impartial advice, as well as improving
the arbitration process and effective enforcement.
         In addition, the SEC must continue to work toward
achieving sustainability and build the capacity to take on new
operational strategies. Systematic and regular emphasis
on corporate governance assures that the SEC’s work
has well-defined, intended outcome achievable and
beneficial to the public. A self-evaluation adapted from
the International Framework: Good Governance in the
Public Sector (2014) by the International Federation of
Accountants (IFAC) has revealed good progress. We remain
committed to achieving further improvement. On risk
management, the SEC has revised the risk management
framework to incorporate the philosophy of capital
market supervision and integrate risk management into
the formulation of work plans and all operations.
         Human resources is the central driving force of an
organization. At the SEC, we develop our workforce on all
levels, including the Board members. Notable developments
in 2016 included the redesign of board retreat (brainstorming
function) by toning down formality and increasing innovation
and creativity. Board Effectiveness was the main focus of
such board retreat where coaching techniques were used
to create the vision of success and formulate a corporate
mindset (board central idea) to chart a direction for market
development that places the country’s sustainability
and the public’s well-being at its core.

(Voravidh Champeeratana)
Chairman 

         Securities and Exchange Commission, Thailand
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Message from the Secretary-General

    The Thai capital market can handle
such challenges if stakeholders work
together towards goals that can align
with the National Plan and share the
same vision of success together.

         2016 was the year that the SEC laid down many
foundations and structural improvements that are aligned
with the country’s National Development Plan. This ensures
a well-balanced capital market eco-system where the capital
market and the Thai economy can prosper over the long term.
        A pre-requisite for foundation building is a regulator that
is resolute and capable. The SEC has put great importance
on the development of “corporate sustainability” by upholding
values of insightfulness, openness, and proactive
collaboration with stakeholders, together with transformation
of working practices to increase stakeholder participation.
Regulations issued must be practical and directly address
core issues. Making this possible, public consultations prior
to enactment of regulations have been conducted much
more effectively by reaching out to the relevant target groups
with sufficient lead time to collect feedback. Communicating
in simple languages and consulting with market participants
has enabled the SEC to understand business operations
and enhance clarity of regulations.
         We also expanded our organizational structure by
adding the Data Management and Analytics Department
to handle market data, develop database, and produce
in-depth analysis of the capital market to support policy-
making.  The FinTech Department was also created to
encourage business operators to adopt technology to
increase competitiveness and enable the general public to
gain full access to a wider range of services offered by the
capital market. Lower cost, better information, and level
playing field will benefit investors. In addition, the SEC launched
the in-house regulatory school and surveillance school
training programs – a knowledge-building initiative to enrich
staff’s understanding of regulatory work amidst various changes
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to the investment environment. We also carried out work
process redesigns to improve organizational management
and sustainability.
         We believe that effective market supervision cannot
be achieved solely by applying regulations. Therefore, the
SEC has been promoting the use of market forces and
self-discipline among industry professionals to exist
alongside suitable and practical regulations. Good corporate
governance was another area where collaborative efforts
with market participants helped formulate the “Investment
Governance Code” (I Code) as a standard for institutional
investors to uphold the clients’ best interests while respecting
environmental, social and governance (ESG) matters,
including commitment to monitor investments closely.
         For measures to help strengthen listed companies, 
the SEC encouraged putting good corporate governance
into actual practice (CG in substance). We began this initiative
through knowledge-building programs at the board and
executive level of listed companies to convince them
of the long-term benefits and bring about actual application
of its principles. We also collaborated with stakeholders to
create a “Corporate Governance Code” (CG Code) as
guidelines for directors to ensure listed companies conduct their
businesses with accountability and long-term value creation.
         The SEC also directly engaged with Chief Executive
Officers (CEOs), Chief Financial Officers (CFOs) and
accounting officers of listed companies to stress the
importance of reliable information as these individuals
serve as initial starting blocks for quality financial reporting.
Quality and integrity of information instills confidence in
investors who need reliable input for investment decisions.
We also worked on increasing the supply of auditors and
strengthened the quality of financial advisors, given their
importance in the selection of healthy companies to list on
the stock exchange.
         For the sale of products to the capital market, we
reinforced the concept of putting investors first. Asset
management companies must adopt product governance
standards, matching suitable products to investors. A newly
created product governance guideline would also be used

to thoroughly evaluate a product before launch. We also
consulted and advised brokers, dealers, and underwriters
of mutual funds (LBDU), particularly bank branches who
account for nearly 90 % of the market, about the importance
of proper sales conduct.
         Our support of the securities businesses included
supporting firms that wanted to explore niche markets,
keeping pace with increasing competition and technology
advancement. Updated regulations increased support for 
new investment services and paved a way for more innovation
of financial products.  We also raised awareness of FinTech
as a means for securities firms to arrange product and service
offerings, simultaneously urging business operators to prepare
for competition from new players.
         The mentioning of FinTech brings to mind the ability
of technology to spur innovation, create value, and allow
the wider public to access financial services efficiently
(democratization of financial services). But this advancement
can also bring disruption to the industry, possibly causing
some businesses to fade out while new businesses emerge.
As such, the SEC has created a testing ground for new
businesses, dubbed regulatory sandbox, enabling us to
collect and apply the experiences learned to formulate
suitable regulations.
         In the immediate future, many challenges lie ahead.
Continued rapid advancement of technology, investors’
search for yields, risks and vulnerabilities of the financial
system are such examples.  Similarly, the importance of
understanding financial and investment planning for retirement
becomes more apparent as Thailand grows into an aging
society. The Thai capital market can handle such
challenges if stakeholders work together towards goals
that can align with the National Plan and share the same
vision of success together. The SEC remains deeply grateful
for every single contribution received in the past and for
many more we may receive in the future.

(Rapee Sucharitakul)
Secretary-General

Securities and Exchange Commission, Thailand
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Key figures in 2016

To enhance enforcement
and market linkage

Securities
Law

Amendment Effective
on 12 December 2016

5th

Rank of 11 Countries

CG Watch5th

Listed
   Companies

656

IPO Proceeds

32,488
                                million baht 

from
23 issuers

Financial Statements
Inspection83

companies

Rectification
        orders:     companies3

cases

Criminal
       Complaints

81

Debt
Offerings of
Private Sectors
(domestic & foreign)

3,156,716
                   million baht

88,735,921.80

Total
    Fine

baht
105 offenders
(submitted to Ministry of Finance as
public revenue)

Business Takeovers

19
companies

Total value:

92,165million
baht

Related
Transactions/Acquisition
and Disposal of Assets

54listed
companies

Total value:

523,956 million
baht

Corporate
Oversight

Mutual
Funds (NAV)

4.7 trillion baht
15% growth from 2015

Securities
      Companies

41

27
Asset Management
Companies





A Journey of Capital Market 

Development



Promotion of Fund Mobilization and Securities Issuers

Overview of Operations

12

Highlights
•      Supporting the establishment of Thailand Future Fund; 
•      Encouraging financial advisors to have pre-consultation with the SEC to get a sense of issues needed to be resolve 
        regarding the qualification of the issuer before actual submission of application, and creating an environment to 
        support financial advisors’ work; 
•      Encouraging the conversion of Property Fund Type 1 into Real Estate Investment Trusts (REITs); 
•      Preparing and collaborating with relevant agencies to support debt crowdfunding.

Developmental Overview/Important Implementation 

                Area of Focus
1.    Increase potential issuer’s
       accessibility and usage of 
       the market.

           Matter Considered
•   Encouraging issuers to mobilize 
     funds at competitive costs;
•   Use of opportunities arising from 
     technological advances to promote
     fund mobilization. 

                        Outcome
•   Supporting the establishment of Thailand 
     Future Fund;
•   Holding workshops to inform potential 
     issuers of IPOs about the purpose behind 
     IPO approval guidelines as well as to 
     prepare for the actual submission of the 
     IPO application;
•   Filing application for issuance and offering 
     of digital IPO; 
•   Improving the regulations on the issuance 
     and offering of structured debentures; 
•   Supporting SMEs to take advantage from 
     the capital market tools such as equity 
     crowdfunding and private equity trust; 
•   Studying the feasibility of debt crowdfunding;
•   Encouraging the conversion of Property 
     Fund Type 1 into Real Estate Investment 
     Trusts (REITs).

Highlights
•      Supporting the establishment of Thailand Future Fund; 
•      Encouraging financial advisors to have pre-consultation with the SEC to get a sense of issues needed to be resolve 
        regarding the qualification of the issuer before actual submission of application, and creating an environment to 
        support financial advisors’ work; 
•      Encouraging the conversion of Property Fund Type 1 into Real Estate Investment Trusts (REITs); 
•      Preparing and collaborating with relevant agencies to support debt crowdfunding.
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            Area of Focus
2.     Ensure quality of products 
        and issuers, and expand 
        distribution.

3.     The Thai capital market as 
        a channel to mobilize funds 
        and boost competitiveness.

        
        The Thai capital market should be widely accessible to enable businesses to mobilize funds effectively. Simultaneously, 
quality financial products and issuers are preferred to strengthen the integrity of the market and provide sound choices for 
investors. The capital market should support businesses to mobilize funds, compete, and keep pace with global growth. 
As such, the SEC has implemented many measures to facilitate fund mobilization, ensure quality of financial products, 
and support issuers as summarized below:

1.     Increase Potential Issuer’s Accessibility and Usage 
of the Market

        A capital market should cater to various entities needing 
to mobilize funds such as the government’s effort to finance 
the country’s mass-transit development projects. The SEC 
issued regulations for the establishment of infrastructure 
funds which led to the establishment of the Thailand Future 

             

Fund to facilitate public investment in infrastructure, raise 
Thailand’s long term competitiveness, and manage public 
debt. At the same time, investors have another attractive 
quality financial product to consider. Similarly, regulations 
on the issuance of structured debentures were brought in 
line with international norms to support the Bank of Thailand’s 
liberalization of the financial sector.

          Matter Considered
•   Creating an environment to support 
     financial advisors’ work;
•   Allocating the IPO shares to ensure 
     distribution to the general public.

•   Encouraging fund mobilization and 
     investment from foreign businesses.   

                         Outcome
•   Encouraging financial advisors to have         
     pre-consultation with the SEC to get a 
     sense of issues needed to be resolve 
     regarding the qualification of the issuer 
     before actual submission of application;
•   Holding workshops to fine-tune expectations 
     with financial advisors on the due diligence 
     required to address various types of 
     concerns; 
•   Encouraging the Investment Banking Club 
     to formulate standards for financial advisors 
     to control quality levels;
•   Revising guidelines regarding the allocation 
     of IPO shares.
•   Revising guidelines on cross-border 
     offerings;
•   Encouraging foreign countries to take 
     advantage of the channels for fund 
     mobilization and investment in Thailand, 
     such as infrastructure trust and  CLMV 
     fund.
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       In our work with the private sector, the SEC conducted 
broad outreach to SMEs to promote understanding and 
usage of capital market tools, such as equity crowdfunding 
and private equity trusts. We also engaged with the private 
sector for insights to help us formulate regulations and 
guidelines for funding portals, given that establishment of 
service standards is vital for equity crowdfunding. We 
encourage the use of advance technology, such as smart 
contracts to help manage payments of share subscriptions 
more efficiently. The SEC have been preparing groundwork 
to support other methods of fund mobilization too, such as 
debt crowdfunding jointly implemented closely with the Bank
of Thailand to assess the type of regulatory framework 
needed and supporting infrastructure, such as alternative 
credit scoring systems.
       For initial public offerings (IPOs), we held workshops to 
inform potential issuers of IPOs about the purpose behind 
IPO approval guidelines as well as to receive feedback 
regarding important preparations companies need to 
make. This way, companies would be well-prepared 
prior to actual submission of the IPO application to 
the SEC and the SET.
       Another important measure implemented was to 
encourage the conversion of Property Fund Type 1 into 
Real Estate Investment Trusts (REITs) for greater fund 
mobilization flexibility and wider exposure than Type 1 funds.  
Their structures are also internationally accepted and more 
attractive to investors.

2.    Ensure Quality of Products and Issuers and 
Widespread Distribution.

       Financial advisors play a major role in the process of 
offering new securities for subscription as they can assess 
whether the issuer has the necessary qualifications. We 
therefore engage with financial advisors every year to discuss 
matters of concerns regarding share offerings that caught 

our attention over the year. We held workshops to fine-tune 
expectations with financial advisors on the due diligence 
required to address various types of concerns. We also 
encouraged the Investment Banking Club to formulate 
standards for financial advisors to control quality levels.  
Financial advisors were also encouraged to have pre-
consultations with the SEC to get a sense of issues needed 
to be resolved regarding the qualification of the issuer and 
information disclosure, before actual submission of application.  
Doing so, financial advisors would be able to address 
all the key issues beforehand and able to submit a more 
well-conceived application. These pre-consultations ultimately 
help expedite the approval process and meet time frames 
prescribed by the Licensing Facilitation Act B.E. 2558 (2015), 
too. In addition, the SEC has plans to strengthen the 
qualifications of financial advisors and compliance.  
Eventually, we will explore the idea of upgrading the regulatory 
framework governing financial advisors towards a licensing 
system, replacing the current system based on approvals.  
The present approval process is limited in scope and not 
yet aligned with international practice. An upgrade will 
strengthen regulatory capacity and effectiveness.
       The SEC has been considering revising guidelines 
regarding the allocation of IPO shares to ensure widespread 
distribution to the general public. This is to simultaneously 
prevent excessive allotment to individuals with close 
relationships (related persons) with the company which 
could result in these individuals dominant control of the 
number of IPO shares in the market and the potential of 
conducting unusual trading activity in the secondary market 
after listing. The definition of “related persons” will be revised 
for clarity to mean someone whose contribution to the 
company’s progress has been on-going and apparent.  
IPO shares allotted to a “related person” shall not exceed 
15% of total IPO shares. The total allotment to related
persons and company employees must not exceed 25% of 
total IPO shares.



        We also tightened requirements on the preparations 
of factsheets to increase uniformity of presentation, brevity 
of information, ease of use, and ensure presence of all vital 
information necessary for investment decisions.

3.     The Thai Capital Market as a Channel for Mobilizing 
Funds and Boosting Competitiveness

        The SEC has revised guidelines on cross-border 
offerings to facilitate foreign businesses that want to mobilize 
funds in Thailand. 
        We also worked with regulators from Cambodia, 
Laos, Myanmar, and Vietnam (CLMV) to share our 
knowledge about interesting financial products such 
as infrastructure trusts and CLMV funds.
        The SEC has also been supporting the development 
of the mutual fund industry in emerging markets in Asia.

        Our future plans will focus on making fund mobilization through the Thai capital market play an important role in supporting 
innovations and the sustainable development of businesses. This also means increasing Thailand’s competitiveness while 
supporting lift economic growth in the region.  

 

An annual workshop was held for executives of capital 
market regulators from neighboring countries as well as 
South Asian countries under the SEC Thailand Academy 
program, currently in our second year. This year’s conference 
ran the central theme on mutual funds and was attended 
by participants from 12 nations. Specific workshops were 
also held for neighboring countries to help them formulate 
guidelines for development of the mutual fund products 
in their respective markets.
        To promote the distribution of Thai mutual funds in 
the region, the SEC has signed a Memorandum of 
Cooperation (MOC) on the Asia Region Funds Passport 
(ARFP) with South Korea, Japan, New Zealand and Australia. 
ARFP is an APEC initiative to prepare the distribution of funds 
across borders for citizens of the region to invest, starting
in 2017.
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The Thai Capital Market
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Equity Market

       • The SET Index rose 19.8% in 2016 to close at 
1,542.94 points at the end of the year. Daily Average 
Turnover was 50,244.97 million baht, more active than 
the average of 41,141.45 million baht recorded the year 
before. The recovery of oil and commodity prices was 
positive for earnings of large listed companies, subsequently
lifting the SET Index higher. The three best performing 
sectors were resources, agro and food, and industrials, 
respectively. Market capitalization grew to 15.08 trillion 
baht in 2016, up by 22.8% over 2015.
       • The mai Index closed at 616.27 points in 2016, 
up 18%. Daily Average Turnover dropped slightly to 2,280.68 

 

SET Index and Net Foreign Trading in 2016 

Source: SET Market Analysis and Reporting Tool (SETSmart)
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million baht in 2016 compared to 3,160.9 million baht 
in the previous year. Market capitalization grew by 31.5% 
to 425 billion baht in 2016. Top three best performing 
sectors were agro and food, financials, and resources, 
respectively.
      • Overall, the Thai equity market was very volatile 
due to both domestic and international factors, notably 
with heavy foreign selling of Thai equities during the October – 
November 2016 period. Nevertheless, foreign investors 
remained net buyers with 77,927.2 million baht recorded 
for the SET and 618.8 million baht for the mai.
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       • Short selling activity peaked in September at 3.6% 
of the turnover of stocks in the SET100 and was least 
active in July at just 1.8%.  Average short positions in 2016 
were 2.7%, similar to the year before.

Issuance of Equities
       • Total capital raised by companies listed on the SET 
and mai amounted to 224,082 million baht in 2016, up 47.2%
over the previous year. 32,488 million baht was raised 
in the primary market from 10 companies listed on the SET 
and 13 companies listed on the mai through IPOs. The amount 
was 16.2% lower than the previous year since indices 

Source: SET Market Analysis and Reporting Tool (SETSmart)

 

were quite low in the first half as market sentiment remained 
subdued from 2015. Fewer companies therefore tapped 
the market with IPOs in the first half of the year. 2016’s 
largest IPO was Banpu Power Public Company Limited, 
raising 13,618 million baht.
       • Capital raised from the secondary market totaled 
191,594 million baht, a large increase of 68.9% raised from 
existing shareholders (rights offering).
       • Funds mobilized from the public through Real Estate 
Investment Trusts (REITs) amounted to 20,169 million baht, 
comprising four companies. The amount raised was 1.08 
times the amount mobilized in 2015.

2.3

2.8 2.7

3.1 3.0

2.6

3.3
2.9

2.4

1.8 1.9

3.6
3.3

2.5

1.9

201620152014
 -

 0.5

 1.0

 1.5

 2.0

 2.5

 3.0

 3.5

 4.0

Short Sale of the Thai Capital Market in 2016

Jan Feb Mar Apr May June Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec



       • The government bond yield curve fluctuated
considerably with 10-year bond yields dropping to a low 
of 1.54% in April before rising again towards the end of 
the year. Concerns centered on the US election and Fed 
rate hike, making the yield curve steeper at the end of 2016 
compared to the end of 2015.
       • The bond market had net inflows in 2016. Net foreign 
holdings of Thai debt securities increased from 571,019 

 
Yield Curve for Government Bonds
(30 December 2015, 30 June 2016, 30 December 2016)

Source: Thai Bond Market Association

million baht to reach 634,338 million baht or 5.84% of total 
debt outstanding at year-end 2015.
      • The bond market continued to expand and 
the total of all types of debt securities outstanding reached 
10.87 trillion baht by the end 2016, up 8.4% over the previous 
year. Government bonds increased by 6.1% to 7.94 
trillion baht while corporate debentures increased by 16.4% 
to 2.81 trillion baht in 2016. 
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      • The outright trading value of debt instruments 
averaged 91,842 million baht per day, up 13.5% compared 
to 2015. The increased turnover was a result of higher 
trading activity on all tenors during periods when the yield 
curve experienced volatility. Trades were predominantly 
between bond dealers and investors, comprising 79% 
of total volume. Funds were the largest investors at 48% 
of total, followed by foreign corporate investors, and other 
investors such as Thai corporate investors and insurance 
companies, respectively. Turnover between bond dealers 
amounted to 21% of total outright volume.

Outright Trading Value in 2016

Source: Thai Bond Market Association
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Issuance of Debt Securities
       • The total of all types of debt securities offered in the 
domestic market in 2016 was valued at 11.81 trillion baht, 
an increase of 1.8 trillion baht or 18.51% compared to 2015.  
New issues of government bonds amounted to 8.6 trillion baht 
while the private sector issued 3.2 trillion baht. The value 
of government bonds rose by 20.8% from the increase 
in Bank of Thailand bond issuance, whereas new issues 
of government bonds, treasury bills, and state enterprise 
bonds slowed down.
       • In 2016, total corporate debt securities issued 
domestically by Thai and foreign corporates combined 
grew by 12.8% over the previous year. Issuance of long 
term debt securities amounted to 925,467 million baht, 
up 55% over the year before, while short-term debt securities 
totaled 2.29 trillion baht, an increase of 6.6%.
             o  Companies listed on the SET and the mai issued 
a total of 484,609 million baht worth of long-term debt 
securities. The top three issuers by sector (excluding 
commercial banks and finance and securities companies) 
were property development, construction materials, and food 
and beverage.
             o  Long-term debt securities issued by non-listed 
Thai corporates totaled 305,477 million baht, 1.08 times 
the amount in the preceding year.

      • The outright trading value of debt instruments
averaged 91,842 million baht per day, up 13.5% compared
to 2015. The increased turnover was a result of higher
trading activity on all tenors during periods when the yield
curve experienced volatility. Trades were predominantly
between bond dealers and investors, comprising 79%
of total volume. Funds were the largest investors at 48%
of total, followed by foreign corporate investors, and other
investors such as Thai corporate investors and insurance
companies, respectively. Turnover between bond dealers
amounted to 21% of total outright volume.
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Issuance of Debt Securities
       • The total of all types of debt securities offered in the
domestic market in 2016 was valued at 11.81 trillion baht,
an increase of 1.8 trillion baht or 18.51% compared to 2015.  
New issues of government bonds amounted to 8.6 trillion baht 
while the private sector issued 3.2 trillion baht. The value
of government bonds rose by 20.8% from the increase 
in Bank of Thailand bond issuance, whereas new issues
of government bonds, treasury bills, and state enterprise
bonds slowed down.
       • In 2016, total corporate debt securities issued
domestically by Thai and foreign corporates combined
grew by 12.8% over the previous year. Issuance of long
term debt securities amounted to 925,467 million baht, 
up 55% over the year before, while short-term debt securities
totaled 2.29 trillion baht, an increase of 6.6%.
             o  Companies listed on the SET and the mai issued 
a total of 484,609 million baht worth of long-term debt
securities. The top three issuers by sector (excluding
commercial banks and finance and securities companies)
were property development, construction materials, and food
and beverage.
             o  Long-term debt securities issued by non-listed 
Thai corporates totaled 305,477 million baht, 1.08 times
the amount in the preceding year.



20

535 616 577
967 1,065 305
132 122 106

4,677 5,317 7,529

0

1,000

2,000

3,000

4,000

6,000

7,000

8,000

9,000

5,000

Government Bond Treasury Bill & PN

Bank of Thailand BondState Enterprises Bond

      • Baht-denominated bonds issued totaled 28,072 
million baht, declining from 31,540 million baht compared 
with 2015.
      • As commercial banks become more cautious with 
lending when economic growth is slow, corporates look 
towards debt securities to raise funding especially when 
prevailing cost of funds are attractive. This was illustrated 
by the increase in the number of new issuers from statistics 
of debt securities registered with the Thai Bond Market 
Association. Of the 156 issuers* (up by 24) of long term 
debt securities in 2016, 45 were new issuers tapping 
the market. Likewise, of the 210 issuers (up by 26) of short 
term debt securities this year, 49 were new issuers.
      • Debt securities issued by the private sector is 
anticipated to slow down in 2017 as most companies have 
already accelerated their fund mobilization plans in 2016 to take 
advantage of low prevailing yields. The outlook ahead 
suggest that domestic interest rates may climb as foreign 
rates rise, thereby making cost of funds higher.
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       •    The Thailand Futures Exchange Plc. (TFEX) had 
a total turnover of 69.58 million contracts or an average 
of 285,189 contracts per day, increasing from an average 
of 199,749 contracts per day the year before. The increased 
activity in TFEX was due to volatile market conditions.  
Single stock futures increased from 81,103 contracts per 
day in 2015 to 138,634 contracts per day in 2016, while 
SET50 Index futures increased from 110,142 contracts per 
day in 2015 to 131,939 contracts per day in 2016. In contrast, 
the volume declined for derivatives with foreign-exchange 
or energy sector as the underlying.

Net Open Position and Future Trading Volume per Day in 2016

Source: SET Market Analysis and Reporting Tool (SETSmart)

      •    Market open interest at the end of 2016 stood 
at 1,919,913 contracts, more than double the level in 2015.  
Retail investors constituted the largest group of investors 
at 52.8% of total while institutional investors and foreign 
investors accounted for 36.8% and 10.4%, respectively.
      •    Following Cabinet resolution on 1 December 2015 
to place agricultural products under the Derivatives Act, 
TFEX traded its first agricultural product derivative in mid 
February 2016 with the debut of rubber sheet RSS3 Futures.  
This was followed by the trading of rubber sheet RSS3D 
Futures, a contract which included physical delivery at the 
end of the contract in mid May.

Open Interest 

Open Interest (Contract) 

Daily Average 

Daily Average Volume (Contract)

0

100,000

200,000

300,000

400,000

500,000

0

500,000

1,000,000

1,500,000

2,000,000

2,500,000

Jan Feb Mar Apr May June Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec

Derivatives Market



22

      •    In 2016, TFEX appointed three market makers 
namely KGI, TNITY and RHBS to increase the liquidity of 
Stock Futures. A memorandum of understanding was also 
signed with the Tokyo Commodity Exchange (TOCOM), 
a derivatives exchange in Japan, to share know-how and 
pursue business and product development together in 
the future.
       •    The derivatives market is expected to continue 
to expand in 2017 as a greater variety of products are 
introduced. TFEX will broaden the range of underlying 
stocks in Stock Futures and debut Gold-D Futures, 
emphasize the importance of market makers, and help 
the Thai Clearing House accommodate securities as collateral 
to facilitate investors of TFEX contracts.
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The Advancement of Listed Companies
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Highlights 
        Formulating the Corporate Governance Code for Listed Companies (CG Code) to promote their sustainable development;  
        Establishing the Investment Governance Code (I Code) to raise the standards for institutional investors to uphold 
        the clients’ best interests through adoption of ESG principles and attentiveness;
        Promoting greater understanding of CEOs, CFOs, and accounting officers regarding their roles as a first line of defense 
        in financial reporting;
        Creating knowledge building programs and guidelines to assist listed companies in complying with our requirements;
        Promoting fair treatment for shareholders by lessening the burden on identification documents required for shareholders’ 
        meeting attendance. 

Developmental Overview/Important Implementation

              Area of Focus
1.    Sustainable development 
       of listed companies.

2.    Investors receive full, accurate, 
       and timely information.

              Matters Considered
•   Promoting product governance by 
     building self-discipline and market 
     force, as well as encouraging 
     regulatory discipline.

•   Raising the quality of  financial reports, 
     standards of accounting, and disclosure 
     of other information. 

                      Outcome
•   Encourage knowledge building, better 
     understanding, and cooperation for 
     self-discipline and market force; 
•   Formulate the Corporate Governance 
     Code (CG Code) and the Investment  
     Governance Code (I Code);
•   Publish the handbook and organize workshop 
     on “Handling confidential, market-sensitive 
     information: Principle of good practice” for  
     listed companies.

•   Promote greater understanding of the 
     importance of quality reporting by engagement 
     with CEOs, CFOs, and accounting officers; 
•   Increase the number of auditors and modify
     the procedures through RBA and fast track; 
•   Inspect the quality of auditing firms;
•   Raise the standards of accounting and 
     auditing;
•   Routine inspection of listed companies’ 
     transactions and reports.
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       Besides promoting self-discipline of listed companies 
through implementation of the CG Code, the SEC drew 
synergy from market forces by collaborating with many 
capital market entities in the establishment of an Investment 
Governance Code (I Code). These are standards for 
institutional investors to uphold the clients’ best interests 
through adoption of ESG principles and attentiveness.  
       On other fronts, the SEC also conducted knowledge-
building programs to help listed companies improve their 
compliance with various regulations. For example, the SEC 
collaborated with the Stock Exchange of Thailand and the 
Thai Listed Companies Association to arrange a workshop 
in October 2016 entitled “New Changes in the Securities 
and Exchange Act: What You Need to Do to Comply” 
to promote better understanding of the amendments to the 
Act before they came into force. Other highlights included 
the “Inside Information Management Tips for Listed 
Company Executives” workshop in June 2016 and 
publication of a handbook titled “Handing confidential, 
market-sensitive information: Principle of good practice” 
for use by listed companies.

       Area of Focus 
3.    Shareholders are treated 
       in fair and equitable manner 
       and able to exercise their 
       rights accordingly. 

       Since listed companies play an important role in the country’s economic development, the SEC is keen to support 
their advancement and sustainability. Likewise, investors should receive sufficient, accurate and timely information from listed 
companies to support investment decisions; shareholders should also be treated fairly and equitably. Key programs 
supporting the advancement of listed companies include:

1.    Corporate Governance

       We place an emphasis on practical application of 
corporate governance (CG in Substance). This started 
with promoting understanding at the top through contact 
with the board of directors and executives of listed 
companies on various occasions to confirm acceptance 
of benefits towards the company’s sustainability and confirm 
commitment to put corporate governance into practice.  
In addition, the SEC has been working with the committee 
on sustainable development of listed companies to formulate 
the “Corporate Governance Code for Listed Companies” 
(CG Code) which integrates environmental, social and 
governance issues (ESG) into business operations.  
This assists the board of directors, as corporate leader, 
with guidance to oversee that business operations are 
ethical, stakeholders are treated respectably, the environment
is improved or less negatively impacted, and the organization
is responsive to change. These qualities also align with 
the sustainability development principles of the Sufficiency 
Economy.

              Matters Considered
•   Equitable treatment of shareholders 
     and expansion of voting channels
     for shareholders’ meetings.

                      Outcome
•   Revision of the guidelines for related party 
     transactions; 
•   Lessening the burden on identification 
     documents required for shareholders meeting 
     attendance; 
•    Promoting the use of e-meeting, e-proxy, 
      and e-voting.



25

2.     Quality of Financial Reports, Accounting Standards, 
and Other Information Disclosures

The SEC directly engaged with chief executive officers 
(CEOs), chief financial officers (CFOs) and accounting 
officers of listed companies to promote greater understanding
of the importance of quality reporting and their role as a first 
line of defense in financial reporting. Quality and integrity 
of information instills confidence in investors who need 
reliable information to make investment decisions. Particularly, an
emphasis was on CFOs with whom we worked with on 
many levels. We distributed documentation on the roles 
and responsibilities of CEOs, arranged training on accounting
principles and specific industry sectors, and collaborated 
with the Federation of Accounting Professions (FAP) to listen and 
resolve practical problems listed companies may have in 

order to formulate guidelines to ensure adherence to proper 
accounting and reporting practices. We are also in the 
process of drafting the qualifications of CFOs and 
accounting officers of companies issuing IPO shares.
       Given the importance of auditors who review and 
form opinions on company financial reports, the SEC puts an 
emphasis on the capability and the number of qualified 
auditors. We teamed up with the FAP and the Stock Exchange 
of Thailand to disseminate accounting and auditing 
knowledge through such workshop as the "UK Experience 
on Implementing the Enhanced Auditor Reporting," which 
discussed new types of audit reports soon to be implemented 
in Thailand. We also joined up with the FAP to help advise 
audit firms, including creation of tools and audit programs 
to aid the audit process. Through close collaboration, 
we strived to raise accounting and auditing standards to 
international levels and keep up with the demands of the 
investment environment. In addition, the SEC continuously 
review audit firms’ quality controls. This year, overall results 
improved further from the scores attained in the second 
round of review. The achieved progress demonstrated 
the commitment of executives and staff of audit firms to 
continuously raise their level of quality control. Efforts to 
increase the number of auditors to meet market demand 
included continued support through procedural modifications 
to cater for risk-based approach (RBA) or to expedite 
the approval of auditors working for well-respected 
audit firms.
       The SEC also regularly reviewed and audited transactions 
of listed companies to help improve quality of information 
disclosure and mitigate unfair practices or siphoning of 
financial benefits. For example, reviews of financial reports 
  

The SEC, the Stock Exchange of Thailand and the Thai Listed Companies 
Association jointly organized a public seminar entitled “New Changes to 
the Securities Act: What You Need to Do to Comply” to introduce the new 
securities law and provide compliance guidelines for listed companies.



       Area of Focus 
3.    Shareholders are treated 
       in fair and equitable manner 
       and able to exercise their 
       rights accordingly. 

       Since listed companies play an important role in the country’s economic development, the SEC is keen to support 
their advancement and sustainability. Likewise, investors should receive sufficient, accurate and timely information from listed 
companies to support investment decisions; shareholders should also be treated fairly and equitably. Key programs 
supporting the advancement of listed companies include:

1.    Corporate Governance

       We place an emphasis on practical application of 
corporate governance (CG in Substance). This started 
with promoting understanding at the top through contact 
with the board of directors and executives of listed 
companies on various occasions to confirm acceptance 
of benefits towards the company’s sustainability and confirm 
commitment to put corporate governance into practice.  
In addition, the SEC has been working with the committee 
on sustainable development of listed companies to formulate 
the “Corporate Governance Code for Listed Companies” 
(CG Code) which integrates environmental, social and 
governance issues (ESG) into business operations.  
This assists the board of directors, as corporate leader, 
with guidance to oversee that business operations are 
ethical, stakeholders are treated respectably, the environment
is improved or less negatively impacted, and the organization
is responsive to change. These qualities also align with 
the sustainability development principles of the Sufficiency 
Economy.
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led us to instruct three listed companies to revise their financial 
reports and to notify of their related party transactions, 
acquisition and disposal of assets, involving a combined 
value of 523,956 million baht.*        
       On another six cases, notices urged the public to 
review transaction information and attend investor meetings 
to help consider important cases involving a total of 24,655 
million baht. Reviews of 56-1 Form filings have led us to issue 
notices to 15 companies to amend and submit correct
revisions and to another 51 companies on suggested 
improvements for next year’s filing. Verbal recommendations 
were made to another eight companies to highlight issues 
of concerns. We also arranged a workshop on enhancing 
the review of 56-1 Form filing for listed companies to improve 
understanding and exchange opinions with the SEC.  

 

  

3.    Equitable Treatment of Shareholders and Expansion 
of Voting Channels for Shareholders’ Meetings

       In 2016, the SEC began revising the guidelines for 
related party transactions which had been in use quite 
a while. This will ensure that when listed companies make 
business transactions with related persons that may 
cause a conflict of interest, these business activities will 
be conducted with transparency and fairness towards all 
other shareholders. Guidelines should also meet the 
demands of today’s business environment.
       Shareholders’ meetings are important opportunities 
enabling shareholders access to information from listed 
companies, seek answers, and vote on issues, thereby 
empowering shareholders to play a role in running these 
companies. The SEC is facilitating this process by recently 
lessening the burden on certain identification documents 
required for attendance. Foreign institutional investors who 
have appointed a custodian that is a local financial institution 
to attend on their behalf may not be required to present 
additional identification papers since the identify of such 
institutional investors would have already been apparent 
to the custodian from know-your-customer processes 
required by law and relevant guidelines. Similarly, Thai 
investors may use certified photocopies of valid formal 
photo-ID of shareholder, such as ID card or passport, 
as identification document to accompany proxy forms.  
The original ID card or document need not be presented 
since in most cases such documents are kept with the 
owner and not handed to others.

The SEC, the Federation of Accounting Professions under the Royal 
Patronage of His Majesty the King and the Stock Exchange of Thailand 
jointly organized a seminar entitled “UK Experience on Implementing the 
Enhanced Auditor Reporting.” 

Note: *Data as at December 31, 2016.
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       The SEC’s future emphasis will be directed at helping companies create sustainable value  through ethical and 
responsible business operations, as a good corporate citizen with consideration for social and environmental implications.  
Large well-run companies can be influential role models to motivate change across the board. We will encourage companies, 
in general, to gradually raise their readiness level. Nevertheless, the advancement of listed companies needs the cooperation 
of everyone to truly create a proper environment for good corporate governance.

The SEC together with the Stock Exchange of Thailand and the Thai Listed 
Companies Association organized a seminar on “Inside Information 
Management Tips for Listed Company Executives” to share regulatory 
insights on proper handling of inside information.

       The SEC also sought to increase ways for shareholders 
to vote. Consultations with the Business Development 
Department, Ministry of Commerce, have led to the permission 
of shareholders’ meetings to be held in the form of 
e-meetings. We are advocating the Stock Exchange 
of Thailand and Thailand Securities Depository (TSD) 
to develop systems to support e-proxy and e-voting 
capabilities.
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Anti-corruption in the Thai Capital Market

      The SEC encourages listed companies to operate their 
businesses with social responsibility and good corporate 
governance, including having a strong policy stance to 
emphasize anti-corruption. We require listed companies 
to disclose their anti-corruption policy and measures in 
the annual registration statement (Form 56-1), annual reports, 
and the application for an offer for sale of shares (Form 69-1).  
We also urge similar commitments from securities and 
derivatives businesses.
       To enable investors and interested persons to review 
these matters, the SEC has been disseminating information 
regarding anti-corruption measures adopted by listed 
companies, securities and derivatives businesses on the 
www.cgthailand.org and www.sec.or.th websites since 2015.
Improvements to the disclosure process were added in 2016 
to align with Thailand’s Private Sector Collective Action 
Against Corruption (CAC), where the Thai Institute of Directors 
Association (IOD) serves as Secretariat. More information 
is available on their website www.thai-cac.com. Anti-corruption 
commitments are categorized into two levels.
      •    Declaration of Intent to join CAC: The company 
must prescribe that the chairman of the board or the 
highest-ranked executive sign the Declaration of Intent and 
submit the document to the CAC scheme.
      •    Certified Member of CAC: The company must 
complete a self-evaluation tool that is audited by a third party. 
The self-evaluation must then be submitted to the CAC 
scheme for endorsement and eventual certification that 
such measures exist and being deployed.

      As of the end of 2016, up to 372 listed companies 
have submitted the Declaration of Intent to join CAC and 121 
of these companies have already become Certified Members.  
Similarly, 58 securities and derivatives businesses have 
issued their Declaration of Intent, with 31 reaching Certified 
Member status.      
       In addition, the SEC reached out to other organizations 
to seek collaboration on a number of other matters such as:

      (1)  Thai Investors Association: We trained rights-protection 
volunteers on questioning techniques to effectively probe 
listed companies about their anti-corruption policies and 
measures at annual general shareholders’ meetings. This 
program has been running since 2014.

      (2)  Institutional Investors: The SEC worked jointly through 
their respective associations such as the Association of 
Investment Management Companies and the Association 
of Thai Securities Companies to urge institutional investors 
to review and question listed companies about their 
anti-corruption policies and measures at annual general 
shareholders‘ meetings; the program has been implemented 
since 2014.

      (3)  Securities and Derivatives Businesses: The SEC 
requested that analytical research reports also disclose 
the listed company’s CAC status. Furthermore, we encouraged 
investment consultants to furnish this information to help 
investors make better decisions. This program has begun 
since 2015.
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      (4)  Asset Management Companies: The SEC sought 
cooperation from asset management companies to disclose 
their own CAC status on fund fact sheets and publications 
distributed for mutual funds under their management. 
This program has been in operation since 2015.

      (5)  Anti-corruption Organization of Thailand: The SEC 
granted financial support for the operation of ACT which 
has plans to collaborate with IOD on a “No Bribery Label” 
scheme. The scheme will present this label to highlight 
companies that deploy anti-corruption measures, including 
mutual funds with policies or investments that focus on such 
companies.

SEC Board members, executives and staffs joined the public and private 
sectors to participate in the National Anti-Corruption Day activities.



The Development and Supervision of Business Operators
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Highlights
•     Raising the quality of financial products; 
•     Promoting product governance;
•     Disclosure of information to prevent misleading situations;
•     Obtaining feedback and seeking solutions to help facilitate both domestic and foreign businesses.

Developmental Overview/Important Implementation 

            Area of Focus
1.    Product governance 
       and benefits to investors.

2.    Competit iveness of 
       business operators. 

3.    Prepare, update, and 
       benefit from technology.

              Matter Considered
•    Improving the entire ecosystem 
      involved in the development of 
      financial product offerings.

•    Encouraging healthy competition 
      among capital market participants;
•    Building international profile of the 
      Thai capital market.

•    Implementing measures to support 
      the application of FinTech towards 
      product or service offerings in the 
      capital market, as well as creating 
      awareness of FinTech.

                          Outcome
•    Raising the quality of financial products 
      offering; 
•    Promoting product governance in business 
      operators;
•    Information disclosure to prevent misleading 
      information.
•    Amending regulations to allow securities 
      companies to offer services for investing 
      in foreign financial products;
•    Consulting with business operators to 
      obtain feedback and find solutions to 
      facilitate their business, both domestic 
      and foreign;
•    Allowing the establishment of hedge funds 
      to invest in all types of financial products, 
      asset management companies were given 
      the support to invest in more types of 
      assets;
•    Cooperation and exchange of knowledge 
      with neighboring countries for mutual 
      growth.
•    Regulatory amendments have been 
      proposed to create flexibility regarding 
      supervision and to create a conducive 
      environment for innovation such as 
      sandbox; 
•    Organizing FinTech Forum and Fintech 
      Challenge Program.
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          Area of Focus

4.    Stability and reliability.                                                                                          

       Proper development and supervision of business operators can help strengthen their competitiveness, and subsequently 
increase the confidence and integrity of the capital market. In 2016, the SEC implemented many programs to support 
this objective as summarized below:

1.    Product Governance and Benefits to Investors

       The SEC recognizes the importance of improving the 
entire ecosystem involved in the development of financial 
product offerings to ensure product integrity and fairness 
by putting investors first. Market participants involved in 
product offerings will earn the trust of investors, leading to 
continued business flows and long term growth. Such trust 
eventually propagates wider and strengthen the integrity of 
the capital market as a whole.
       The basic foundation of trust, we believe, is built on 
concerns for the best interests of clients. Products and 
services will be selected and configured to meet the needs 
and characteristics of clients, while the way they are offered 
will also take into account similar considerations and market 
conditions. Information provided will be clear throughout 
the process, from selection, investing, and follow-up.
       During the year, the SEC has been revising guidelines 
for product offerings, urging market participants to understand 
the importance of building robust work processes to ensure

that products embody fair dealing and best interests of clients. 
Sales staff must be knowledgeable and there must be sufficient 
personnel to cover the service. This also included an emphasis 
on raising the quality of unit sales at commercial bank 
branches that also function as limited brokers, dealers, 
and underwriters (LBDU) and already command a market 
share of almost 90%. The resulting benefits and implications 
to the overall capital market were underscored. Eight 
processes were identified as critical areas: (1) the organizational 
structure should clearly identify job assignments, roles of 
the board, duties of executives to oversee fair dealing, 
(2) product selection and segmentation, (3) remuneration 
structures, (4) sales and marketing, (5) staff communication 
and training, (6) business contingency plans, (7) complaint 
handling procedures, and (8) compliance and internal controls.  
A self-assessment questionnaire (SAQ) was formulated 
for use by banks, including joint consultations to improve 
bank processes and operations that address vulnerabilities 
uncovered by the SAQ exercise.

              Matter Considered
•    Ensuring the stability and reliability 
      of the capital market to cope with 
      market fluctuations;
•    Regulation and supervision of 
      business operators. 

                          Outcome
•    Conducting stress tests and checking 
      the capacity of securities companies; 
•    Routine inspection of securities companies.  



                          Outcome
•    Raising the quality of financial products 
      offering; 
•    Promoting product governance in business 
      operators;
•    Information disclosure to prevent misleading 
      information.
•    Amending regulations to allow securities 
      companies to offer services for investing 
      in foreign financial products;
•    Consulting with business operators to 
      obtain feedback and find solutions to 
      facilitate their business, both domestic 
      and foreign;
•    Allowing the establishment of hedge funds 
      to invest in all types of financial products, 
      asset management companies were given 
      the support to invest in more types of 
      assets;
•    Cooperation and exchange of knowledge 
      with neighboring countries for mutual 
      growth.
•    Regulatory amendments have been 
      proposed to create flexibility regarding 
      supervision and to create a conducive 
      environment for innovation such as 
      sandbox; 
•    Organizing FinTech Forum and Fintech 
      Challenge Program.
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Cooperation and exchange of knowledge with 
neighboring countries for mutual growth continued with 
our initiative to establish the SEC Academy which conducted 
knowledge-sharing sessions on mutual fund with regulators 
from neighboring countries and ASEAN, and training sessions
on mutual fund and corporate governance for SMEs for 
regulators from Cambodia. SEC and SET executives also 
met the chairman and executives of the Securities and 
Exchange Commission of Myanmar to explore potential 
areas of collaboration between their two capital markets to 
help develop the bourses in Myanmar and Yangon, train 
the board of directors of listed companies, and educate 
investors.

       Addit ional ly, we also promoted good product 
governance for both asset management companies and 
underwriters, emphasizing that products must be suitable 
for investors. A product governance guideline was created 
to thoroughly evaluate the product’s suitability prior to sale. 
Information disclosure guidelines were also revised to prevent 
misleading information. We urged changes to the regulations 
of the Association of Investment Management Companies 
to measure fund performance against Total Return Index (TRI),
revise advertisement contents for trigger funds to match 
international standards, and improve the format and contents 
of fund prospectus and fact sheets to better cater to investors’ 
preferences.

2.    Competitiveness of Business Operators

       We encourage healthy competition among capital 
market participants as well as the international profile of 
the Thai capital market, in order to enable business 
operators to offer financial products and services that meets 
the needs of foreign investors and able to compete abroad.  
Thailand is an important fund-mobilizing center for the Greater
Mekong Subregion (GMS) and an attractive market for 
foreign investors. Regulations were amended to allow 
securities companies to offer services for investing in 
foreign financial products, expanding the range of 
businesses that securities companies can offer. We also 
consulted with business operators to obtain feedback 
and find solutions to facilitate their business, both 
domestic and foreign. Asset management companies 
were given the support to invest in more types of assets 
such as allowing the establishment of hedge funds to invest 
in all types of financial products. On going enhancements 
to regulations also take place in order to meet the Objectives 
and Principles of Securities Regulation (IOSCO Principles) 
as well as the practices, standards, and agreements made 
with other regulatory bodies.

The SEC has organized “SEC Academy” for ASEAN regulators to share 
knowledge regarding “Mutual Fund.”

The executives of the SEC and the Stock Exchange of Thailand visited 
the office of the Securities and Exchange Commission of Myanmar to further 
discuss a cooperative framework for developing between their two capital 
markets. 
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3.   Prepare, Update, and Benefit From Technology

      As financial technology or FinTech alters the product 
and service landscape, business operators and related 
market participants will need to prepare, stay up to date, 
and benefit from technology which is progressing rapidly.  
Technology can benefit both business operators and 
investors by driving costs down, providing new choices, 
increasing the efficiency and speed of services, and offering 
variety.
      The SEC has been implementing measures to support 
the application of FinTech towards product or service 
offerings in the capital market, as well as creating awareness 
of FinTech. Regulatory amendments have been proposed
to create flexibility regarding supervision and to create 
a conducive environment for innovation. Measures 
included establishment of confined environments such as 
virtual sandbox and regulatory sandbox for trial implementation 
of new innovations. FinTech Forum was also organized 
to spark interest, disseminate knowledge and introduce 
some attractive applications of financial technology. 
There was considerable response with nearly 1,000 
attendees from the six workshops held in 2016.
       Through collaboration with partners such as the Bank 
of Thailand, the Office of Insurance Commission, the Stock 
Exchange of Thailand, the Software Park Thailand, the National 
Innovation Agency, the C asean organization, and the Thai 
Fintech Club, we held the “FinTech Challenge” to invite 
people to innovate financial, investment, and insurance 
solutions. The primary purpose was to create schemes which 

(1) give businesses and consumers greater ability to access 
and benefit from the financial market, investment products, 
and insurance products, (2) enhance investors’ ability to 
access financial products, services, and information on 
new technology platforms, (3) build awareness of the 
importance of being prepared, staying up to date, and 
benefiting from technology, plus enabling new participants 
to compete in the financial, investment, and insurance markets, 
(4) raise regulatory agencies’ understanding of technology 
and ability to adjust to the changing environment. As many 
as 126 teams competed at the workshop, demonstrating 
determination, creativity, and talent.

The SEC in cooperation with the Bank of Thailand, the Office of Insurance 
Commission, the Stock Exchange of Thailand, the Software Park Thailand, 
the National Innovation Agency, C Asean and the Thai FinTech Club, 
officially launched the FinTech Challenge Program to promote tangible 
creation of innovative products and services in the financial, investment 
and insurance industries.



4.   Stability and Reliability

      The health of business operators is vital for the capital 
market’s stability and resilience to various shocks. As such, 
we conducted stress tests and checked the capacity of 
securities companies to cope with market fluctuations.   
No problems were detected at securities companies and 
the Thai Clearing House; operations remained normal. 
      The supervision of market participants also included 
the audits of securities companies and asset management 
companies according to established auditing procedures:

•    Supervision of Securities Companies

      The process covered (1) routine inspection of securities 
companies according to periodic schedules or when needed,
(2) theme inspection focusing on a particular issue of concern

The SEC held a seminar “FinTech Forum” to spark interest, disseminate 
knowledge and introduce some attractive applications of financial technology.

at the time that could impact the operations of securities 
companies or their clients or wider market, (3) cause 
inspection triggered by certain unanticipated incidents 
occurring during the year such as responding to complaints 
filed, following up on significant information of possible 
misconduct, or investigating a news item regarding the 
business operations of the company. 
       In the 2016 audits, the SEC placed a particular emphasis 
on reviewing the operations affecting the quality of services 
to clients: (1) Know Your Customer / Customer Due Diligence 
(KYC/CDD) processes: KYC/CDD helps securities companies 
give proper investment advice to clients, matching their 
needs, and appropriate for their risk tolerance levels. It also 
mitigates misconduct from fraudulent activities involving 
the cash or shares of clients. 
       (2)    Proper protection of clients’assets: Securities 
companies must have robust systems to safeguard clients’ 
assets and readily retrieve them within reasonable time. 
       (3)    Production of research analysis reports: The 
operations involved in the preparation of analytical reports 
must be based on information that is appropriate, accurate, 
comprehensive, and reasonable. Reports must not create 
a conflict of interests and should always uphold the investors’ 
best interests. 
       (4)    The derivative warrants (DW) operations: Securities
companies must ascertain the clients’ needs and suitability, 
providing proper information, knowledge and advice to inform 
clients about the risks of DWs before an investment decision 
is made. 
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       Audit results revealed some vulnerabilities in the operating 
procedures surrounding DWs. The SEC subsequently 
raised these issues or advised on potential remedies for 
securities firms to implement or tighten working procedures.

       Supervision of Staff Professionalism

       Executives of securities companies are expected to 
exhibit professionalism, conducting duties with honesty, 
responsibility and thoroughness, while properly supervising 
company operations to ensure regulatory compliance.  
In 2016, the SEC found several cases of management 
negligence with regards to handling of KYC/CDD work; 
legal action has been taken according to severity of breach.
Similarly, investment consultants must also embody the 
professionalism expected of their job, conducting duties 
with honesty, thoroughness, and the ethical standards 
required of investment consultants. The SEC discovered 
several breaches of the same nature as in the previous year, 
although the number of cases declined. Breaches tend to
involve around the liberty of executing investments on behalf 
 
       Looking ahead, the SEC will continue to focus on ensuring that securities business professionals conduct their duties 
at the highest level expected and uphold the clients’ best interests (customer centric). We will also promote the fact that 
good corporate governance is beneficial to business and should be put in practice to earn clients’ trust. Eventually, that trust 
will produce shared benefits for investors, business operators, and the capital market.

of client accounts or using client accounts to trade for one’s 
own benefit. Legal action has been taken according to 
severity of breach.

•       Supervision of Asset Management Companies

         Routine inspections revealed that risk management 
practices were mostly satisfactory. Companies which had 
flaws or breaches of regulations have been instructed to 
revise operating procedures; penalties were applied according 
to severity of breach. Most violations concerned the foiiowing 
themes:
         (1)   Financial compensation or other benefits were 
out of line with industry norms due to brokers being affiliated 
with the asset management company.
         (2)   Selection and monitoring of investments by the 
fund needed to be more thorough or contained insufficient 
documentation to describe the investment decision.
         (3)   Operating controls were insufficient.
         (4)   Supervision of investment consultants was 
insufficient with regards to investment risk warnings.
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       At the end of 2016, the securities brokerage business consisted of 41 companies, 37 of which concentrated mainly on 
securities brokerage; The other four were non-brokers. Total participants declined by one company which returned its license.

Securities company
- Broker
- Non-broker 
Total

       The development of the securities brokerage business 
witnessed a shift in business strategy away from competition 
on price towards increased emphasis on enhancing services 
through adaptation of information technology. Clients' 
preferences gravitated towards the sophistication of services 
offered rather than price alone. Investment advice and 
technological tools to help enhance returns became more 
important. A survey of the competitive landscape in 
December 2016 revealed that most securities companies 
now offer mobile/web applications, offering features to assist 
investors in making investment decisions. Features included 
company fundamental information, stock data filtering 

Note:    Both member and non-member of the Stock Exchange.
            This includes Securities Dealing, Securities Underwriting and Investment Advisor.
            There are currently eight third-party vendors that supply mobile/web applications to securities brokerage companies 
            (excluding internet trading), of which two are FinTech startups.

functions (Stock Screener), and placement of conditional 
orders. Program trading capabilities where clients can 
personally configure investment strategies were still-less 
common. Most brokers mainly relied on third party software 
to develop their mobile/web applications to serve clients. 
A number of brokers chose to develop in-house features 
to complement third-party applications, thereby providing 
clients with a more enhanced user experience. This provided 
an attractive selling point, while retaining clients already 
familiar with third-party applications. The survey also revealed 
that market participants embraced social media as another 

2016

37
4

41

2015

37
5

42

2

2

3

3

1

1

0 5 10 15 20 25 30 35

Fundamental Info.

Stock Screener

Conditional Order

Program Trading Third-party

Number of Securities Company

Third-Party + In-House 

mobile / web application services classified by type
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channel for publicity purposes, whether it is e-learning 
seminars, distribution of investment information or analysis 
reports, etc. Future adaptation of information technology 
may see deployment of artificial intelligence (AI) and machine 
learning (ML) in the securities industry as participants seek 
to cater to clients' needs as well as help reduce their own 
business operating costs. Cloud computing, implementation 
of know-your-customer process electronically (E-KYC) and 
shared customer database (capital market data pool) are 
such examples.
       The overall market share structure of the securities 
brokerage industry remains largely intact with the top 
10 brokers holding 49.17% of the market in 2016, a slight 
drop from 50.01% the year before. In terms of business 
operations and financial positions, the industry's main 
revenue earner which was total brokerage income rose 
by 2,951 million baht or 11%. Net profit grew by 2,463 
million baht or 32% YoY, while retained earnings rose by 

 

 

4,433 million baht or 13% YoY. The industry's combined
assets reached 348,596 million baht, up 24% YoY compared
to 280,871 million baht the previous year. The growth of
the business was driven by higher trading volume; average
daily turnover grew by 18.6% YoY to 52,526 million baht. 
Furthermore, the SET Index climbed another 254.92 points
or 20% YoY to close at 1,542.94 in 2016.Trading activity
was spurred by external factors such as the US economic
recovery, foreign institutional buying, and higher global
crude oil prices, and domestic factors such as the expansion
of the economy from a pick-up in consumer spending and

accelerated public spending.   
        Retail investors remained the most active investor group
in the stock exchange, accounting for 54% of total turnover
in 2016, despite a decline from 58% the previous year. 
Margin trading increased by 5.6% YoY to 57,516 million baht,
while outstanding collateral value was 226,286 million baht
or 3.9 times the margin loans outstanding.
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Information showing financial position and income of securities business 
  
Financial Position
 
Total Assets
       Cash, cash equivalent, and deposits
       Investment, net
       Receivables – securities and derivatives business
       Receivables – clearing house

Total Liabilities
       Loans and debt instruments
       Payables – securities and derivatives business
       Payables – clearing house

Shareholders’ Equity
       Common stock
       Retain profit (Loss)

Comprehensive Income Statement

Revenues
       Fee - brokerage
       Profit (Loss) – own trading account
Expenses
       Operating expenses
Comprehensive profit (loss)
 
Note:  Financial data presented was collected from unaudited financial statements.
          Financial data came from 37 securities firms in 2016.

Unit: Million Baht

2016
348,596
101,445
91,349

110,262
29,616

254,904
47,169

175,928
17,675

93,692
44,445
38,961

2016
44,333
30,392
7,593

31,399
25,356
10,150

2015
40,506
27,441
5,560

30,001
24,349
7,687

2015
280,871
106,957
42,271
96,733
19,951

192,831
32,701

139,350
9,761

88,040
43,438
34,529

4 5

4

5

Unit: Million Baht
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2016
57,516

226,286
1,543

2015
54,492

178,075
1,288

2016
2,130

69

2015
2,000

104

Margin Loan

Margin loan (million baht) 
Collateral (million baht) 
SET Index (point)

Net Liquid Capital

Net Liquid Capital (million baht) average amount per intermediary
Net Capital Ratio (%) average amount per intermediary

Note: Minimum regulatory requirement – Net Liquid Capital 15 – 25 million baht, and Net Capital Ratio 7%

       Every securities company managed to maintain net 
liquid capital at a much higher level than the minimum 
requirement; the average net liquid capital for the industry
increased by 6.5% YoY to reach 2,130 million baht in 2016. 

 

      

Net liquid capital to liabilities and collateral, or Net Capital 
Ratio, averaged 69% (down 33.7% YoY), reflecting higher 
average daily turnover of securities this year.
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2016

34
9
4

47

2015

34
9
3
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      As of the end of 2016, the industry comprised of 47 licensed derivatives brokers, 34 of which also operated a securities 
business. Nine were derivatives only brokers, of which two concentrated only on agricultural futures. Four companies 
requested termination of their businesses. 

Derivatives broker
       - operating securities brokerage business as well 
       - operating derivatives  brokerage business only
       - ceasing operation of derivatives brokerage business
Total

  
      The derivatives market expanded further in 2016 with 
average daily turnover of 285,189 contracts, up 43% YoY.
Growth was driven by increases in the trading of Single 
Stock Futures which reached 138,634 contracts per day, 
up 71% YoY, and by the growth of gold futures which 
averaged 11,901 contracts per day, an increase of 98% YoY. 
The increased activity was attributable to the SET Index’s 
advance and greater investor concerns over global economic
uncertainty, prompting higher demand for safe assets 

      

 

and the resulting appreciation of global gold prices. Agricultural 
futures, however, have not yet been popular among investors.
       In terms of the operating performance of the nine
derivatives only brokers, their combined market share 
was 9.95% in 2016, a decline from 11.68% in 2015.  
However, their total income grew by 47.4% YoY or 117 
million baht which reduced their combined net loss to 65 
million baht, improving from the combined net loss of 90 
million baht in 2015.

Derivatives Business
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Unit: Million Baht

Unit: Million Baht

2016
3,165
1,210

909

2,170
725

1,012

995
1,513
(528)

2015
                    2,847

   1,044
                    693 

                    1,930
                     718

                 840

                       917
                 1,270

(353)

2016
364
164
249
429
277
(65)

2015
             247
             117

               (81)
             335
             243

(90)

Information showing financial position and income of derivatives business  

 
Financial Position

 
Total Assets
       Cash, cash equivalent, and deposit
       Receivables – clearing house

Total Liabilities
       Loans and debt instruments
       Payables – securities and derivatives business

Shareholders’ Equity
       Common stock
       Retain profit (loss)

Comprehensive Income Statement

Revenues
       Fee - brokerage
       Profit (loss) – own trading account
Expenses
       Operating expenses
       Comprehensive profit (loss)

Note:   

6 7

6

7

Financial data presented was collected from unaudited financial statements. 
Financial data of the nine derivatives agent firms in 2016 only.
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2016
142
184

2015
154
239

Net Liquid Capital
       Nine derivatives brokers maintained net liquid capital at higher levels than the minimum requirement, with an average 
aggregate net liquid of 142 million baht each, dropping slightly by 7.7% YoY.  Average Net Capital Ratio decreased 
by 23% YoY to 184% because the trading volume of derivatives grew.

Net Liquid Capital (million baht) average amount per intermediary
Net Capital Ratio (%) average amount per intermediary

Note: Minimum regulatory requirement - Net Liquid Capital 7 - 15 million baht, and Net Capital Ratio 7%.
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1
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Asset Management Business
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      Funds under management grew by approximately 600 billion baht or 15% in 2016 to reach 4.7 trillion baht, in an 
industry consisting of 22  asset management companies. Three were newly established this year namely Capital Link 
Fund Management, Bangkok Capital Asset Management, and Talis Asset Management. The 12 asset managers affiliated 
with commercial banks still dominate the industry with a 94% market share.

        Classified by Investment Policy

Mutual fund and trust fund
       Equity fund
       Fixed income fund
              Money market fund
              Daily fixed
              Term fund
       Mixed fund
              Mixed fund which specifies a proportion 
                 for investing in equity
              Mixed fund which does not specify 
                 a proportion for investing in equity
              Mixed fund which does not invest in equity fund
       Others
       Property fund (type 1)
              Specific fund
              Non-specific fund
       Real Estate Investment Trust (REIT)
              Managed by asset management company
              Managed by other REIT managers
       Infrastructure fund offered to general investors
Total mutual funds and trust funds

Note:      Excludes Maybank Asset Management (Thailand) which terminated business operations and sold license 
              to Capital Link Fund Management.

             

Number of Funds
 Dec 2016

 518
 488
 40
 88

 360
 258
 44

 210

 4
129
 51
 49
 2
 8
 2
 6
 6

 1,458

 Dec 2015

 470
 490
 40
 80

 370
 254
 47

 195

 12
 112
 52
 50
 2
 6
 2
 4
 5

 1,389

Change 
NAV     

(Million Baht)

 65,269
 245,410

 (341)
 309,163
 (63,414)
 137,078
 10,284

 140,716

 (13,922)
 24,111
 (2,687)
 (2,531)

 (156)
 13,747
 (3,318)
 17,065
 15,134

 498,061

% NAV

9%
11%
0%

27%
-8%
59%
35%

78%

-66%
32%
-1%
-1%
-8%
32%

-34%
50%
7%

13%

NAV (Million Baht)

 Dec 2016

 782,336
 2,457,330

 266,962
 1,449,084

 741,283
 368,410
 39,990

 321,386

 7,033
 99,253

 279,727
 277,881

 1,846
 57,347
 6,383

 50,965
 236,666

 4,281,068

 Dec 2015

 717,067
 2,211,920

 267,303
 1,139,921

 804,697
 231,332
 29,706

 180,670

 20,955
75,142

 282,414
 280,412

 2,002
 43,600
 9,700

 33,900
 221,532

 3,783,007

1
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             Classified by Investment Policy
        

             Classified by Foreign Investment
Foreign investment fund
Local investment fund
Specialized fund
       Property Fund for Institutional Investors
            Property Fund for Resolving Financial 
               Institution Problems (Type 2)
            Mutual Fund for Resolving Financial 
               Institution Problems (Type 3)
            Property and Loan Fund (Type 4)
       Vayupak Fund
       Country Fund
Total specialized funds
Grand total

Dec 2016
 

 591
 867

 26
 6
 

 -
  

 20
 1
 2

 29
 1,487

Dec 2015

  551
 838

 27
 7
 

 -
 

 20
 1
 2

 30
 1,419

NAV     
(Million Baht)

  155,279
 342,784

 6,062
 1,243

 
 -

 4,820
 95,519

 98
 101,680
 599,741

% NAV

18%
12%

7%
7%

7%
41%
19%
32%
15%

Dec 2016

  1,014,772
 3,266,297

 92,603
 19,258

 
 -
 

 73,345
 328,726

 600
 421,929

 4,702,997

Dec 2015

  
859,493

 2,923,513

 86,541
 18,015

 
 -  

 
 68,525

 233,207
 502

 320,249
 4,103,256

Number of Funds Change NAV (Million Baht)
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  Dec 2016   Dec 2015   Dec 2015

NAV    
(Million  
Baht)   

  
 987,017
 862,990
 807,202
 628,701
 306,456
 294,972
 159,877
 156,537
 74,876
 63,799
 61,110
 51,850
 45,930
 43,062
 35,720
 35,357
 22,778
 6,942
 3,615
 1,265
 1,068

 909
-

 16,089
 11,557
 8,217
 5,747
 5,738
 3,617

 4,702,997

Market
 Share 

21%
18%
17%
13%
7%
6%
3%
3%
2%

1.4%
1.3%
1.1%
1.0%
0.9%
0.8%
0.8%
0.5%
0.1%

0.08%
0.03%
0.02%
0.02%

-

0.3%
0.2%
0.2%
0.1%
0.1%

0.08%
100%

Change 
(Million 
Baht)  

 64,946
 62,066

 396,139
 92,657
 90,433
 31,685
 18,949
 18,637

 (235,168)
 10,478
 11,114
 2,897
 2,304
 7,689
 5,456
 1,923

 (3,091)
 243
 893

 1,265
 1,068

 909
 (815)

 30 
 2,975 
 8,217 

 146 
 5,738 

 (40)
 599,742 

%    
Change

 

7%
8%

96%
17%
42%
12%
13%
14%

-76%
20%
22%
6%
5%

22%
18%
6%

-12%
4%

33%
-
-
-

-100%

0%
35%

-
3%

-
-1%

15%

NAV   
(Million  
 Baht)   

 922,071
 800,924
 411,063
 536,044
 216,023
 263,287
 140,928
 137,900
 310,044
 53,321
 49,996
 48,953
 43,626
 35,373
 30,264
 33,434
 25,869
 6,699
 2,722

-
-
-

 815

 16,059
 8,582

-
 5,601

-
 3,657

 4,103,255

 Market
 Share 

22%
20%
10%
13%
5%
6%
3%
3%
8%

1.3%
1.2%
1.2%
1.1%
0.9%
0.7%
0.8%
0.6%
0.2%

0.07%
-
-
-

0.02%

0.4%
0.2%

-
0.1%

-
0.1%

100%

                      Asset Management Company

Asset Management Company  
       1  Kasikorn Asset Management Company
       2  SCB Asset Management Company
       3  Krung Thai Asset Management Public Company
       4  BBL Asset Management Public Company
       5  TMB Asset Management Company
       6  Krungsri Asset Management Company
       7  Thanachart Fund Management Company
       8   UOB Asset Management (Thailand) Company
       9  MFC Asset Management Public Company
       10  CIMB-Principal Asset Management Company
       11  Land and Houses Fund Management Company
       12  One Asset Management Company
       13  Aberdeen Asset Management Company
       14  Phatra Asset Management Compnay
       15  Asset Plus Fund Management Company
       16  Tisco Asset Management Company
       17  Solaris Asset Management Company
       18  Manulife Asset Management (Thailand) Company
       19  Phillip Asset Management Company
       20  Capital Link Fund Management Limited
       21  Bangkok Capital Asset Management Company Limited
       22  Talis Asset Management Company Limited
       23  Maybank Asset Management (Thailand) Company
REIT Manager 
       1  RMI Company
       2  WHA Real Estate Asset Management Company
       3  Univentures REIT Management Company Limited
       4  Ticon Management Company
       5  Hemaraj REIT Management Company Limited
       6  Amata Summit REIT Management Company
Total
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      The search for yield has attracted investors to funds 
and fueled recent industry growth, especially with deposit 
rates remaining rather low. Fund types with noticeably rapid 
growth were daily fixed income funds which increased 
by 27% from 1.1 trillion baht in 2015 to 1.4 trillion baht 
in 2016 and mixed funds which grew by 59% from 231,332 
million baht in 2015 to 368,410 million baht in 2016. Most 
of these tend to be funds with a global allocation, regardless 
of whether they focus on global fixed income or have 

Illustration 1: Breakdown of Investments by Term Funds for Accredited Investors, Focusing on High-risk Securities 
                      in the Domestic Market

       

a multi-asset allocation policy or seek returns from foreign 
assets given global macro opportunities to cater to investors’ 
investment objectives.
       Fixed income term funds expanded at a slower pace 
of 8% to 741,283 million baht outstanding. Term funds for 
accredited investors that predominantly focused on the 
domestic market increasingly favored non-investment grade 
and unrated securities (Illustration 1) in the search for yield.
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Note:   Excludes money market funds.2



      There were 594 new funds launched in 2016 with a combined IPO size of 1.34 trillion baht, compared with 644 new funds 
in 2015, mobilizing 1.24 trillion baht. Term funds remained the dominant type of newly established funds, accounting 
for 94% of the total new funds with its IPO size of 1.25 trillion baht. Term funds for general investors had a 47% share while 
term funds for accredited investors (AI Funds) who were themselves mostly term funds as well, accounted for another 
47% respectively (Illustration 2)

Illustration 2:  Breakdown of Fund IPOs by Type

       Asset management companies earned total revenues of 14,247 million baht in the first half of 2016, a decrease 
of 595 million baht or 4% compared to the same period in the preceding year. However, industry net profit managed to 
grow by 259 million baht, up 7%, owing to greater efficiency of business operations which helped improve net profit margin 
from 24% to 27% in the first half of 2016.

Revenues
       Fee
Earnings
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50%

71%

47%

76%

43%

15%
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IPO Size
(Million Baht)

2013

AI Fund

MMF/Daily

Prop/Infra/REITs

Trigger Fund

Term Fund
EQ + Mixed

1.62 1.81 1.24 1.34

2014 2015 2016

June 2016
 14,247 
 14,019 

3,782 

June 2015
14,842 

 13,019 
3,523 

 Dec 2015
 28,868 
 28,124 
 7,168 
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The Stock Exchange and Securities Trading Systems
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Highlights
•     Amendment to the Securities and Exchange Act, recommending improvements to the supervision of the stock 
       exchange to align with international standards.
•     Promoting IT stability, security, and integrity of the operations among the SET group and securities companies through 
       proactive engagement, seminar organization, and regulatory amendment.

Developmental Overview/Important Implementation

             Area of Focus
1.    Collaboration with the SET 
       on preparations for the 
       upcoming Financial Sector 
       Assessment Program (FSAP) 
      in the area of stock market 
       supervision to meet more 
       str ingent internat ional 
       standards. 
 

2.    Stability,security, and integrity
       of trading systems.

       The Stock Exchange and securities trading systems are critical components that have a bearing on investor confidence 
and the competitiveness of the Thai capital market, as well as the trust of fund mobilizers and foreign investors. The SEC 
places a very high priority on the supervision of the stock exchange and trading systems to ensure their efficiency and 
alignment with international standards. Several important programs were implemented as summarized below:

            Matters Considered
•   Raising regulatory capacity to ensure 
     that the SET is able to achieve 
     regulatory objectives;
•   Coordinating with the SET’s Board  
     to establish common understanding 
     and shared objectives to achieve 
     the regulatory objectives regarding 
     self-regulatory organizations (SRO )
      and SET’s role as the secondary 
     market.
•   The SET and business operators 
     build the capacity to handie threats 
     from technological use, ensuring 
     stability, security, and integrity 
     (cyber readiness & resilience).  

                      Outcome
•   Amendments to the Act to improve the 
    supervision of the Stock Exchange to align 
     with international standards and better 
     clarify the roles of the SEC and the SET;
•   Aligning between the SEC and the Board 
    of SET’s policy direction regarding SRO 
   and secondary market and regulatory 
    objectives for synergy and effectiveness.

•   Exploring, analyzing and formulating plans 
     to fill the IT Gap.
•   Improving the regulations and the guidelines 
     of IT security
•   Organizing seminars to create a better 
     understanding and raise the awareness 
     of cyber security. 
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1.    Collaboration with the SET on preparations for the 
upcoming Financial Sector Assessment Program in the 
area of stock market supervision to meet more stringent 
international standards.

       Thailand is in the process of being reviewed in 2018 
by the Financial Sector Assessment Program (FSAP) 
administered by the International Monetary Fund and World 
Bank. This includes assessing whether the supervision of 
the capital market meets international standards. Part of the 
review directly involves evaluating the Stock Exchange of 
Thailand given its role as a self-regulatory organization and 
importance as a secondary market. The SEC and the SET 
have been in consultation with each other to ensure a 
satisfactory review and attest to the stock exchange’s 
integrity and acceptance by international investors. 
In addition, the SEC proposed changes to the Securities 
and Exchange Act, recommending improvements to 
the supervision of the stock exchange to align with 
international standards and raise the capacity to achieve 
regulatory objectives with regards to investor protection, 
fairness, transparency, and reduction of systemic risk. 
Amendments to the Act brings clarity and transparency 

 

      

to the roles of the SEC and the SET, including minimization 
of overlap.
       Apart from proposing legislative change which can be 
a long process, the SEC prescribed supervisory requirements 
for the stock exchange as a self-regulating organization 
and secondary market, improving the clarity and 
transparency of such role. This benefits both the SEC 
and the SET by aligning policy direction and regulatory 
objectives for synergy and effectiveness. Coordination 
with the Board of the SET also established common 
understanding and shared objectives to achieve 
the regulatory objectives prescribed for these two 
aforementioned areas.

2.    Stability, security, and integrity of trading systems

       In an environment where technology changes rapidly 
and the adaptation of technology to serve customers 
evolve swiftly, technology risk and cybersecurity cannot be 
overlooked. The SEC, therefore, proactively engages with 
the organizations and participants we oversees to help build 
the capacity to prevent these threats and ensure the stability, 
security, and integrity of the operations of the SET group 
and securities companies.
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      Last year, the SEC received excellent support from 
organizations under our supervision in a study to analyze 
and address technological vulnerabilities (ITgap) between 
securities firms and the SET group, producing valuable 
inputs to strengthen IT security guidelines and operating 
procedures to ensure organizations under supervision 
adopt effective operating controls and have robust operations 
that can cope with these threats. The SEC also arranged 
for executives and officers of the SET group and securities 
companies to receive CoBIT for Board Management and 
Practitioner training on raising awareness regarding 

      Looking ahead, the SEC’s future plans on strengthening stability, security, and integrity of the capital market will continue 
to emphasize close collaboration with securities businesses and the SET group to achieve regulatory objectives together, 
through efficient use of resources and well-defined tasks.

technology and cybersecurity, as well as understanding 
the quality of compliance standards needed to effectively 
cope with these risks. We also received cooperation from 
state agencies such as the Office of the National Broadcasting 
and Telecommunications Commission (NBTC) to participate 
in a “National Cyber Security” workshop along with 
securities companies to share know-how and understanding 
of the risks and threats posed by cyberspace. The conference 
received excellent responses from securities businesses 
and the SET group. 



Enforcement
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Highlights
•     Amendment to the Securities and Exchange Act with respect to the scope of misconduct and additional enforcement 
       measures, including civil sanction, to enhance efficiency, timeliness and international standard compliance. Staff training 
       was conducted to ensure their readiness for the implementation of new enforcement measures; 
•     Ecosystem improvements to deter market misconduct by making it more difficult from the beginning for a misconduct 
       to be committed;   
•     Improvement of internal work process to strengthen enforcement efficiency.

Developmental overview/Important implementation

         Area of focus
1.    Regulations are clear and 
       effective.

2.    Ecosystem improvements to
       enhance credible deterrence.

3.     Collaboration with other 
       domestic and international 
       organizations. 
4.    Ef fect ive regulatory 
       enforcement.  

           Matters considered
•   Legal framework is unambiguous 
     and suitable for  the prevailing 
     operating environment; 
•   Appropriate channels for taking 
    action against offenders.

•   Prevent ing and suppressing 
     misconduct at the early stage.

•   Coordinating and working with 
     relevant organizations to eradicate 
     misconduct.
•   Improvement of internal work 
     process to strengthen enforcement 
     efficiency. 

                        Outcome
•   Amendment to the Securities and Exchange 
     Act to enhance clarity, timeliness and  
     civil sanction measures; 
•   Amendment to the rules on qualifications 
     of company board of directors to reduce 
     redundancy and enforcement limitations;
•   Staff preparation for implementation of civil 
     sanction measures
•   Collaborating with the Stock Exchange 
    of Thailand and private sectors to lay out 
     measures.
•   Coordinating and working with relevant 
     organizations to monitor, identify, investigate 
     and enforce action on misconduct.
•   To classify and rank the complexity of 
     cases to prevent procedural clusters and 
     to follow up regularly. 
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       A capital market is a place to confidently mobilize funds or invest when it is built on efficiency, transparency, fairness, 
and integrity, along with good investor protection. The SEC implements measures to ensure effective deterrence, detection, 
investigation, and regulatory enforcement under the principle of “Credible Deterrence”. Regulatory and operational 
improvements, supervision and investigation of misconduct, and enforcement must be bold and resolute.
 
1. Regulations Are Clear and Effective

       A prerequisite for effective regulatory enforcement is 
to have a legal framework that is unambiguous and suitable 
for the prevailing operating environment. The fifth amendment
to the Securities and Exchange Act, which came into effect 
on 12 December 2016 prescribes clearer definitions of 
misconduct and make enforcement more effective, timely 
and internationally accepted. The revisions also support 
market linkages and financial products. Groundwork has 
been laid out to ensure readiness of SEC staff and 
stakeholders for the Amendments.
       Apart from the  Securities Law Amendments, the SEC 
has issued rules and regulations concerning qualifications 
of listed company directors to strengthen enforcement 
process by revising penalties to deter wrongdoing more 
strictly. Thorough investigation and prosecution of listed 
company directors and management resulted in the SEC 
administrative sanctions or criminal complaints against 
several such persons. In this regard, the amended Securities 
Law empowers the court of law to bar individuals from 
holding director and management positions through statutory 
law.
       Another essential component of more enforcement 
efficiency was the competency of the workforce; the SEC 
organized staff training particularly in the areas of punitive 
measures under statutory law and other knowledge relevant 
to the amended Securities Law.

2.    Ecosystem Improvements to Enhance Credible 
Deterrence

       To make misconduct more difficult to succeed, eradicating 
and suppressing misconduct at source is vital. As an example, 
the SEC collaborates with the Stock Exchange of Thailand 
and the private sector such as securities brokers and financial 
advisors to analyze and set out measures that address and 
plug loopholes for unfair securities trading activities, such 
as market manipulations or excessive trading volumes and 
prices.

3.    Collaboration with Other Domestic and International 
Organizations

        The SEC collaborates closely with other organizations 
such as the Judicial Training Institute of the Court of Justice 
and the Training and Development Institute of the Office 
of the Attorney General, sharing know-how and working 
practices to improve their joint understanding of the intricacies 
of the capital market and the judicial system.
        The SEC also collaborates internationally with other 
securities regulators to share information and render mutual 
assistance for investigations as far as national laws permit. 
Such collaboration helps to expand our surveillance and 
enforcement capacity.
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manipulations, three cases of insider trading, three takeover 
cases, 39 cases of securities issuance in breach of reporting 
requirements, and three cases of fraud or breach of duty 
by management of a the securities issuer.

•      Violations of the Securities and Exchange Act and
the Derivatives Act: 105 cases with the total penalty fees 
of 88,735,921.80 baht. This sum consisted of 14 securities 
business cases amounting to 8,666,437.50 baht; six asset 
management business cases amounting to 4,523,400.00 baht; 
25 unfair securit ies trading activit ies amounting to 
63,999,012.30 baht; five takeover cases amounting to 
459,332.00 baht; 52 securities issuance cases (failure to 
meet proper reporting requirements) amounting to 
5,125,740.00 baht; one misconduct by the management 
of a securities issuer amounting to 5,560,000.00 baht; 
and two derivat ives business cases amounting to 
402,000.00 baht.

•      Administrative Sanctions: 44 cases consisting of 33 
investment consultants /investment analysts, seven securities 
company executives / authorized persons, two financial 
advisors, and two financial advisor supervisors. Among 
these cases, 29 were suspended from duty and 25 individuals 
had their licenses revoked.

4.    Effective Regulatory Enforcement

       Taking action against misconduct effectively is important 
for the integrity of the capital market as it ensures every 
investor is treated in an equitable manner. To further 
improve the effectiveness of enforcement, internal work 
process now provides better methods for classifying and 
ranking the complexity of cases, accurately determining 
handling time, and monitoring effectiveness. Repositioning 
the enforcement work flow also resolves clusters for faster 
response. 

       Overview of Supervision and Regulatory Enforcement 
in 2016

•     Investigation of Alleged Unfair Securities Trading 
Activities totaled at 77 cases of market manipulations, 
dissemination of false news, and insider trading; 12 cases 
of fraud/misconductby management of listed companies / 
issuers, falsification of documents or accounts; 10 cases 
of operating a securities trading or derivatives trading 
business without a license; and seven other cases for a total 
of 106 cases of misconduct.

•     Charges For Violations of the Securities and Exchange 
Act: 81 cases consisted of 17 cases of operating a securities 
trading business without a license, 16 cases of market 

       The capital market environment will undoubtedly see swift and considerable transformation in the future as social and 
technology changes speed ahead.  The SEC continuously implements staff development programs to facilitate their learning, 
understanding and keeping up with advanced technology, and collaborate with other organizations and agencies that have 
regulatory or judicial roles. Simultaneously, we apply technology to our supervisory functions and misconduct monitoring.
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The Securities and Exchange Act (No. 5) B.E. 2559 (2016)

      Over recent years, trading of securities on the stock 
exchange has become increasingly important to the capital 
market and beneficial to investors. At the same time, unfair 
trading activities have grown in complexity. Existing laws 
may not have fully addressed new types of misconduct 
and the application of certain provisions may have been 
unclear in some cases, thus demanding greater burden 
of proof and interpretation. This was especially the case 
where only criminal laws were applicable, making it more 
difficult to prove “beyond reasonable doubt.” Given the general 
nature of securities misconduct where most evidence 
of wrongdoing is known and possessed by the wrongdoers 
with barely any traces left behind, unlike a typical criminal 
case, it is difficult to bring an offender in a securities case 
to justice. In addition, criminal court proceedings are intricate, 
involve more parties, and consequently take a long time 
to finalize. Nevertheless, the successful prosecution rate 
is relatively low.
       The SEC, therefore, proposed amendment to the 
Securities and Exchange Act (No. 5) B.E. 2559 (2016) to 
address the aforementioned shortcomings. The Amendments 
contain more clearly defined types of misconduct and 
increase enforcement measures. This is to make legislation 
more effective, responsive, and internationally accepted, 
while simultaneously supporting market connectivity and

       The Securities and Exchange Act (No. 5) B.E. 2559 (2016) took effect on 12 December 2016. To promote 
awareness and understanding of the new legislation, the SEC organized workshops with stakeholders such as listed 
companies, press media, securities brokers, asset management companies, and relevant associations and guilds. 
The SEC is also working on easy-to-understand distribution materials for stakeholders such as video clips and E-learning. 

 
         

introduction of innovative financial products. Moreover, 
investors are given equal access to correct and sufficient 
information. The key areas under the amendment are:
      1)   Determination of market misconduct involving 
unfair trading activities such as disclosure of information 
that may affect investors or the capital market, creation of 
unfair advantages by misusing  inside information, price 
manipulation, and other related misconduct; 

       2)   Introduction of additional civil sanctions to enhance 
enforcement effectiveness, namely:(1) monetary penalty, 
(2) repayment of the amount equivalent to the illegal benefits 
received from misconduct (disgorgement), (3) prohibition 
of securities trading on the stock exchange for up to five years, 
(4) banning from director or executive positions in an issuing 
or securities company for up to 10 years, (5) compensation  
for investigation costs;

       3)   Promotion of market linkage, new financial 
products, and other provisions, which includes issuance 
of regulations on registration and appropriate transfer of 
new types of financial products. Other amendments include 
requiring foreign companies to adopt the same level of 
investor protection as the SEC normally prescribes.
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Highlights
•     Sharing knowledge to investors through the media regularly, including social networks in line with current investors’ 
       behaviors;
•     Preparing for the aging society by promoting savings to ensure financial security for retirement;
•     Liaising with relevant regulators to protect investors.

Developmental Overview/Important Implementation

              Area of Focus
1.    Promoting financial literacy.

2.    Investor protection.

       Today’s financial markets are volatile, complex, and varied, thus increases investors’ vulnerability especially when most 
are searching for yield amidst the prolonged low interest rate environment. Improving financial literacy becomes a high 
priority. The SEC has been implementing measures to boost financial literacy to enable investors to make sound investment 
decisions and achieve their financial goals. Exercising investors’ rights and providing channels to voice against unfair 
investment practices were also addressed. Programs implemented in 2016 include:

           Matters Considered
•   Investors have an understanding 
     of products and select suitable 
     investment products for oneself;
•   Investors can benefit from tools to 
     facilitate investment decisions;
•   Preparation for the aging society.

•   Providing channels for investors to 
     voice against unfair investment 
     practices. 

                           Outcome
•   Sharing knowledge to investors through 
     the media such as articles in newspapers, 
     video clips and info-graphics on social 
     networks; 
•   Upgrading mobile application to provide 
     knowledge and a tool for investors; 
•   Promoting savings to ensure financial 
     security for retirement.
•   Providing services from SEC Help Center 
     and collaborating with relevant agencies 
     to protect investors.  

Highlights
•     Sharing knowledge to investors through the media regularly, including social networks in line with current investors’
       behaviors;
•     Preparing for the aging society by promoting savings to ensure financial security for retirement;
•     Liaising with relevant regulators to protect investors.
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1.    Promoting Financial Literacy

       We continuously promote financial literacy for investors 
with a particular emphasis on understanding financial 
products’ features and conditions, risks and returns, and 
selection of suitable investment products for oneself.  
A range of different communication methods have been 
used such as articles in newspapers, television and radio 
broadcasts, video clips and info-graphics on online social 
networks to stay in touch with current trends. The Start-to-Invest 
Facebook fanpage has nearly 80,000 followers. Setting up 
booths at major public events like SET in the City and Money 
Expo were also good opportunities to meet and communicate 
with investors in person.
       Besides receiving proper investment knowledge, the 
SEC believes investors can benefit from tools for assist 
investment decisions and is therefore working to upgrade 
the Start-to-Invest mobile application by improving relevant 
contents and usage as decision-making assistant. Useful 
new features can display comparative data on mutual funds, 
verify an investment consultant’s approval to prevent fraud, etc.
       The SEC views Thailand’s aging society as another 
priority. Those currently in the workforce must have proper 
financial planning for retirement to ensure financial security 
after retirement. We have collaborated with partners to 
strengthen financial literacy with regards to retirement 
solutions such as the use of provident funds. Implemented
through the SET’s integrated marketing communications 

      
(IMC) and mini symposium, activities spurred companies’ 
awareness to encourage their employees to make effective 
use of provident funds.
       We also disseminated advice through methods such 
as the publication of the provident fund member handbook 
and audio clips. We promoted an app for members to help 
plan for retirement (software developed by research teams 
from Chulalongkorn University and Kasetsart University).  
We are active online, advising the provident fund community 
through the ThaiPVD.com website which had 300,000 views 
in 2016 and the happyPVD Facebook fanpage whose 
followers increased by 33% over 2015.

The SEC booth in “Money Expo Bangkok 2016” under the theme “SEC 
Café Working Space” which showcased fundamental investment knowledge
and tips for making viable financial plans to achieve individuals’ goals.
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2.    Investor Protection

       The SEC established the SEC Help Center for investors 
to submit general inquiries about the capital market, seek 
advice, lodge complaints for unfair practices discovered or 
experienced, and report regulatory violations. Getting in 
touch is easier by dialing hotline 1207 or email info@sec.or.th 
for general inquiries regarding the capital market or e-mail 
complain@sec.or.th to seek advice or lodge complaints.  
In 2016, there were 6,150 inquiry cases and 691 complaints/
whistle-blowing cases.
       We discovered that many complaints/whistle-blowing 
cases reported could fall under several different legislations 
supervised by other regulating agencies, or may largely fall 
under the jurisdiction of another regulating agency. In such 
situations, the SEC would liaise with the proper agency to 
closely collaborate on the case or may refer the case 
forwards to facilitate the investors. For example, a case 
could be forwarded to the Stock Exchange of Thailand, 
the Bank of Thailand, or the Bureau of Financial Inclusion 
Policy Development, the Fiscal Policy Office, Ministry of Finance.
       When cases of complaints or regulatory violations 
emerge, the SEC is resolute in dealing with violators. Also, 
firm warnings are issued to prevent re-occurrence. 
Measures are imposed to prevent violations due to lack 
of awareness and investors are also being cautioned 
not to be entangled in misconduct cases. We disseminate 
news to warn investors and also take the opportunity to 
educate the general public when press releases are issued 
to wrap up cases of misconduct.
       Promotion of financial literacy and investor protection 
are important in building confidence in the capital market 
and ensuring solid long term growth. The SEC therefore 
continues to work on these areas, helping investors obtain 
and use tools to make appropriate and intelligent investment 
decisions, avoid being misled, and stand up for their rights.

The SEC shared knowledge to public on saving and investment possibilities
at the SEC exhibition booth in “Money Expo Bangkok 2016.”

Money Expo Bangkok 2016 visitors gathered in at the SEC booth to 
participate in quiz games and edutainment activities.  
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       SEC three-year strategic plan focuses on driving the Thai capital market competitiveness with financial technology. 
The plan aims to promote stakeholder inclusiveness, sustainability, good governance as well as fair and effective law 
enforcement. Additionally, increasing the Thai capital market’s role in serving regional needs is the SEC’s key focus laid 
out in the plan.

       Our blueprint for the next three years aims to solve 
fundamental issues and build intermediaries’ competitive 
edge in the global financial market. On the business side, 
we are increasing collaboration and facilitation for new 
entries and offering new business models in line with 
the growing technology-driven landscape and changing 
consumers’ behaviors. Locally, a major driving force that is 
the aging society is having a stronger influence on the 
adjustment of products and services to generate sufficient 
yields for the elderly investors. It is part of our job to build 
consumers’ awareness of the importance of long-term 
savings and smart investment to serve their own individual
needs.

The four strategic themes 2017-2019 are:
      (1)    
            
      (2)    
              
      (3)   
            
           
             
      (4)   

           

 

Strategy

1

2 

To embrace financial technology (FinTech) as 
a tool for adding value and creating more efficient 
market and accessibility for all stakeholders  

Strategy

To promote the Thai capital market as an 
attractive venue for local and regional fund 
mobilization  

       SEC three-year strategic plan focuses on driving the Thai capital market competitiveness with financial technology.
The plan aims to promote stakeholder inclusiveness, sustainability, good governance as well as fair and effective law 
enforcement. Additionally, increasing the Thai capital market’s role in serving regional needs is the SEC’s key focus laid
out in the plan.

The four strategic themes 2017-2019 are:
      (1)    
            
      (2)    
              
      (3)   
            
           
             
      (4)   

driving competitiveness and inclusiveness for 
stakeholders from all sectors using technologies; 
positioning the Thai capital market as a regionally 
preferred venue to raise funds; 
promoting governance and good standards of 
financial institutions and corporate whereby 
investors’ best interest is considered paramount; 
and 
developing tools to empower investors.

       This priority aims to support the Thai capital market’s 
moving towards the new age of financial landscape by 
promoting expansive information access, new services 
by newcomers, cost-effective market infrastructure leading 
to lower operating costs. Additionally, the SEC will use 
RegTech for a better regulatory supervision and place high 
importance on cyber resilience.

       by streamlining the securities offering and ongoing 
process which includes pre-fundraising screening, effective 
trading monitoring system, and legal enforcement function. 
In addition, more efforts will be made to ensure that the 
Thai capital market standards are at international level,
enhance product attractiveness, and eliminate regulatory 
barriers to contribute to neighboring countries’ economies 
and capital markets development.   
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Strategy

        and improves professional conduct to ensure that 
investors will have reliable information and efficient protection. 
The SEC also promotes self-awareness of all sectors 
regarding the benefits of good corporate governance and 
thus voluntary compliance with CG principles as opposed 
to merely abiding by the rules. This includes improving their 
product offering approaches to prevent conflicts of interest 
with parent companies. 

4
To build a market ecosystem that supports 
good governance of financial institutions and 
businesses in their product and service offering 

for investors’ best interest  

To develop tools for empowering investors 

       in their investment decision making, preventing frauds, 
and promoting exercise of investors’ rights. The SEC also
aims to promote independent investment advisory business 
and develop a more efficient mechanism for dispute resolution 
and effective enforcement.

       To achieve these strategic goals, the SEC is striving 
towards becoming a smarter regulator by empowering staff 
competency in line with the fast changing market landscape.                  
In addition, technologies will be used to enhance work 
process efficiency. This would lead to better data analytics 
and problem solving abilities. More collaboration with all 
stakeholders is our priority as well.  

3
Strategy
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       As a government entity tasked with the supervision
and development of the capital market, the SEC is committed
to carrying out our duties with accountability and good
governance to ensure the capital market’s sustainability
and alignment with the country’s economic policy direction.
       Our significantly refreshed vision of corporate governance
undertaken in 2015, revealing interconnected mechanisms,
assured that the SEC’s work is purpose-driven with
well-defined operations beneficial to public interest and
achievable.  Furthermore, principles of corporate governance
have been translated into practical terms as a functioning
organization.  Values have been transformed into actions
and standards that govern working practices.  Benefits
to the public and our own internal organizational development
must go hand in hand.  These reflect adaptations of the
International Framework: Good Governance in the Public
Sector, conceived by IFAC (International Federation of
Accountants) and CIPFA (The Chartered Institute of Public
Finance & Accountancy).  At the SEC, improving corporate
governance is an on-going process.  Key programs being
implemented include:
       1.  Establishment of the leading role of the SEC Board
in setting the organization’s policy direction and objectives
through board engagement.
             1.1  Workshops between the SEC Board and the
Capital Market Supervisory Board jointly ascertains the SEC’s
progress against its vision, mission, and values. This also
includes emphasis on the roles and involvement needed
from them to produce success.   Board members showed
enthusiasm, satisfaction, and eagerness to be part of the
mechanism that moves the organization towards its goals.
To the board members, key words emanating from the
organization’s vision, mission, and values are:  trust (operate
on trust, build trust in the system, and trust one another),
confidence (confidence and assurance), and sustainability
(society benefits from the capital market and achieves
sustainability).

             1.2  Knowledge building about the capital market.
Business operators and various departments within the
SEC would regularly discuss important or current topics with
the SEC Board and the Capital Market Supervisory Board
to share knowledge, experiences, and observations. Board
members also participate in seminars and training beneficial
towards increasing the effectiveness of their roles.
      2.   Self-assessment of the SEC's corporate
governance development according to guidelines of IFAC:
Good Governance in the Public Sector. Results showed that
we achieved approximately 70% of IFAC’s recommendations,
stepping up from approximately 50% in 2015 (base year).
Programs administered in 2016 included increasing stakeholder
participation, revising procedures on hearing, communicating
our strategic direction directly with stakeholders, conducting
stakeholders survey (focus groups), board governance
development (amendment of selection process of expert
directors, knowledge building for board members), and
development of governance in the workplace (conceptualized
the SEC’s risk philosophy and integrated risk management
into work processes).
      3.   Preservation of key policies and measures on
important issues include conducting qualitative performance
evaluations of the Secretary-General, encouraging all
departments to adopt new operating procedures adapted
from IFAC: Good Governance in the Public Sector, advocating
a corruption-free organization and “No Gift Policy” irrespective
of either grantor or receiver, conducting performance evaluations
of the SEC Board and Capital Market Supervisor Board as
a group, and encouraging capital market stakeholders
to help supervise and develop the market to achieve objectives
(such as workshops with associations or relevant parties
to exchange views and ideas on capital market development,
obtaining feedback from relevant parties on a broad scale
or from specific quarters, arranging seminars and training,
inviting representatives of relevant parties to sub-committees
deliberating the introduction or amendment of legislation
on supervision).
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       The SEC Board and executives consider risk management
as a vital part of corporate culture, building awareness across
all staff levels and integrating risk management within
work flows from conceptualization, decision-making, and
policy formulation to enforcement.  It drives the way we
operate and run the organization, thereby ensures that the
SEC responds efficiently to developments in the capital
market and the needs of stakeholders. This builds readiness
for today and a foundation for a longer term.
       Given such importance, the SEC Board has emphasized
to senior executives, as members of the Risk Management
Committee, to stay sharply focused and work closely with
the Audit Committee to align risk management and internal
audit work.
       In 2016, our  risk management capabilities expanded
further in these areas:

      1.  Revisions to the Risk Management Framework
             The SEC Board approved the revision of the
risk management framework to include a risk philosophy
dimension with three risk-to-objective elements:
            (1)   The supervision and development of the
                  Thai capital market for sustainable growth;
           (2)   The driving of corporate core values;
           (3)   The organization and management of human
resources to become a sustainable organization.
              Analysis and assessment of risk will be more
comprehensive. It conveys corporate expectations on each
work area more perceptibly.

       2.   Development of the Risk Dashboard
            The risk dashboard tool that we developed
enables us to monitor key risk indicators that constitute
capital market risk as well as enterprise risk in five
dimensions: strategic, operational, regulatory compliance,
reputational, and financial. This results in quick detection
and ability to observe trends. Endorsed by the SEC Board,
the dashboard is now in operation.

       3.   Collaboration with Other Regulatory Bodies
to Oversee Stability and Emerging Risks
             In an environment where the market is continuously
volatile and investors’ search for financial returns adds
vulnerability, it is vital to oversee stability and emerging risks
in the Thai capital market.  Risks must be contained and
prevented from affecting the wider market.  Liquidity
conditions, stability of intermediaries, and market infrastructure
must also be satisfactory and up to international standards.
Oversight of stability and emerging risks that cover linkages
between the market and financial system is effective when
there is collaboration among regulatory bodies.  As such,
the SEC works closely with the Bank of Thailand
and the Office of Insurance Commission to share
information and assess risks, raising our capability
to evaluate the resilience of the financial system.
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       4.    Handling of Unforeseen Threats

              With some threats difficult to foresee such as
natural disasters, rioting, and cyber attacks, the SEC revised
our business continuity plan to address unforeseen events
and introduce other updates.  We subsequently conducted
training to confirm that critical services can continue to
operate, various types of crises can be handled, and market

intermediaries and infrastructure will also stay resilient.
Improvements and updates bring business continuity
capacity up to international standards.  In the process,
the SEC received excellent cooperation from all to strengthen
every mechanism of the capital market and enable timely
resumption of services to the public in times of crises.
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       The SEC is mindful of the role we can serve in upholding
social and environmental responsibility.  We encourage listed
companies to disclose their efforts in promoting corporate
social responsibility in sustainable development reports,
annual reports, and annual registration statement. Furthermore,
we encourage listed companies to disclose their carbon
emissions data as well as measures to reduce emissions.
This helps inform investors who are keen on companies
with a good sustainable business strategy.
       As for the SEC, we consulted the Thailand Greenhouse
Gas Management Organization (Public Organization)
(TGO) to assess our Corporate Carbon Footprint (CCF)
in 2015 by measuring the total carbon emissions generated
by our corporate activities. Subsequently, we purchased
carbon credits to bring those net emissions back to zero,
turning the SEC into a carbon neutral organization:
Thailand’s first in the office building category. Our commitment
continues into 2016 with the purchase of 2,403 tons of
carbon credits from the Electricity Generating Authority
of Thailand under the Thailand Voluntary Emission Reduction
Program (T-VER) of the Naresuan Hydropower Project.
Other environmentally friendly measures include gradual
conversion to LED light bulbs in public spaces, rescheduling
of air-conditioning usage, and switching off lights during
lunch hours.
       SEC’s overall consumption of electricity and water
utilities inched up slightly, as our operations grew and more
joint consultation activities were held with capital market
stakeholders at our office.  Fuel usage figures were attributable
to the corporate fleet and executive vehicles.
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SEC Board

Mr. Somchai Sujjapongse
Permanent Secretary, Ministry of Finance
Commissioner

Appointed: October 1, 2015

Skills, competence and experience:
Mr. Somchai Sujjapongse obtained
a Bachelor’s Degree (honors) in Economics
from Chulalongkorn University, Master’s
and Doctorate Degrees in the same field
from the Ohio State University. Before
taking office as Permanent Secretary
of the Ministry of Finance, he held
various key positions in the Ministry
of Finance, including Director-General
of the Customs Department, Director-
General of the Fiscal Policy Office,
Director-General of the State Enterprise
Policy Office. In an academic area,
he was a Part-time Lecturer(Master
Degree Program) at University of the
Thai Chamber of Commerce, a Graduate
Teaching Associate at Department
of Economics of Ohio State University. 

Other roles: His current key posts
include Chairman of the Board of
Director of Krungthai Bank Plc.,
Director of PTT Plc. and Director
of Thai Airways International Plc.

Ms. Wiboonlasana Ruamraksa
Permanent Secretary, Ministry of Commerce
Commissioner

Appointed: October 1, 2016

Skills, competence and experience:
Ms. Wiboonlasana Ruamraksa obtained
a Bachelor’s Degree in Economics
(Public Finance) from Ramkhamhaeng
University, a Master’s Degree in the
same field from Kasetsart University
and a Master’s Degree of Business
Administration from Oklahoma City
University. Prior to taking office as
Permanent Secretary of the Ministry of
Commerce, she was the First Secretary-
Commercial Advisor, Minister Counselor
(Commercial), Permanent Representative
of Thailand to the World Trade Organization
in Geneva, Switzerland, Director of the
Bureau of Multilateral Trade Negotiations
and Specialist in International Trade of
Department of Trade Negotiations,
Deputy Director-General of Department
of Intellectual Property, Deputy Director-
General of Department of Foreign Trade,
Advisor of Ministry of Commerce, Director-
General of  Department of Internal Trade,
Ambassador, Permanent Representative
of  Tha i land to the Wor ld Trade
Organization in Geneva, Switzerland.

Other roles: She is now Executive
Board of the Support Arts and Crafts
International Centre of Thailand (Public
Organization)(SACICT) and Member
of Insurance Commission (Office of
Insurance Commission).

Mr. Voravidh Champeeratana
Chairman

Appointed: September 15, 2015 –
April 28, 2016 (the first term)
April 29, 2016 (the second term)

Skills, competence and experience:
Mr.Voravidh Champeeratana obtained
a BBA (Management) and an MPA
(Public Administration) from the University
of Manila. He was also accorded Honorary
Doctorate in Public Administration (Fiscal
Management) from Udon Thani Rajabhat
University. Prior to taking office as
Chairman of the SEC board, he served
in several key positions, including Member
of the Commission for Judicial Service,
Chairman of Krungthai Bank Plc.,
Chairman of the Commission of Thailand
Institute of Scientific and Technological
Research, Budget Director of Bureau
of the Budget, Member of the Commission
of Mass Rapid Transit Authority of Thailand,
Member of the Commission of Sports
Authority of Thailand and  Member
of the Council of National Institute of
Development Administration (NIDA).

Other roles: He is now Member of the
Committee for Examination of Draft Laws
and Draft Auxiliary Regulations Proposed
to the Cabinet – Third Group (Independent
Agencies and State Enterprises), Member
of the Sub-committee for Economic,
Monetary and Financial Reform and
Member of The Foundation of Princess
Mother’s Medical Volunteer (PMMV).
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Mr. Veerathai Santiprabhob
Governor, Bank of Thailand 
Commissioner

Appointed: October 1, 2015

Skills, competence and experience:
Mr. Veerathai Santiprabhob obtained
a Bachelor’s Degree in Economics
(1   Class Honors) from Thammasat
University, a Master and Doctorate’s
degree in the same field from Harvard
University. He has extensive experiences
in academia, public sector and international
organizations. He was a senior executive
of Siam Commercial Bank Plc. and the
Stock Exchange of Thailand. He had
also served as an advisor of Thailand
Development Research Institute as well
as on the boards of many leading listed
companies. 

Other roles: His current posts include
Member of the National Economic and
Social Development Board; the Board
of Invesment; Insurance Commission;
State Enterprise Policy and Supervisory
Committee, Member of the Board and
Treasurer of Royal Initiative Discovery
Foundation, Member of the Board
of Mae Fah Luang Foundation under
Royal Patronage and Honorary Member
of Thammasat University Council.

st

Mr. Sarawut Benjakul
Commissioner 

Appointed: May 11, 2015

Skills, competence and experience:
Mr. Sarawut Benjakul obtained an LLB
(2     Class Honors) from Ramkhamhaeng
University, Barrister at Law from the
Institute of Legal Education Thai Bar
Associat ion, Master of  Laws in
Commercial Law from University of
Bristol, Master of Laws in International
Legal Studies from the American University
and Master of Laws from Howard
Univeristy. He has versatile experiences
in laws and served in several key positions,
including Chief Judge of Sakonnakorn
Juvenile and Family Court, Chief Jude
of Office of the President of the Supreme
Court and Deputy Secretary of General
Office of the Judicial Affairs.

Other roles: At present, he also serves
in the positions as Deputy Secretary-
General of Office of the Judiciary,
Secretary-General of the Institute of Legal
Education Thai Bar Association, Member
of the Government Pension Fund,
Member of the Commission for Judicial
Service, Chairman of the Board of State
Railway of Thailand, Independent Director
of Airport of Thailand Plc., Banking and
Finance Expert Member of the Board
of Special Case, Council Vice President
of Mahasarakham University, Honorary
Member of the Council of Prince of
Songkla University and King Mongkut’s
Institute of Technology Ladkrabang.

nd

Ms. Gallayanee Parkatt
Commissioner

Appointed: May 11, 2015

Skills, competence and experience:
Ms. Gallayanee Parkatt obtained
a Bachelor’s Degree in Accounting from
University of the Thai Chamber of
Commerce, a Master’s Degree in
Business Administration-Finance from
National Institute of Development
Administration, a Master’s Degree
(By Research) and Doctorate Degree
in Finance from RMIT University.

Other roles: At present, she holds
a number of significant positions such
as Chairman of the Executive Board
of Doctor of Business Administration
Program, Sukhothai Thammathirat Open
University, an expert on research in
Financial and Accounting, an Academic
Expert on Evaluation of Academic
Performance on Determining as
Associate Professor and Assistant
Professor in public and private universities,
Independent Director and Audit Committee
of TV Thunder Plc. and SPC Precious
Metal Co., Ltd.
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Mr. Yokporn Tantisawetrat
Commissioner

Appointed: January 23, 2016 -
November 3, 2016 (the first term)
November 4, 2016 (the second term)

Skills, competence and experience:
Mr. Yokporn Tantisawetrat obtained
a Bachelor’s Degree in Economics
from Chulalongkorn University and
a Master’s Degree in the same field
from Thammasat University. He held
various positions, including Senior
Execut ive Vice President, Chief
Executive Office and Risk Officer
of Siam Commercial Bank Plc., Director
of SCB Securities Co., Ltd., Director
of Vinasiam Bank (Vietnam), Director
of Thai Rating and Information Services
Co., Ltd., Director of TRIS Rating
Co., Ltd.

Other roles: Currently, he is Chairman
of Audit Committee and Director of
Banpu Power Plc. and Director of
TMB Bank Plc.

Mr. Chanin Vongkusolkit 
Commissioner

Appointed: November 4, 2016

Skills, competence and experience:
Mr. Chanin Vongkusolkit obtained
a Bachelor’s Degree in Economics
from Thammasat University and an MBA
in Finance from St. Louis University.
He was Director, Chief Executive Officer
and Senior Executive Officer of Banpu Plc.

Other roles: His current key posts
include Chairman of Banpu Plc., Director
of Banpu Power Plc., Director of The
Erawan Group Plc., Director of Mitr Phol
Sugar Corp. Ltd., Advisor to Chairman
of the Thai Listed Companies Association,
Advisor of the Federation of the Thai
Capital Market Organizations, Council
of Trustees and Board of Directors
of Thailand Development Research
Institute, Director of Private Sector
Collective Action Coalition Against
Corruption Council (CAC), President
of the Foundation for Better Life, Director
of  Faculty of Economics and Faculty
of Archi tecture and Planning of
Thammasat University.

Ms. Pranee Phasipol
Commissioner

Appointed: May 11, 2015

Skills, competence and experience:
Ms. Pranee Phasipol obtained a Bachelor’s
and a Master’s Degree in Accounting
from Thammasat University. She has
versatile experiences in accounting and
held various key positions in the Ministry
of Commerce, including Inspector
General, Commercial Advisor, Deputy
Director-General of Department of
Business Development and Department
of Insurance. She also served in key
positions of other organizations such
as Advisor of the Thai General Insurance
Association, Advisor to member of
Federation of Accounting Professions.

Other roles: Her current posts include
Chairman of the Sub-committee on
Determining Ethics of Profession of
Federation of Accounting Professions,
Member of the Life Insurance Fund,
Member of the Sub-committee on
Monitoring and Evaluation of the Support
Arts and Crafts International Centre
of Thailand, Independent Director and
Member of the Audit Committee of SCI
Electric Plc., Thaivivat Insurance Plc.
and Dusit Thani Plc.



71

FemaleMale

27%

73%

Gender

Public & Private
Sectors

Private Sector

Public Sector

Experience

18%

27%

55%

Committee / Sub-committee

Audit Committee

Good Governance and
Remuneration Sub-committee

Legal Sub-committee
(Consulting)

Legal Sub-committee
(Litigation)

Appellate Sub-committee

Mr. Rapee Sucharitakul
SEC Secretary-General
Commissioner and Secretary

Appointed: May 1, 2015

Skills, competence and experience:
Mr. Rapee Sucharitakul holds an LLB
(with honors) from University of Essex,
and an LLM in Commercial Law from
University of Bristol. He has extensive
experiences in capital and financial
markets. His previous management
and policymaking positions in public
and private organizations include Member
of the Board of Governors of the Stock
Exchange of Thailand, Director of the
Thailand Futures Exchange, Director
of the Federation of Thai Capital Market
Organizations, Director of the Association
of Investment Management Companies,
Director of the Thai Institute of Directors
Association (IOD), Board Member of the
Thai Financial Planners Association,
Project Director of the Private Sector
Collective Action Coalition Against
Corrupt ion (CAC),  Di rector  of
KASIKORNBANK Plc., Executive
Chairman of KASIKORN Securities Plc.,
Executive Chairman of KASIKORN
Asset Management Company Limited,
Advisor to President of Muang Thai Life
Assurance Plc.  and Independent
Director of Big C Supercenter Plc.

Other roles: Concurrently, he is Member
of the State Enterprise Policy Committee,
Member of the Financial Institutions
Policy Committee, Member of Insurance
Commission (Office of Insurance
Commission), Director of the National
Savings Fund, and Director of the
Government Pension Fund.

Mr. Pailin Chuchottaworn
Commissioner

Appointed: November 4, 2016

Skills, competence and experience:
Mr. Pailin Chuchottaworn obtained
a Bachelor’s Degree in Chemical
Engineering (1   Class Honors) from
Chulalongkorn University, Master’s and
Doctorate Degrees in the same field
from Tokyo Institute of Technology.
He had served in many significant
positions, including President and Chief
Executive of PTT Plc., Chairman of
IRPC Plc., Director of the Thai Listed
Companies Association, Honorary
Member of the National Research
Council of Thailand, Advisor to Alternative
Energy Foundation Institute of Thailand,
Director of the Federation of Thai
Industries, Director of the National
Science and Technology Development
Agency, Ministry of Science and
Technology, Managing Director of the
Petroleum Institute of Thailand, Director
of Thailand Business Council for
Sustainable Development of Thailand
Environment Institute.

Other roles: He is now Director of the
Thai Institute of Director Association,
Expert Member of Public Agency
Development Committee, Director of
Bangkok Bank Plc. In an academic
area, he is Founder and Chairman of
Vidyasirimedhi Institute and Kamnoetvidya
Science Academy, Expert Member
of Mahidol University Council, Advisor
to Sasin Graduate Institute of Business
Administration and Director of Faculty
of Economics, Thammasat Universiry.

st
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Mr. Krisada Chinavicharana
Director-General, Fiscal Policy Office
Board Member

Appointed: June 27, 2014

Skills, competence and experience:
Mr. Krisada Chinavicharana obtained
an LLB from Chulalongkorn University
and an MBA from the University of
New Haven. He served in several key
positions at the Fiscal Policy Office,
Ministry of Finance, including Advisor
in Economics and Financial Affairs,
Deputy Director of Fiscal Policy Office,
Director of the Bureau of Legal Affairs,
the First Secretary (Economic and
Financial Minister), Office of Economic
and Financial Affairs, Royal Thai Embassy,
London. In other organizations, he was
Board of Directors of Krungthai Bank Plc.,
Board Member of the Electricity Generating
Authority of Thailand, Board Member
of Aeronautical Radio of Thailand Ltd.
and Board of Directors of Bangkok
Commercial Asset Management Co., Ltd

Other roles: His current posts also
include Board Member of the Bank
of Thailand, Member of the Board
of Bangchak Petroleum Plc., Member
of National Reform Steering Assembly.

Ms. Tipsuda Thavaramara
SEC Deputy Secretary-General
Board Member

Appointed: January 1, 2016

Skills, competence and experience:
Ms. Tipsuda Thavaramara obtained
a Bachelor of Arts in Mathematics
(magna cum laude) from Harvard
University, and a Master of Business
Administrat ion (wi th dist inct ion)
from Wharton School, University of
Pennsylvania. With extensive experience
in capital market, she has made
contributions to significant developments
in many areas including laying out the
groundwork for the establishment of the
Thai Bond Market Association, drafting
the Derivatives Act, supporting the
launch of Thailand Futures Exchange
and formulating the strategic plan for
ASEAN capital market integration.

Other roles: Concurrently, she holds
several policy and advisory level positions
including Member of the Sub-committee
to draft Thai land Capital Market
Development Plan, Member of the
Committee on Regional Capital Market
Integration, Member of the Committee
to purpose Legal Amendment for
FinTech Development, Member of the
Pension Reform Committee and Member
of the Capital Market Clearing and
Settlement Sub-committee.

Mr. Rapee Sucharitakul
SEC Secretary-General
Chairman

Appointed: May 1, 2015

Skills, competence and experience:
Mr. Rapee Sucharitakul holds an LLB
(with honors) from University of Essex,
and an LLM in Commercial Law from
University of Bristol. He has extensive
experiences in capital and financial
markets. His previous management
and policymaking positions in public
and private organizations include Member
of the Board of Governors of the Stock
Exchange of Thailand, Director of the
Thailand Futures Exchange, Director
of the Federation of Thai Capital Market
Organizations, Director of the Association
of Investment Management Companies,
Director of the Thai Institute of Directors
Association (IOD), Board Member of the
Thai Financial Planners Association,
Project Director of the Private Sector
Collective Action Coalition Against
Corrupt ion (CAC),  Di rector  of
KASIKORNBANK Plc., Executive
Chairman of KASIKORN Securities Plc.,
Executive Chairman of KASIKORN
Asset Management Company Limited,
Advisor to President of Muang Thai Life
Assurance Plc. and Independent
Director of Big C Supercenter Plc.

Other roles: Concurrently, he is Member
of the State Enterprise Policy Committee,
Member of the Financial Institutions
Policy Committee, Member of Insurance
Commission (Office of Insurance
Commission), Director of the National
Savings Fund, and Director of the
Government Pension Fund.



Ms. Pornanong  Budsaratragoon
Board Member

Appointed: April 8, 2014

Skills, competence and experience:
Ms. Pornanong Budsaratragoon
obtained a BBA in Quantitative Analysis
from Chulalongkorn University, an MBA
in Management Information System
from University of Dallas and a DBA
in Finance from Chulalongkorn University.
Her previous posts include Chairman
of the Audit Committee and the
Sub-committee of the Clearing House,
the Agricultural Futures Exchange
of Thailand.

Other roles: At present, she serves
as Head of the Banking and Finance
Department and Chairman of the
Committee of Master of Science Program
in Corporate Governance, Faculty
of Commerce and Accountancy,
Chulalongkorn University, Chairman
of the Sub-committee on Consideration
of Regulations on Issuance and Offering
of Debt Securities, Derivatives and
Structured Products, Member of the
Sub-committee on Consideration
of Regulation on Asset Management,
Member of the Education Committee
of the Thai Financial Planner Association,
Expert Member of the Working Group
on Knowledge Requirements and
Investment Consultant Curriculum,
Member of the Working Group on
Examination and Assessment Standards,
the Stock Exchange of Thailand.

Ms. Suchada Pavananunt
Board Member 

Appointed: since April 8, 2014

Skills, competence and experience:
Ms. Suchada Pavananunt obtained
a BBA in Finance and Banking from
Chulalongkorn University and a Master’s
Degree in Public and Private Management,
School of Public Administration, National
Institute of Development Administration.
She has versati le experiences in
securities and finance companies and
held various key positions, such as,
President and Chief Executive Officer
of Thanachart Fund Management Co., Ltd.,
Vice President of Marketing and Deposit
Services of Thanachart Capital Plc.,
Assistant Manager of  Business
Development of Thanachart Securities Plc.

Other roles: At present, she serves
as Chairman of the Sub-Committee
on Consideration of Regulations on
Supervision and Development of Sales
Conduct, Chairman of the Committee
of  Disciplinary Personnel  in  the
Capital Market Business, Member
of the Sub-Committee on Consideration
of Regulation on Property Funds,
Infrastructure Funds and Real Estate
Investment Trusts.

Ms. Saranya Chindavanig
Board Member

Appointed: January 18, 2016

Skills, competence and experience:
Ms. Saranya Chindavanig obtained
a BBA in Accounting from Thammasat
University, an MBA from Eastern Michigan
University. She had served in significant
positions, including Advisor of the
Thai Listed Companies Association,
Advisor of the Thai Institute of Directors
Association, Audit Committee Member
of Thai Wacoal Plc. and Zen Corporation
Group Co., Ltd., Director of Corporate
Finance Department and Accounting
Supervision Department of the Securities
and Exchange Commission.

Other roles: Currently, she is Chairman
of the Sub-committee on Consideration
of Regulations on Issuance and Offering
of Equity Instruments and Governance
of Securities Issuing Companies,
Chairman of the Sub-committee on
Consideration of Regulations on
Business Takeovers, Member of the
Sub-committee on Consideration of
Regulations on Supervision of Business
and Market Intermediaries.
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Mr. Ekachai Chongvisal
Board Member 

Appointed: January 18, 2016

Skills, competence and experience:
Mr. Ekachai Chongvisal obtained
a Bachelor’s Degree in Engineering
(honors) from Chulalongkorn University,
an MBA in Finance with Beta Gamma
Sigma (honor society) from Indiana
University, Bloomington. He held various
positions, including Chief Executive
Officer and Director of the Association
of Investment Management Companies
(AIMC), Member of the Capital Market
Committee of the Bank of Thailand,
Independent Director of the Thai Bond
Market Association, Director of Fitch
Rating (Thailand) Co., Ltd., Director
of TISCO Asset Management Co., Ltd.,
Director of SCB Asset Management
Co., Ltd. and Director of Home Product Plc.

Other roles: He is now Chairman
of the Sub-committee on Consideration
of Regulations on Property Funds,
Infrastructure Funds and Real Estate
Investment Trusts, Chairman of the
Sub-committee on Consideration
of Regulations on Asset Management,
Member of  the Sub-commit tee
on Consideration of Regulations
on Issuance and Offering of Debt
Securities, Derivatives and Structured
Products.

Female

Male

57%

43%

Gender

14%

29%

57%

Experience

Public & Private
Sectors

Private Sector

Public Sector
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Mr. Rapee Sucharitakul
Secretary – General

Ms. Nataya Niyamanusorn
Assistant Secretary – General

Ms. Paralee Sukonthaman
Assistant Secretary – General

Ms. Duangmon Chuengsatiansup
Assistant Secretary – General

Ms. Waratchya Srimachand
Senior Assistant Secretary – General

Mr. Sakkarin Ruamrangsri
Assistant Secretary – General

Mr. Somchai Pongpattanasin
Assistant Secretary – General

Mr. Prakid Punyashthiti
Senior Assistant Secretary – General

Ms. Tipsuda Thavaramara
Deputy Secretary – General
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Secretary – General

Mr. Rapee Sucharitakul

SEC Board

Capital Market
Supervisory Board

Assistant Secretary – General

Ms. Nataya Niyamanusor

Capital Market
Policy

Research Department
Mr. Chatchai Thisadoldilok

Strategy and Planning
Department

Mr. Ekkapon Sawaengsri

Enterprise Risk
Management Department

Ms. Sittasri Nakasiri

Information and
Communication Technology

Department
Mr. Kumpol Sontanarat

International Relations
Center

Ms. Archari Suppiroj

Assistant Secretary – General

Ms. Paralee Sukonthaman

Intermediaries and
Market

Market Supervision
Department

Ms. Praoporn Senanarong

Intermediaries Policy and
Development Department
Ms. Charuphan Intararoong

Broker-Dealer Supervision
and Inspection Department

Ms. Pattanaporn Tripitat

Intermediaries Licensing
and SME Financing

Department
Ms. Sarica Apiwatthakakul

Assistant Secretary – General

Ms. Duangmon
Chuengsatiansup

Investment
Management

Investment Management
Policy and Development

Department
Ms. Jomkwan Kongsakul

Investment Management
Supervision and Inspection

Department
Ms. Oratai Nimtavorn

Sales Conduct Supervision
and Development Department
Ms. Saovanee Suwannarong

Senior
Assistant Secretary – General

Ms. Waratchya Srimachand

Listed Company and
Corporate Governance

Corporate Monitoring
Department

Mr. Thawatchai Pittayasophon

Corporate Governance
Department

Ms. Somsuda Tanchanpongs

Finance and General
Administration Department

Ms. Sureerut Suradecha

Assistant Secretary – General

Mr. Sakkarin Ruamrangsri

Legal

Legal Counsel and
Development Department
Ms. Suwanna Chuerboonchai

Securities Regulation
Department 1

Ms. Jantima Phienveja

Securities Regulation
Department 2

Ms. Namtip Synsukpermpoon

Assistant Secretary – General

Mr. Somchai Pongpattanasin

Enforcement

Enforcement Department
Mr. Anek Yooyuen

Litigation Department
Ms. Supa Thamthitivat

Administrative Appeals
Center

Mr. Siwakorn Karnasuta

Senior
Assistant Secretary – General

Mr. Prakid Punyashthiti

Fund Raising

Corporate Finance –
Equity and Infrastructure

Department
Ms. Sirivipa Supantanet

Corporate Finance 
- Equity Product

Department
Ms. Sumalee Bumrungchatudom

Corporate Finance
– Debt Department

Ms. Nidaporn Assawateerakiat

Accounting Supervision
Department

Mr. Thawatchai Kiatkwankul

Deputy Secretary – General

Ms. Tipsuda Thavaramara

Corporate Affairs
Department

Mr. Pariya Techamuanvivit

Human Resources
Department

Mr. Anute Pooaree

Assistant Secretary – General

Ms. Nataya Niyamanusorn

Audit Committee

Governance
and Remuneration
Sub-Committee

Internal Audit Department
Ms. Usana Chanama

Internal Management and Business Affairs
As of 31 December 2016
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1.2  Capital Market Supervisory Board
The Capital Market Supervisory Board as stipulated

in the Securities and Exchange Act consists of 1) the
Secretary-General as Chairman 2) the Deputy Secretary
-General appointed by the Secretary-General 3) the
Director-General of the Fiscal Policy Office or the appointed
Deputy Director-General, and 4) not more than four expert
members appointed by the Minister of Finance upon the
Selection Committee’s recommendation.  At least two of the
expert members must have experiences managing listed
company or securities company. The expert members’ term
in office is four years and shall not hold the office for more
than two consecutive terms.

2. Check and Balance Mechanism

       To support operation of the SEC Board to ensure
transparency, fairness and integrity, the SEC Board has
appointed committees and sub-committees to be important
mechanism of check and balance.

2.1  Audit Committee
Audit Committee is responsible for supervising

and reviewing of the SEC management in accordance
with the Securities and Exchange Act, other laws related
to the capital market, other applicable laws and regulations
and the SEC governance, including code of ethics and
anti-corruption policy. The Audit Committee also provides
independent recommendations on good governance,
risk management and internal control. This is to ensure
the SEC operation is appropriate, efficient and effective.

1. Board Structure

        Pursuant to the Securities and Exchange Act B.E. 2535,
the SEC is comprised of two boards:

• The SEC Board is entrusted with policymaking
for overall market supervision and development including
appointment of various sub-committees to support the
operation of the SEC Board.

• The Capital Market Supervisory Board is in
charge of issuance of rules and regulations pertaining to 
business undertaking in the capital market and reports the  
performance to the SEC Board.

The SEC Office operates in accordance with policies
assigned by the SEC Board and the Capital Market Supervisory
Board with the Secretary-General as the highest chief executive.

1.1  SEC Board
The SEC Board structure as stipulated in the

Securities and Exchange Act consists of 1) Chairman
-appointed by the Cabinet 2) Three ex-officio members
comprising the Permanent Secretary of the Ministry
of Finance, the Permanent Secretary of the Ministry of
Commerce and the Governor of the Bank of Thailand
3) Four to six expert members by the nomination of the
Selection Committee and appointed by the Minister of Finance,
at least one each in the legal, accounting and finance fields
and 4) Secretary-General of the SEC as board member
and secretary. The Chairman, the expert members and
the Secretary-General shall hold the office for a four-year
term and may be re-appointed, but not more than two
consecutive terms.
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           The Securities and Exchange Act stipulates that
the Audit Committee consists of not less than three but not
more than five members.  Of this total, at least two members
must be expert members of the SEC Board and appointed
member shall be competent or have experiences in
accounting, finance, law or capital market. The term of office
for the Audit Committee shall be as follows:
      (1) Audit Committee that is SEC Board including expert
member shall have term of office that is identical to their
terms on the SEC Board.
      (2) The others excluding SEC Board shall hold office
for a term of four years and may be re-appointed, but not
more than two consecutive terms.

      2.2 Good Governance and Remuneration
            Sub-committee 
            The Good Governance and Remuneration Sub-
committee’s duty is to suggest policy and guidelines for
development of good governance of the organization, including
guidelines or criteria for the nomination, remuneration and
evaluation of the SEC Board, the Capital Market Supervisory
Board, the Sub-committee and the Secretary-General.
The Sub-committee consists of three members from the
SEC Board, each holding the office for a two-year term.

3.  The Meeting Attendance of the Boards
and Sub-committees

      The SEC Board holds meeting at least once a month
according to the pre-scheduled annual meeting calendar.
The Secretary-General presents draft meeting agendas to
the Chairman for approval. Once approved, the drafts will
be placed on the meeting agenda and submitted to the
SEC Board for consideration not less than seven days prior
to the meeting. In order to make careful and prudent decision,

the SEC Board may ask for additional information from the
board’s secretary and also attend training programs related
to the capital market.
      In the meeting, the Chairman of the SEC Board shall
chair the meeting. In case the Chairman is unable to attend
the meeting, the Permanent Secretary of the Ministry of
Finance shall assume the duties of chairing the meeting.
      The members attending the meeting shall not be less
than half to constitute a quorum. Members of management
may attend the meeting on relevant topics. Any member
of the SEC Board having conflicts of interest in any agenda
item is required to declare such conflict in advance and
excluded from participating in the consideration of such
item agenda.  
      In this respect, the meetings of the Capital Market
Supervisory Board, the Audit Committee and the appointed
Sub-committees follow similar guidelines.
      Detai ls of the meetings of each Board and the
Sub-committees for the year 2016 are as follows:
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Name SEC Board
Audit

Committee

Appellate

Sub-committee

Good Governance

and Remuneration

Sub-committee

Remarks

Total Attendance/ No. of Meetings

Chairman

Ex-officio
Members

Mr. Voravidh Champeeratana

Permanent Secretary
of the Ministry of Finance
- Mr. Somchai Sujjapongse

Permanent Secretary of
the Ministry of Commerce
- Ms. Chutima Bunyapraphasara

- Ms. Wiboonlasana Ruamraksa

Governor of the Bank
of Thailand
- Mr. Veerathai Santiprabhob

12/12

9/12

9/9

2/3

11/12

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

9/9

Holding office until
September 30,2016
Holding office from
October 1, 2016

In attendance 11 times,
the delegate was sent to
attend the meeting one
time. In addition, he chaired
the Good Governance
and Remunerat ion
Sub-committee until
November 30, 2016

Position



Expert
Members

Member
and Secretary

Ms. Sopawadee Lertmanaschai

Mr. Vikrom Koompirochana

Mr. Somchai Kuvijitsuwan

Mr. Sarawut Benjakul

Ms. Gallayanee Parkatt

Ms. Pranee Phasipol

Mr. Yokporn Tantisawetrat

Mr. Chanin Vongkusolkit

Mr. Pailin Chuchottaworn

SEC Secretary General
- Mr. Rapee Sucharitakul

10/11

1/1

11/11

12/12

12/12

11/12

11/11

1/1

1/1

12/12

11/11

1/1

11/11

-

1/1

1/1

11/11

-

-

-

-

-

3/3

-

-

-

1/1

-

-

-

6/8

-

-

9/9

-

-

7/7

-

-

-

Holding office until
November 3, 2016
Holding office until
January 22, 2016
Holding office until
November 3, 2016

Holding office from
January 23 -
November 3, 2016
(the first term)
Holding office from
November 4, 2016
(the second term)
Holding office from
November 4, 2016
Holding office from
November 4, 2016
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Name SEC Board
Audit

Committee

Appellate

Sub-committee

Good Governance

and Remuneration

Sub-committee

Remarks

Total Attendance/ No. of Meetings

Position



Chairman

Ex-officio Members

Expert Members

SEC Secretary-General 
- Mr. Rapee Sucharitakul

SEC Deputy Secretary-General
- Ms.Tipsuda Thavaramara
Director General, Fiscal Policy
Office
- Mr. Krisada Chinavicharana

Mr. Kampanart Lohacharoenvanich
Mr. Pratib Yongvanich
Ms. Pornanong Budsaratragoon
Ms. Suchada Pavananunt
Ms. Saranya Chindavang
Mr. Ekachai Chongvisal

13/14

13/14

12/14

-
-

14/14
13/14
14/14
13/14

 

Holding office from January 1, 2016

In attendance 12 t imes, the
delegate was sent to attend the
meeting one time.
Holding office until January 17, 2016
Holding office until January 17, 2016

Holding office from January 18, 2016
Holding office from January 18, 2016
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Position Name Remarks
Total attendance/
No. of meetings

3.2 Capital Market Supervisory Board
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4.  Remuneration of the Boards and Executives

          4.1 Details of the remuneration of the boards and sub-committees
                The Securities and Exchanges Act contains provisions that the SEC Board and the sub-committees appointed
by the SEC Board shall receive compensation as specified by the Minister of Finance. The Capital Market Supervisory
Board and the sub-committees appointed by the Capital Market Supervisory Board shall receive compensation as specified
by the SEC Board. The details of the remuneration are as follows:

Remuneration of Committee

Remuneration SEC Board Capital Market
Supervisory Board

Audit
Committee

Legal
Sub-committee

Good Governance
and Remuneration
Sub-committee/
Appel la te  Sub-
committee/Draft
Notification Sub-
committee/Other
Sub-committees

Monthly stipend

Attendance fee/meeting

Additional monthly
remuneration paid to
expert members of 
the Capital Market
Supervisory Board
who fall under the
prescribed condition

Chair

50,000

25,000

-

Member

40,000

20,000

-

Chair

50,000

25,000

-

Member

40,000

20,000

140,000

Chair

50,000

-

-

Member

40,000

-

-

Chair

-

10,000

-

Member

-

8,000

-

Chair

-

5,000

-

Member

-

4,000

-

unit : baht

Remarks      The prescribed condition means being an expert member who has been affected by the restriction of working in any

                    company or organization under the supervision of the SEC, such in which case an expert member must be able to perform

                    additional work under the prescribed conditions.

                    The  resolution of  the SEC Board No. 10/2559 on October 6, 2015 has adjusted the benefit from 100,000 to 140,000 baht   

                    because there was no adjustment for a long time

1/

2/

1/

2/



84

Remuneration of SEC Board

unit: baht

Name Position

Annual Remuneration

Other Sub-
committees

Audit
Committee

SEC Board Total

Mr. Voravidh Champeeratana

Mr. Somchai Sujjapongse

Ms. Chutima Bunyapraphasara

Ms. Wiboonlasana Ruamraksa

Mr. Veerathai Santiprabhob

Mr. Sarawut Benjakul

Ms. Gallayanee Parkatt

Ms. Pranee Phasipol

Ms. Sopawadee Lertmanaschai

Mr. Vikrom Koompirochana

Mr. Somchai Kuvijitsuwan

Mr. Yokporn Tantisawetrat

Mr. Chanin Vongkusolkit

Mr. Pailin Chuchottaworn

Mr. Rapee Sucharitakul

Chairman

Member

Member

Member

Member

Member

Member

Member

Member

Member

Member

Member

Member

Member

Member

and Secretary

900,000.00

660,000.00

540,000.00

160,000.00

680,000.00

720,000.00

720,000.00

700,000.00

604,000.00

48,387.10

624,000.00

671,612.90

96,000.00

96,000.00

720,000.00

-

-

-

-

-

-

40,000.00

40,000.00

404,000.00

28,387.10

505,000.00

409,862.07

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

45,000.00

146,000.00

-

60,000.00

24,000.00

-

15,000.00

33,000.00

-

-

-

900,000.00

660,000.00

540,000.00

160,000.00

725,000.00

866,000.00

760,000.00

800,000.00

1,032,000.00

76,774.20

1,144,000.00

1,114,474.97

96,000.00

96,000.00

720,000.00
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Remuneration of Capital Market Supervisory Board

unit: baht

Name Position

Annual Remuneration

Additional
Remuneration

Other Sub-
committees 

Capital Market
Supervisory

Board
Total

Mr. Rapee Sucharitakul

Ms. Tipsuda Thavaramara

Mr. Krisada Chinavicharana

Mr. Kampanart Lohacharoenvanich

Mr. Pratib Yongvanich

Ms. Pornanong Budsaratragoon

Ms. Suchada Pavananunt

Ms. Saranya Chindavanig

Mr. Ekachai Chongvisal

Chairman

Member

Member

Member

Member

Member

Member

Member

Member

925,000.00

740,000.00

700,000.00

21,935.48

21,935.48

760,000.00

740,000.00

738,064.52

718,064.52

-

-

83,000.00

-

-

52,000.00

84,000.00

40,000.00

40,000.00

-

-

-

54,838.71

54,838.71

1,277,333.34

1,277,333.34

1,196,688.18

1,196,688.18

925,000.00

740,000.00

783,000.00

76,774.19

76,774.19

2,089,333.34

2,101,333.34

1,974,752.70

1,954,752.70

         4.2 Details of the remuneration of the management
               In 2016, the SEC management consisting of Secretary-General, Deputy Secretary-General, Senior Assistant
Secretary-Generals and Assistant Secretary-Generals, altogether nine persons, received compensations including salaries,
provident fund, car allowance, medical expenses and employee benefit obligations totaling 66,013,478.55 baht, compared
with 79,037,636.38 baht in 2015. The decrease was due in part to the leaving of two Deputy Secretary-Generals and the
appointment of another Assistant Secretary-General.
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Organizational Management
and Human Resources

Organizational Management

         Organizational restructuring in 2016 brought us into better
alignment with our corporate vision. It also accommodated
the SEC’s expanded scope of duties to oversee agricultural
futures, to promote the use of financial technology in the
securities industry, to oversee new FinTech business models
in the capital market and crowdfunding portals that are under
the SEC’s supervision.  Other functions bolstered included
information management, database development, and in-depth
analysis of the capital market to support policy-making
and market development.  With our emphasis on being an
internationally-accepted regulator embodying good corporate
governance, a specially designated unit has been tasked
with work process redesign, including construction of an
Enterprise Architecture (EA) to enhance organizational
management effectiveness and sustainability.

         In addition, the SEC overhauled job descriptions across
the entire organization to better reflect roles and responsibilities,
tasks handled, and their importance to the organizational
structure. Career path of employees has also been redefined.

Staff Development and Training

         Staff development programs ensure that employees
can perform their work duties to meet job expectations
and consistently contribute to the operations of the SEC.
Employees will learn and make progress accordingly.
Several programs were implemented in 2016 as summarized
below:

1) Embedding corporate values
         The SEC implemented the “Live the Values” program
to promote our corporate values: “Openness,” “Insightfulness,”
“Collaboration,” and “Integrity.” These are the core foundation
to many other values. The program consisted of two parts:
         1. Managers as role-model of corporate values:
This process begins with inner character change conducted
through life coaching sessions, both one-on-one and
group coaching, to bring out executives’ positive energy
and potential. We then encourage incorporation of the
organization’s vision and values into each manager’s life goals.
Their actions subsequently radiate the organization’s corporate
values and inspire others.

“Live the Values”  project to drive corporate values  “Openness”
“Insightfulness”“Collaboration” “Integrity” 
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         2. Staff inclusiveness: Our “Let’s Talk Together”
activities open the floor for candid conversations to take
place in an informal setting with a friendly ambience. We also
held seminar workshops on work issues across departments
or function lines.  Senior executives served as corporate value
role models and influencers to create a positive atmosphere
and facilitate the sharing of experiences that affirms the
organization’s values.

2) Staff knowledge and skills development
         Part of the staff development process includes providing
training to new employees; the curriculum has just been
revised and packed with more contents. Six important
areas of emphasis were:
         Section 1) Understanding the entire capital market
system and relationships between participants in the
ecosystem.
         Section 2) Vision, mission, and role of the SEC as
regulator.  Principles of supervision according to international
standards.

         Section 3) The working of the ecosystem and operations
of entities under supervision. This part reveals the connection
between the work of the SEC and relevant stakeholders
in the market, from end to end.
         Section 4) Operating guidelines for staff performing
regulatory work.
         Section 5) Leadership  development  through
strengthening of inner character and adaptive mindset.
         Section 6)  Understanding the SEC’s corporate values
and corporate culture. 
         In addition, the SEC is keenly aware of increased
usage of technology in the capital market and emergence
of FinTech. As such, we place great importance on preparing
staff to be able to supervise the use of technology in the
capital market. Equally desired is ability to keep up with
technology trends, yet avoid hindering businesses’ adoption
of technology, and ability to effectively managing risks.
The SEC subsequently established an IT School training
course in 2016 for this very purpose, aimed at executives
and staff who handle supervision work to keep up with
technology and receive the skills to effectively regulate
the use of technology in the capital market.

3) Leadership and Management Coaching
         The SEC continue to value the benefits of developing
leadership qualities through “life coaching” to bring out
a manager’s full potential, thereby producing positive change
for the organization particularly by serving as role models with
self-discipline in adopting corporate values. For middle
management, focus was on team management skills under
various scenarios, tutoring skills, and giving effective feedback
through role play which can be later applied to real office
situations.

The executives and staffs shared experience about corporate values
in the activity  “Let’s Talk Together.”
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Remunerations, Career Advancement,
Staff Welfare, Safety, and Work-life Balance

         In the area of staff performance evaluations, the SEC
revised our Performance Management System to focus on
quality of work, improvements in skills or job effectiveness,
and adoption of corporate values.  Performance is linked
to remuneration and career advancement. The wage structure
was overhauled to ensure compensation is fair and reflects
economic and market conditions.
         On staff welfare and safety, the SEC ensures our
welfare program provides adequate security for staff. Priority
is given to health and safety. Specialized medical checkups
and first-aid training are also included.
         The SEC is concerned with staff’s work-life balance
and regularly arranges religious and social activities for staff
to celebrate major festivities.  Working hours and holiday
privileges contain flexibility, facilities are available for staff
to exercise, and various sports/recreational clubs are also
encouraged.
         Furthermore, we also conduct an employee
engagement review to obtain staff feedback about the
organization which we use to assess our human resource
management process and retention of quality staff.
The survey is conducted annually.

4) Raising Exposure and Elevating Work to International
Standards represent another development area being
accomplished through the following campaigns.
         High potential employees received scholarship support
to study at a leading university abroad or job training through
secondment at a leading organization related to the financial
sector or capital market in the country or abroad.
         The SEC and the Asian Development Bank (ADB)
also co-hosted the Asia-Pacific Economic Cooperation
Financial Regulators Training Initiative Regional Seminar
(APEC FRTI) entitled “Regional Seminar on FinTech in Capital
Market : New Ecosystem for Market - Based Financial
Development  and Financial Inclusion” to prepare regulators
for the supervision of financial technology and innovations,
while simultaneously fostering closer cooperation between
regional and Asia-Pacific regulators. The SEC and regional
capital market regulators attended totaled 46 participants
from 12 countries.

The SEC together with the Asian Development Bank hosted a seminar
entitled “Regional Seminar on Fintech in Capital Market: New Ecosystem
for Market-Based Financing Development & Financial Inclusion.”
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Human Resources Statistics 2016 2015 2014

1.   Number of employees 
       •    Male
       •    Female
2.   Employees classified by sex (%)
       •    Male 
       •    Female
3.   Employment classified by types of contracts (%) 
       •    Full-time employee 
       •    Permanent worker 
       •    Temporary worker 
       •    Outsourced
4.   Employment classified by levels (no. of staffs)
       •    Support officer
       •    Officer
       •    Assistant director
       •    Director
       •    Top management 
5.   Employment ratio classified by levels (%)
       •    Support officer
       •    Officer
       •    Assistant director
       •    Director
       •    Top management
6.   Number of new employees (no. of staffs)
       •    Male
       •    Female
7.   New employees classified by ages (no. of staffs) 
       •    Below 30 years old
       •    Between 30-50 years old
       •    Over 50 years old

584
172
412

30
71

92
6
1
2

60
355
133
27
9

10
61
23
5
1
77
24
53

35
38
3

539
164
375

30
70

91
6
1
2

60
317
127
26
9

11
59
23
5
2
45
20
25

32
13
-

518
151
367

30
70

91
5
2
2

60
302
127
20
9

12
58
25
4
2

48
14
34

28
19
1
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8.   New employees: total employee ratios (%)
9.   Number of employees whose term has ended (no. of staffs) 
       (resignation and retirement)
       •    Male
       •    Female
10. Number of employees whose term has ended classified by ages
       •    Below 30 years old
       •    Between 30-50 years old
       •    Over 50 years old
11. Resignation/retired employees: total employee ratio (%)
12. Average training hours of total employees 
      (no. of days/ year)
       •    Male
       •    Female
13.  Average training hours classified by employee’s level 
       (no. of days/ year)
       •    Support officer
       •    Officer
       •    Assistant director
       •    Director
       •    Top management
14.  Male-female employee wages ratio classified by      
       employment levels
       •    Support officer
       •    Officer
       •    Assistant Director
       •    Director
       •    Top management

13
32

15
17
32
12
19
1
6

29
29

1
8
8
22
19

5.22 : 1
2.55 : 1
2.25 : 1
2.09 : 1
1.78 : 1

9
28

7
21
28
14
11
5
5

25
25

1
5
3
22
19

5.50:1
2.40:1
2.21:1
2.91:1
0.94:1

9
34

8
26
34
22
11
1
7

12
12

4
6
6

22
23

5.55:1
2.50:1
2.34:1
2.30:1
0.94:1

Human Resources Statistics 2016 2015 2014





Financial Section



94

Report of the SEC Board on Internal Control 
over Financial Reporting
        The SEC Board oversees the operations of the Securities and Exchange Commission, Thailand (SEC) by having 
arranged the establishment and maintenance of appropriate, adequate and effective internal control over financial 
reporting in accordance with the criteria in the Internal Control-Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of 
Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO).  Such internal control serves to provide reasonable 
assurance that financial reports are accurate and complete and are prepared in accordance with the Thai Financial 
Reporting Standards, assets are safeguarded, and any weakness is detected on a timely basis to prevent material 
irregular operations.

        The SEC Board has assigned the Audit Committee, consisting of independent members, to review the quality 
of financial reports and the effectiveness of the internal control. The Audit Committee reports to the SEC Board and 
the Audit Committee’s Report addressing these matters also appears in the annual report.

        The SEC Board is of the opinion that the overall internal control over financial reporting of the SEC is effective 
and provides reasonable assurance on the reliability of the SEC’s financial statements for the year ended December 
31, 2016. 

(Mr. Voravidh Champeeratana)
              Chairman  

(Mr. Rapee Sucharitakul)
   Secretary-General
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The Audit Committee performs duties pursuant to the Securities and Exchange Act B.E. 2535 (1992) and the Audit 
Committee Charter. This includes supervision and oversight of the SEC Management in accordance with the Securities 
and Exchange Act, other laws related to the capital market, other applicable laws and regulations, and the SEC governance, 
which incorporates a code of ethics and an anti-corruption policy. The Audit Committee also provides independent 
recommendations on good governance, risk management, compliance and internal control. This is to ensure that the 
SEC operation is appropriate, efficient and effective. 

Appointed by the SEC Board, the Audit Committee* currently consists of three independent expert members 
of the SEC Board, namely Mr.Yokporn Tantisawetrat as chair, and Ms. Gallayanee Parkatt and Ms. Pranee Phasipol 
as members.

In 2016, the Audit Committee convened 12 scheduled meetings to ensure that the SEC Operation were implemented 
as recommended. Additionally, the Audit Committee had two sessions with the Risk Management Committee to assure 
that risk management and internal audit activities kept in line, and another exclusive session with the external auditors to 
enhance auditors’ independence.

The Audit Committee reported the quarterly performance and the annual results of the group performance 
evaluation to the SEC Board.

Note: * Since 1 December 2015. Previously, the Audit Committee consisted of 
                        Mr. Somchai Kuvijitsuwan as chair, and 
                        Mr. Vikrom Koompirochana and 
                        Ms. Sopawadee Lertmanaschai as members 

Audit Committee Report 2016



The Audit Committee’s performance 

         In supporting the SEC Board’s supervision and oversight of the SEC administration, the Audit Committee 
discharged key responsibilities in 2016 as follows:
  
1.    Non-IT Operational Audit

         1.1 Risk based Audit
         The audit report showed that the SEC placed an importance on risk management by strictly implementing 
a mitigation plan, i.e., hard and soft control setting over the SEC’s case management process to ensure compliance 
with the law and the code of conduct, improvement on the auditor approval process to increase the number of approved 
auditors. Plus, the Audit Committee recommended a review on the SEC compliance structure and related processes 
to manage compliance risk.

         1.2 Financial Audit
         The Audit Committee assessed the effectiveness of the internal control over 2016 financial reporting to assure 
that the SEC has established and maintained appropriate, adequate and effective internal control in accordance with 
the international practices stipulated by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission 
(“COSO”). The assessment results showed that the financial statements were accurate, and related information 
sufficiently disclosed. The Audit Committee recommended additional control to manage risk on the record keeping 
of the SEC’s private fund.

         1.3 SEC Governance
         The internal control assessment was conducted to ensure the SEC’s operational control was adequate and in 
compliance with the regulation of the State Audit Commission. The report concluded, although the SEC had implemented 
a mitigation plan in 2015, a new risk corporate strategy arising from technological innovation circumstances covered: 
1) needs for sufficient staff plan, 2) needs for staff training on knowledge and skills to accommodate the changing business 
environment, and 3) needs to have database management as a tool for the Management’s decision making. All of these 
have been incorporated into the mitigation plan.
        For the ethics assessment program, a survey was conducted on the enforcement staff. The results showed 
that the staff were aware of, and well understood, the ethics manual, conflicts of interest, duties and responsibilities
of the competent officer. The Audit Committee also reviewed the requirements on the reporting of securities and derivatives 
held by the Capital Market Supervisory Board Members. The objective of the revision was to waive the reporting on 
mutual fund investment since it was an investment with diversified risk in various financial instruments by a fund manager 
who made investment decisions according to the prospectus. 

96
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2.    IT Audit

         Annual compliance audit was conducted to ensure compliance with the Notification of the Electronic Transaction 
Commission on Policy and Practice Statement of Government Information Security B.E. 2553 (2010). The operating 
system assess control was chosen for the review. The results confirmed its compliance. The Audit Committee 
recommended an It security assessment by and external expert. 

3.    Internal Audit Supervision

         The Audit Committee supervised the internal audit performance pursuant to the annual audit plan and monitored 
whether their recommendation had been completed, which it had for the most part. The Audit Committee supervised 
the improvement of quality internal audit performance through the developmental plan suggested by Quality Assurance 
Review Program.
         Besides, the Audit Committee was informed and gave recommendations for the SEC operation which were: 
Quarterly Report on SEC Private Fund, SEC financial report, and SEC complaint handling report. There were also 
meetings with the Risk Management Committee to discuss and comment on the SEC’s enterprise risk management.
         In conclusion, the Audit Committee is of the opinion that the SEC operation has been in compliance with 
the applicable laws and regulations and a good corporate governance policy. The risk management has been 
functioned properly with an adequate, efficient control system and internal audit. Additionally, the SEC financial 
statements have been prepared in accordance with the Thai Financial Reporting Standards, appropriate accounting 
policies have been used, due care has been exercised in forming judgments and making reasonable estimations, 
and the information of significance has been adequately disclosed in the Notes to the financial statements.

(Mr. Yokporn  Tantisawetrat)
 Chair of the Audit Committee
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Report of the Auditor
To the Minister of Finance

Opinion
         The Office of the Auditor General (OAG) has audited the accompanying financial statements of the Securities 
and Exchange Commission (SEC), which comprise the statement of financial position as at December 31, 2016, 
the statement of comprehensive revenues and expenses, statement of changes in fund balances, statement of cash 
flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statement including a summary of significant accounting policies.  
         In the OAG’s opinion, the SEC’s financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position 
of SEC as at 31 December 2016, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance 
with Thai Financial Reporting Standards.

Basis for Opinion
         The OAG conducted its audit in accordance with Thai Standards on Auditing. The OAG’s responsibilities under 
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section 
of the OAG report. The OAG is independent of the SEC in accordance with the Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants 
as issued by the Federation of Accounting Professions under the Royal Patronage of His Majesty the King as relevant to 
the OAG’s audit of the financial statements, and the OAG have fulfilled other ethical responsibilities in accordance with 
the Code. The OAG believes that the audit evidence which the auditor has obtained is sufficient and appropriate 
to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Other Information
         Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprise the information included 
in annual report of the SEC, but does not include the financial statements and auditor’s report thereon. The annual 
report of the SEC is expected to be made available to the OAG after the date of this auditor’s report.
         The OAG’s opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and the OAG does not express 
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.
         In connection with the OAG audit of the financial statements, The OAG responsibility is to read the other information and, 
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or knowledge 
obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.
         When the OAG read the annual report of the SEC, if the OAG concludes that there is a material misstatement therein, 
The OAG is required to communicate the matter to those charged with governance.



99

Responsibilities of Management and Persons Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements
         Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance 
with Thai Financial Reporting Standard, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable 
the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
         In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the SEC’s ability to continue 
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of 
accounting unless management either intends to liquidate  the SEC or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative 
but to do so.
         The persons charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the SEC’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements
         The OAG’s objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are 
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes the OAG’s 
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance 
with Thai Standards on Auditing will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from 
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence 
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.
         As part of an audit in accordance with Thai Standards on Auditing, The OAG exercise professional judgement and 
maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. The OAG also:
        •  Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, 
              design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient 
              and appropriate to provide a basis for my opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting 
              from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, 
              misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
        •  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are 
              appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
              SEC’ internal control.
        •  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates 
              and related disclosures made by management.
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        •  Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based 
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that 
may cast significant doubt on the SEC’s ability to continue as a going concern. If the OAG conclude that a 
material uncertainty exists, the OAG required to draw attention in the OAG auditor’s report to the related 
disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify the OAG’s opinion. 

  The OAG’s conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of the OAG auditor’s report. 
              However, future events or conditions may cause the SEC to cease to continue as a going concern.
        •  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, Including the disclosure, 

and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves 
              fair presentation.

The OGA communicates with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope 
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that the OGA 
identifies during the OGA audit.

(Ms. Chitra  Mekapongpanh)
Director of Auditor Office

(Ms. Sarunya  Toneon)
 Auditor In-charge

Office of the Auditor General
February 20, 2017
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Securities and Exchange Commission, Thailand

Statement of Financial Position 
As at December 31, 2016

                                                                               

        
Assets 
Current assests 
  Cash and cash equivalents
  Short-term investments
  Accrued revenues
  Other current assets
         Total current assets
Non-current assets 
  Long-term investments
  Loans to employees
  Property, plant and equipment
  Intangible assets
  Other non-current assets
         Total non-current assets
Total assets

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements. 

 2016

 152,770,367.09
 419,103,223.10
 526,978,953.61
 18,000,719.55

 1,116,853,263.35

 5,086,373,910.51
 8,053,367.10

 1,049,422,113.10
 76,416,371.24

 105,800,382.32
 6,326,066,144.27
 7,442,919,407.62

Notes

4.1
4.2
4.3
4.4

4.5, 4.6

4.7
4.8

 2015

 132,507,169.19
 249,867,998.20
 458,784,929.44
 12,350,620.36

 853,510,717.19

 4,742,226,760.44
 8,204,022.10

 1,112,790,339.76
 63,834,774.37

 114,936,916.34
 6,041,992,813.01
 6,895,503,530.20

Unit: Baht
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Securities and Exchange Commission, Thailand

Statement of Financial Position 
As at December 31, 2016

                                                                            
  
      
Liabilities and funds 
Current liabilities 
  Accounts payable
  Accrued Expenses
  Payable - The Revenue Department
  Other current liabilities
        Total current liabilities
Non - current liabilities 
  Employee benefit obligations
  Other non-current liabilities
        Total non-current liabilities
Total liabilities 
Funds 
  Initial capital
  Special reserve for capital market development
  Reserve for a permanent parking building 
  General reserve
  Revenues over expenses
  Other components of funds
Total funds 
Total liabilities and funds 
 
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements. 

      

 2016

  27,418,277.92 
 49,162,241.98 
 5,284,520.34 
 1,206,154.72 

 83,071,194.96 

 379,223,435.77 
 15,198,216.29 

 394,421,652.06 
 477,492,847.02 

 1,250,532,337.10 
 1,516,134,505.94 

 500,000,000.00 
 3,156,225,382.99 

 467,957,111.09 
 74,577,223.48 

 6,965,426,560.60 
 7,442,919,407.62 

 Notes

4.9

4.10.1
4.10.2
4.10.3

4.11

 2015

  18,758,174.05 
 29,901,090.66 
 7,532,347.30 
 2,770,059.37 

 58,961,671.38 

 344,909,853.04 
 19,346,650.65 

 364,256,503.69 
 423,218,175.07 

 1,250,532,337.10 
 1,510,104,631.81 

 500,000,000.00 
 2,878,568,118.12 

 283,687,139.00 
 49,393,129.10 

 6,472,285,355.13 
 6,895,503,530.20 

(Mr. Rapee Sucharitakul)
Secretary-General

(Ms. Sureerut Suradecha)
Director, Finance and General Administration Department 

Unit: Baht
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Securities and Exchange Commission, Thailand

Statement of Comprehensive Revenues 
and Expenses
As at December 31, 2016
                                                                        
  
      
Revenues 
  Fee income
  Information service income
  Deposit interest income
  Investment income
  Contribution from the Stock Exchange of Thailand
  Other income
Total revenues 
 
Expenses 
  Human resources expenses
  Administrative expenses
  SEC Board and sub-committees remuneration
Total expenses 
Revenues over expenses from operating activities 
 
Revenues and expenses for capital market development 
  Revenues for capital market development
  Expenses for capital market development
Revenues over expenses for capital market development 
Revenues over expenses 
Other comprehensive revenues and expenses 
  Items that may be reclassified to profit or loss :
  Gain (loss) on change in value of available-for-sale investments
Other comprehensive revenues over (under) expenses for the year 
 
Total comprehensive revenues over expenses 
    

 2016 

  811,271,399.17 
 113,616.84 

 1,614,844.45 
 158,168,543.68 
 536,450,892.34 
 15,780,069.53 

 1,523,399,366.01 

 788,934,712.74 
 295,163,885.96 
 21,529,969.63 

 1,105,628,568.33 
 417,770,797.68 

 68,531,627.68 
 18,345,314.27 
 50,186,313.41 

 467,957,111.09 

 25,184,094.38 
 25,184,094.38 

 493,141,205.47 

 Notes

4.12.1

4.12.2
4.12.3

4.13

4.14

4.15

 2015 

   835,824,026.31 
 132,135.32 

 3,070,435.88 
 78,337,123.74 

 455,700,283.19 
 4,754,840.67 

 1,377,818,845.11 

 790,475,047.35 
 289,414,446.87 
 20,272,086.02 

 1,100,161,580.24 
 277,657,264.87 

 34,775,319.40 
 28,745,445.27 
 6,029,874.13 

 283,687,139.00 

(24,552,677.04)
(24,552,677.04)

 259,134,461.96 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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Cash flows from operating activities  
              Revenues over expenses 
              Adjustments to reconcile revenues over expenses to 
         net cash from (used in) operating activities
         Interest income
         Dividend income
         (Gain) Loss on sales of investments
         (Gain) Loss on sales of property, plant and equipment
         Depreciation and amortization
         Employee benefit expense
         Adjustment of charges CIP-Licensed software
  Revenues over expenses from operating activities 
         before changing in operating assets and liabilities
Operating assets (increase) decrease  
         Accrued revenues
         Advances
         Receivable - The Revenue Department
         Other current assets
         Loans to employees
         Receivable - contract deposit
         Short-term deposits with obligation (welfare)
Operating liabilities increase (decrease)  
         Accounts payable
         Accrued expenses
         Unearned revenues
         Payable - The Revenue Department
         Other current liabilities
         Payable - contract deposit
         Proceeds from deposit and guarantees
         Employee benefit obligations
Net cash flow from operating activities

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.  
  

 2016

   467,957,111.09

 
(109,238,555.82)
 (38,776,883.09)
 (86,651,227.72)

(1,990,982.13)
 97,032,456.97
 35,020,102.00

 25,876.77
 

 363,377,898.07
 

(66,216,839.29)
 557,804.13
(434,491.61)

(5,851,307.51)
 150,655.00 

(50.98)
 9,136,585.00

 
 1,056,755.00

 19,261,151.32
 181,562.50

(2,247,826.96)
(1,627,571.35)

(40,000.00)
(4,148,434.36)

(706,519.27)
 312,449,369.69

 2015

    283,687,139.00

(121,044,911.60)
(26,772,549.32)
 34,714,942.26

 334,604.64
 93,966,048.05
 70,262,066.00

 -        

 335,147,339.03

 17,483,494.27
(1,205,269.61)

 -        
(1,342,764.33)

 229,537.90
(215,884.58)

(5,491,724.00)

 309,829.06
 2,930,286.15

(50,000.00)
 2,246,247.20
 1,340,428.63

 50,000.00
(2,183,738.64)
(1,495,948.50)

 347,751,832.58

Securities and Exchange Commission, Thailand

Statement of Cash Flows      
For the year ended December 31, 2016

Unit: Baht
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Cash flows from investing activities  
  Proceeds from private funds
  Investments in private funds
  Proceeds from withdrawal fixed deposits
  Payment of investment in short-term bonds
  Interest received
  Dividend received
  Net proceeds from sale of investments
  Proceeds from sale of assets
  Acquisition of  property, plant and equipment
  Acquisition of intangible assets
  Payment of investment liabilities
  Payment of  property, plant and equipment
Net cash flow used in investing activities  
  
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents  
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of year  
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of year  
 
Supplemental cash flow information  
  Items not effecting cash flow 
        Payable for purchase securities
        Payable for purchase of property, plant and 
                     equipment and intangible assets
        Total

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

 

    
180,000,000.00

(497,858,480.23)
 -       

(169,235,224.90)
 107,261,370.94
 38,776,883.09
 86,651,227.72
 3,390,000.00

(18,271,001.82)
(14,303,220.00)
(7,769,190.26)

(828,536.33)
(292,186,171.79)

 20,263,197.90
 132,507,169.19
 152,770,367.09

 1,104,575.46
 15,096,500.00

 
16,201,075.46

 

-         
    (439,494,984.46)

 30,000,000.00
(34,867,998.20)

 121,209,694.04
 26,772,549.32
(34,714,942.26)

 100,000.00
(28,207,116.57)
(32,050,310.45)
(5,207,748.80)

(44,531,006.26)
(440,991,863.64)

(93,240,031.06)
 225,747,200.25
 132,507,169.19

 7,769,190.26
 4,676,913.31

 
12,446,103.57

20152016
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1.     General information

         The Securities and Exchange Commission, Thailand (SEC) was established on May 16, 1992 under the Securities 
and Exchange Act B.E. 1992 (SEA). Its responsibilities are to supervise and develop the Thai capital market for which 
the SEC has set policies and regulations in the following areas:
         -   Issuance and public offering of securities
         -   Securities businesses and related businesses
         -   Securities exchange, over-the-counter center, and institutions related to securities businesses
         -   Acquisition of securities for business takeovers
         -   Prevention of unfair securities trading practices
         The SEC is located at 333/3, Vibhavadi Road, Chom Phon, Chatuchak, Bangkok 10900.

2. Basis of preparation of financial statements

         2.1   Financial statements 
    The SEC’s financial statements have been prepared in compliance with the accounting standards of the 
Federation of Accounting Professions under the Accounting Act B.E 2000, including the accounting standards under 
the Accounting Professions Act B.E 2004 and interpretations of accounting standards promulgated by the Federation 
of Accounting Professions (FAP). The financial statements are stated at cost on an accrual basis except when stated 
otherwise. 
     The SEC’s financial performance are stated in the statement of comprehensive revenues and expenses 
because the SEC is a non-profit organization.

         2.2  New accounting standards, new financial reporting standards, new interpretations of financial reporting 
standards and amended accounting standards 
 The FAP has issued the accounting standards, financial reporting standards and interpretations of accounting 
standards and interpretations of financial reporting standards. Effective for periods beginning on or after January 1, 2017 
and the SEC has not applied the following accounting standards and interpretations before the standards come into effect:

Securities and Exchange Commission, Thailand

Notes to Financial Statements     
For the year ended December 31, 2016
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Accounting standards
TAS 1   
TAS 2  
TAS 7  
TAS 8

TAS 10
TAS 11
TAS 12
TAS 16
TAS 17
TAS 18
TAS 19
TAS 20

TAS 21
TAS 23
TAS 24
TAS 26
TAS 27
TAS 28
TAS 29
TAS 33
TAS 34
TAS 36
TAS 37
TAS 38
TAS 40
TAS 41

(revised 2016)  
(revised 2016)
(revised 2016)
(revised 2016)
  
(revised 2016)  
(revised 2016)  
(revised 2016)  
(revised 2016)
(revised 2016)
(revised 2016)
(revised 2016)
(revised 2016)

(revised 2016)
(revised 2016)
(revised 2016)
(revised 2016)
(revised 2016)
(revised 2016)
(revised 2016)
(revised 2016)
(revised 2016)
(revised 2016)
(revised 2016)
(revised 2016)
(revised 2016)
(revised 2016)

Presentation of Financial Statements
Inventories
Statement of Cash Flows
Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting 
Estimates and Errors
Events after the Reporting Period
Construction Contracts
Income Taxes
Property, Plant and Equipment
Leases 
Revenue
Employee Benefits
Accounting for Government Grants and
Disclosure of Government Assistance
The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates
Borrowing Costs
Related Party Disclosures
Accounting and Reporting by Retirement Benefit Plans
Separate Financial Statements
Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures
Financial Reporting in Hyperinflationary Economies 
Earnings per Share
Interim Financial Reporting
Impairment of Assets
Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets
Intangible Assets
Investment Property
Agriculture

1 January 2017
1 January 2017
1 January 2017
1 January 2017

1 January 2017
1 January 2017
1 January 2017
1 January 2017
1 January 2017
1 January 2017
1 January 2017
1 January 2017

1 January 2017
1 January 2017
1 January 2017
1 January 2017
1 January 2017
1 January 2017
1 January 2017
1 January 2017
1 January 2017
1 January 2017
1 January 2017
1 January 2017
1 January 2017
1 January 2017

Effective date
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Financial reporting standards
TFRS 2 
TFRS 3 
TFRS 4 
TFRS 5 

TFRS 6 
TFRS 8 
TFRS 10 
TFRS 11
TFRS 12 
TFRS 13

Interpretations of accounting standards
TSIC 10

TSIC 15
TSIC 25

TSIC 27

TSIC 29 
TSIC 31 
TSIC 32

Interpretations of financial reporting standards
TFRIC 1

TFRIC 4
TFRIC 5 

(revised 2016)  
(revised 2016)
(revised 2016)
(revised 2016)
  
(revised 2016)  
(revised 2016)  
(revised 2016)  
(revised 2016)
(revised 2016)
(revised 2016)

(revised 2016)

(revised 2016)
(revised 2016)

(revised 2016)

(revised 2016)
(revised 2016)
(revised 2016)

(revised 2016)

(revised 2016)
(revised 2016)

Share-based Payment
Business Combinations
Insurance Contracts
Non-current Assets Held for Sale and
Discontinued Operations
Exploration for and Evaluation of Mineral Resources
Operating Segments
Consolidated Financial Statements
Joint Arrangements
Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities
Fair Value Measurement

Government Assistance - No specific Relation
to Operating Activities
Operating Leases – Incentives
Income Taxes - Changes in the Tax Status of 
an Entity or its Shareholders  
Evaluating the Substance of Transactions 
involving the Legal Form of a Lease
Disclosures – Service Concession Arrangements
Revenue - Barter Transactions Involving Advertising Services   
Intangible Assets – Web Site Costs

Changes in Existing Decommissioning,
Restoration and Similar Liabilities
Determining whether an Arrangement contains a Lease
Rights to Interests Arising from
Decommissioning, Restoration and Environmental 
Rehabilitation Funds

1 January 2017
1 January 2017
1 January 2017
1 January 2017

1 January 2017
1 January 2017
1 January 2017
1 January 2017
1 January 2017
1 January 2017

1 January 2017

1 January 2017
1 January 2017

1 January 2017

1 January 2017
1 January 2017
1 January 2017

1 January 2017

1 January 2017
1 January 2017

Effective date

Effective date

Effective date
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Interpretations of financial reporting standards
TFRIC 7

TFRIC 10
TFRIC 12
TFRIC 13
TFRIC 14

TFRIC 15
TFRIC 17
TFRIC 18
TFRIC 20
TFRIC 21

Thai accounting standards 
TAS 104 
TAS 105 
TAS 107 

         The SEC management has determined that the above accounting standards, financial reporting standards and 
interpretations of accounting standards and interpretations of financial reporting standards will not significantly impact 
the financial statements being presented.

3.    Significant accounting policies

         3.1   Cash and cash equivalents
     Cash and cash equivalents are cash on hand, check in transit, bank deposits with high liquidity (without restrictions 
on use), short-term highly liquid investments that are due within a period of three months or less from the date of acquisition, 
are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are not subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value without 
investment purpose.

(revised 2016)

  
(revised 2016)
(revised 2016)
(revised 2016)
(revised 2016)

  
(revised 2016)  
(revised 2016)  
(revised 2016)
(revised 2016)
(revised 2016)

(revised 2016)
(revised 2016)
(revised 2016)

Applying the Restatement Approach under 
TAS 29 (revised 2016) Financial Reporting 
in Hyperinflationary Economies
Interim Financial Reporting and Impairment
Service Concession Arrangements
Customer Loyalty Program
The Limit on a Defined Benefit Asset, 
Minimum Funding Requirements and their 
Interaction under TAS 19 Employee Benefits
Agreements for the Construction of Real Estate
Distributions of Non-cash Assets to Owners
Transfers of Assets from Customers
Stripping Costs in the Production Phase of the Surface Mine
Levies

Accounting for Troubled Debt Restructuring
Accounting for Investments in Debt and Equity Securities
Financial Instruments Disclosure and Presentation

1 January 2017

1 January 2017
1 January 2017
1 January 2017
1 January 2017

1 January 2017
1 January 2017
1 January 2017
1 January 2017
1 January 2017

1 January 2017
1 January 2017
1 January 2017

Effective date
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       3.2   Investments
    3.2.1   Category of investments
   Investments in bank deposits and debt instruments held for less than one year are classified as short-term 
investments. The investments held for more than one year are classified as long-term investments.
               Investments in private funds considered as long-term investment fund is divided into two funds. 
The SEC has hired the asset management company that has been licensed by the SEC to manage these private funds.  
The funds are independently managed by the selected private fund managers to invest in marketable securities of both 
debt and equity instruments and in alternative investments.
  
    3.2.2   Valuation for investments
   Investments in held-to-maturity debt securities are measured at amortized cost.
   The SEC private funds invest in marketable securities of both debt and equity instruments and in 
alternative investments which are classified as available-for-sale on the statement of financial position, and measured 
at fair value. The fair value of marketable equity instruments is based on the closed price on the Stock Exchange of 
Thailand (SET) as at the date of financial position statement. 
                        Changes in the carrying amount of the available-for-sale securities are recognized as gain or loss on 
changes in value of available-for-sale investments and presented under other comprehensive  revenues and expenses 
on the statement of comprehensive revenues and expenses. 
   Gains (losses) from foreign exchange translation of investments in monetary items were recognized 
in the statement of comprehensive revenues and expenses. The gains (losses) arising from foreign exchange translation 
of the investments in securities of non-monetary items, such as investments in equity instruments classified as available 
for sale, are recognized under other comprehensive revenues and expenses in the statement of comprehensive 
revenues and expenses.
   Cost of investments in debt and equity securities sold is calculated using the weighted average method. 
Gains or losses on disposal of investments are recognized in the statement of comprehensive revenues and expenses.

        3.3   Property, plant and equipment
     Land is stated at cost. Plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated 
impairment losses (if any). 
     The costs include expenditures that are attributable to the acquisition of the assets. The cost of self-built 
asset comprises the cost of materials, direct labor and any costs directly attributable to bringing the assets to a working 
condition for their intended use. Software that controls the equipment and is integral to the functionality of the related 
equipment shall be capitalized as part of equipment.
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     Parts of an item of property, plant and equipment having different consumption patterns or useful lives are 
recognized separately.
                 The gains or losses on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment are the difference between 
the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the assets at the date of disposal and are recognized on a net 
basis as revenues or expenses in the statement of comprehensive revenues and expenses. 
     Subsequent costs due to replacements are recognized as a part of the carrying amount of property, plant 
and equipment if it is probable that SEC will obtain the future economic benefits associated with the replacements 
and the cost of the asset can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognized. 
Costs of the day-to-day maintenance of property, plant and equipment are expensed as incurred.
     Depreciation is allocated using the straight-line method, except for computer equipment that uses sum 
of the year digits method, over their estimated useful lives as follows:

                 Land and assets under construction are not depreciated.
     Depreciation method, the useful lives and residual values are reviewed at least at the end of each financial 
year and adjusted if appropriate.

         3.4  Intangible assets
                 Intangible assets include costs that are directly attributable to system development and licensed software 
products controlled by the SEC and are expected to generate future economic benefits beyond one year. They are stated 
at cost less accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses (if any). Cost of intangible assets comprises 
the purchase price and other directly attributable costs necessary to prepare the assets to be capable to operating 
as intended. The amortization amount is allocated using the straight-line method over their estimated useful lives as 
follows:

Asset Class               The Useful Life
Office building and buildings    5 - 35   years
Building renovation            5   years
Furniture and fixtures       5 - 10   years
Office equipment       5 - 10   years
Vehicles and equipment                          6   years

Asset Class              The Useful Life
Licensed software fee                       10    years
System development costs             5    years
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        3.5    Impairment of assets
     The carrying amounts of assets are reviewed when there is any indication of impairment in value of the asset. 
If such indication exists, SEC shall estimate the recoverable amount of the asset. 
     An impairment losses are recognized if the carrying amount of an asset or its cash-generating  unit exceeds 
its recoverable amount. The impairment loss is recognized in the statement of comprehensive revenues and expenses, 
unless it reverses a previous revaluation credited to equity, in which case it is charged to equity.  
     When a decline in the fair value of an available-for-sale financial asset has been recognized directly in equity 
and  there  is  objective evidence that the values of  the assets are impaired, the cumulative losses that had been 
recognized directly in equity is recognized in the statement of comprehensive revenues and expenses. The amount 
of the cumulative loss that is recognized in the statement of comprehensive revenues and expenses is the difference 
between the acquisition cost and current fair value, less any impairment loss on that financial asset previously 
recognized in the statement of comprehensive revenues and expenses.

        3.6   Employee benefits
    The SEC provides contributions to the provident fund for the post-employment benefits and other long-term 
employee benefits to which the employees are entitled as follows:    
                (a)  Post-employment benefit (Defined contribution plan)
          The SEC has established and registered a master fund, namely “Registered Provident Fund of the 
Securities and Exchange Commission” registered under Provident Fund Act B.E.1987 since August 9, 1993. The Fund's 
investment policy has 10 options for members. Employees contribute 3 - 15 percent of their base salaries while the 
SEC contributes 10 percent to the provident fund. The provident fund has been managed by investment professional. 
Contributions from the SEC are recognized as an expense in the statement of comprehensive revenues and expenses 
in each accounting period as incurred.
                (b)  Post-employment benefit (Defined benefit plan)
          The SEC’s obligations concerning post employment benefits under “Defined benefit plan” and other 
long-term employee benefits are recognized in the financial statements based on calculations performed annually 
by a qualified actuary using the projected unit credit method. 
                      Obligations are recognized in each year as an expense in the statement of comprehensive revenues and 
expenses. Actuarial gains and losses are recognized immediately under other comprehensive revenues and expenses 
in the statement of comprehensive revenues and expenses. 
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       3.7   Revenue recognition
               Major revenues of the SEC and revenue recognition are as follows:
                      3.7.1   Fee income 
                                 -   Application fees: Revenue is recognized when application form and fee are received by the SEC.
                                 -   Registration fees: 30 percent of the minimum fee requirement for registration is recognized 
when the SEC received registration statement together with the fee, and the remaining balance will be recognized 
when the registration statement becomes effective. The registration fee which is paid annually in proportion to the 
shareholders’ equity is recognized on an accrual basis. 
                                 -   License fees and business undertaking fees: Such revenues are recognized according to accrual basis.
                                 -   Other fees: Revenue is recognized when request form and fee are received by the SEC.
                      3.7.2   Contribution from the SET Under the SEA, for the purpose of facilitating the operation of the SEC 
at the rate specified by the SEC, is recognized on an accrual basis.
          3.7.3   Investment income or other income
                                 -   Interest income is recognized using the effective interest method in accordance with the 
proportion of the period.
                                 -   Dividend income is recognized when the SEC’s right to receive payments is established.
                                 -   Other income is recognized on an accrual basis.

       3.8   Expenses recognition
               Expenses are recognized on an accrual basis.

        3.9   Financial risk management
               To  manage investment  risk,  the  SEC  has  a  policy  to  specify  its  investment  proportion  at a risk level 
of VaR        = 3 percent (a probability of less than 5 percent to have a loss more than 3 percent) and expected 
returns not lower than inflation rate. At least 60 percent of the portfolio is to be invested in low risk assets comprising 
local and foreign bank deposits and debt securities with no currency exchange risk while the remaining portion can be 
invested in high risk assets comprising local and foreign bank deposits, debt securities, equity securities, property funds, 
infrastructure funds, commodities funds and real estate investment trusts.

α 0.05
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       3.10   Operating leases
     Expenditures under operating leases are recognized in the statement of comprehensive revenues or expenses 
on a straight line basis over the lease term. Potential rents that must be paid during the remaining period of the lease 
under criteria set out in the rental agreement must be included in the calculation of the minimum lease payments.
         
       3.11   The fair value
                The SEC uses the market approach to measure their assets and liabilities that are required to be measured 
at fair value by relevant financial reporting standards, except that the cost approach or income approach is used when 
there is no active market or a quoted market price is not available.
     Fair value hierarchy
     In applying the above-mentioned valuation techniques, the SEC maximizes the use of relevant observable 
inputs in accordance with Financial Reporting Standard No.13 “Fair Value Measurement”. This standard establishes 
a fair value hierarchy that categorizes inputs into three levels as follows:
     Level 1    Use of quoted market prices in an observable active market for such assets or liabilities 
     Level 2    Use of other observable inputs for such assets or liabilities, whether directly or indirectly
     Level 3    Use of unobservable inputs such as the SEC’s estimates of future cash flows

4.   Supplementary Information
 
       4.1   Cash and cash equivalents

 
Cash, check in transit and petty cash  
Bank deposits 
Bonds and treasury  
Total

       4.2  Short-term investments

Fixed deposits (due date within 1 year)   
Short-term bonds 
Total 

2016
0.62

72.37
79.78

152.77 

2016
   215.00
    204.10

419.10

2015
0.42

41.36
90.73

  132.51

 
2015

215.00
    34.87
  249.87

Unit: Million Baht

Unit: Million Baht



       4.3   Accrued revenues
                                                                                                                                           Unit: Million Baht
                                                                                                                            
Interest income from saving and fixed deposits
Interest income from BOT bonds
Contribution from the SET
Business undertaking fee
Annual registration statements fee
Interest income from Fixed deposits with Government Housing Bank and Others
Total
    
       4.4  Other current assets
                                                                                                                                           Unit: Million Baht
 
Prepaid expenses
Value added tax pending receipt of tax invoice
Advances
Receivable - The Revenue Department
Office supplies
Miscellaneous receivables
Total

       4.5  Long-term investments      
                                                                                                                                           Unit: Million Baht
 
Managed by private fund managers
       - Current and saving deposits
       - Fixed deposits
       - Receivables from the sale of securities
       - Investment in debt and equity instruments and alternative investments
       - Accrued interest and dividend
Total

                                                                                   

2015
1.30
0.20

101.78
353.63

0.93
0.94

458.78

2016
2.95
0.53

136.61
385.05

1.03
    0.81
526.98

2015
7.07
2.70
2.21

          -
0.23
0.14

12.35

2015

3.48
235.00
10.77

4,462.73
    30.25

4,742.23

2016
12.30
2.91
1.66
0.44
0.28
0.41

18.00

2016

9.64
115.00
56.94

4,878.91
    25.89
5,086.38
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Investment in debt and equity instruments and alternative investments
                                                                                            Unit: Million Baht
                                                                                                       2016                           2015
                                                                            
       Debt instruments
       Equity instruments
       Alternative investments

Accrued interest from debt instruments
Accrued dividend from equity instruments
 
                Alternative investments are investments in property funds, infrastructure funds, commodities funds and 
real estate investment trust.

Debt instruments consisted of:
                                                                                                                               Unit: Million Baht

Available-for-sale securities
       Bonds
       Debentures
       Promissory notes and other debt instruments
Total

       4.6   Fair value measurement of financial instrument
               The SEC had the following financial assets that were disclosed at fair value using different levels of inputs 
as at December 31, 2016, as follows:
                                                                                                                                                       Unit: Million Baht 

Investments in available-for-sale securities 
 Debt instruments
 Equity instruments
 Alternative investments

  Cost
3,853.04

726.21
   228.43
4,807.68

25.53
0.36

  Cost
3,506.20

771.73
   135.41
4,413.34

27.42
1.16

Fair value
3,870.99

736.00
   271.92
4,878.91

25.53
0.36

Fair value
3,573.44

741.74
   147.55
4,462.73

27.42
1.16

2015

1,762.85
   1,764.30

    46.29
3,573.44

   2016

1,883.86
   1,876.04
    111.09
3,870.99

  Level 2

3,870.99
0.69

            -

Total

3,870.99
736.00
271.92

Level 1

-
735.31
271.92
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              The valuation and inputs for Level 2 valuation
                    1. The fair value of Thai baht and foreign bonds were determined based on market price in Thai Bond 
Market Association (Thai BMA) and market interest rate in Bloomberg.
                    2. The fair value of derivatives (Swap and Forward Contracts) were determined based on the price 
calculated by counterparty banks. The reference price can be observed in Bloomberg. (Swap Rate, Interest Rate, 
Exchange Rate, etc.) 
                    During the year, there were no transfers within the fair value hierarchy.

        4.7  Property, plant and equipment
                                                                                                                    Unit: Million Baht
                                                                            Balance                               Balance
                                                                                         
Property, plant and equipment (Cost)
Land
Office building and building
Leasehold improvement
Furniture and fixture 
Office equipment
Vehicles and equipment
CIP – Leasehold improvement
CIP - Computer equipment 
Total

Less   Accumulated depreciation
               Office building and building
               Leasehold improvement
               Furniture and fixture 
               Office equipment 
               Vehicles and equipment
Total
Property, plant and equipment
Depreciation

as at Dec 31,2015

136.75
824.91

0.08
62.12

414.31
23.14
      -
      -

1,461.31

     Decrease

-
-
-
-

(13.06)
(13.20)

-
    -

(26.26)

Increase

     -
          -
          -

0.86
20.86

          -
0.24

  1.79
23.75

as at Dec 31,2016

136.75
824.91

0.08
62.98

422.11
9.94
0.24

   1.79
1,458.80

     (66.42)
(0.03)

   (27.75)
   (235.92)
     (18.40)
    (348.52)

1,112.79
84.91

             -
        -
        -
13.05

  11.81
 24.86

   (23.94)
   (0.02)
   (9.08)

   (52.31)
  (0.37)
 (85.72)

   (90.36)
(0.05)

   (36.83)
   (275.18)
     (6.96)

    (409.38)
1,049.42

85.72
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                The SEC on September 9, 2010 obtained legal ownership of the land and building in the amount of 690 million baht. 
The building was renovated and decorated to be a new office building of the SEC. Such building has been using since 
July 2, 2013.
     The gross values of the property, plant and equipment that are fully depreciated but still in use are 44.25 million baht 
and 8.25 million baht as at the end of 2016 and 2015, respectively.

     4.8  Intangible assets
                                                                                                                   Unit: Million Baht
                                                                      Balance                               Balance                  
 
Intangible assets
Licensed software
System development
CIP-Licensed software
CIP-System development
Total
Less     Accumulated amortization
                 Licensed software
                 System development
Total
Intangible assets
Amortization

  as at Dec 31,2015

96.28
9.17

22.45
   0.19
128.09

   (56.65)
   (7.60)

   (64.25)
63.84
9.05

    Decrease  
                      

-
                      -
            (32.25)
                      -
            (32.25)

             -
                      -
                      -
           (32.25)

Increase

         41.02
                  -   

         15.13
                  -   

         56.15

        (10.89)
          (0.42)
        (11.31)
         44.84

as at Dec 31,2016

137.30
9.17
5.33

   0.19
151.99

 
(67.54)

   (8.02)
   (75.56)

76.43
11.31
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      4.9  Employee benefit obligations 
                                                                                                                   Unit: Million Baht
 
Changes in present value of employee benefit obligations during period
Present value of obligations at the beginning of year
Recognition of transitional obligations 
Less Benefits paid
Current service cost
Interest cost
Obligations at the end of year
     

                                                                                                                                           Unit: Million Baht 
     
 
 
 
 
 

 2015

276.14
37.49
(1.49)
19.33
13.44

344.91

2016

344.91
          -

(0.71)
20.22
14.80

379.22

 2015
37.49
19.33
13.44
70.26

4.3%
3.0%

5-12%
6.0%

 2016
     -   
20.22
14.80
35.02

4.3%
3.0%

5-12%
6.0%

       Amount recognized on statement of comprehensive of revenues and expenses for the year ended December 
31, 2016 and 2015 
 
Recognition of transitional obligations
Current service cost
Interest cost
Total
Actuarial assumptions
       Discount rate
       Inflation rate
       Salary increase rate
       Medical inflation rate
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Impact of medical inflation rate decrease or increase by 1 percent on the obligation under medical benefit plan for 2016
                                                                                                                                           Unit: Million Baht
                                                                                                                               Medical inflation rate
 
Components of cost and medical benefit plan obligations 
       Current service cost
       Interest cost  
Total
Less Benefits paid
Balance
 
       4.10  Reserve 
                 Minister of Finance has approved the SEC’s reserve under SEA section 26 according to the Minister of Finance 
Letter No. 1007/21406 dated December 7, 2011 and No. 1007/19634 dated November 21, 2013. The rules for 
reserves are as follows:
     1.  Special reserve for capital market development is to set aside as priority before other reserves in the amount 
equal to net amount of revenues to the Capital Market Development Fund consisting of the income from investment for 
the capital market development, administrative fine of Derivatives Act and the Trust for Transactions in Capital Market Act, 
less Capital market development expenses such as financial literacy programs for individuals through various media, etc. 
The set aside amount must not exceed the SEC’s profit in each year.
     2.  Special purpose reserves are as follow
          2.1  Reserve for a permanent office building is to be set aside after special reserve for capital market 
development. In accordance with the SEC board’s resolution at the Meeting No.7/2012 dated July 5, 2012, the SEC board 
increased amount of the reserve from 850 million baht to 1,254.70 million baht. It was fully reserved as at the end of 2014.
          2.2  Reserve for a permanent parking building is to set aside after reserve for a permanent office building until 
the full amount of 500 million baht is reserved. It was fully reserved as at the end of 2015.
     3.  General reserve is the last type of reserve to be set aside from the remaining profit (revenues over expenses) 
after special reserve for capital market development and special purpose reserves until the full amount of 4,107 million baht 
is reserved. 

7%

            26.95
            19.41
            46.36
            (0.71)
            45.65

5%

            14.35
            10.96
            25.31
           (0.71)
          24.60
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                If the set aside amount has reached the amount approved by the Minister of Finance, the remaining revenue 
shall be sent to the Government under SEA section 27. And such rules for reserves was effective since the reserve of 
the financial result of the year 2012. Types of reserve are as follows:
                    
                   4.10.1 Special reserve for capital market development
                                                                                                                                           Unit: Million Baht
                                                                                      
Beginning balance
Add Additional allocation
Total
                  
                    4.10.2 Reserve for a permanent parking building  
                                                                                                                               Unit: Million Baht
           
Beginning balance
Add Additional allocation
Total
   
                    4.10.3 General reserve  
                                                                                                                                           Unit: Million Baht
 
Beginning balance
Add Additional allocation
Total

               General reserve amounting to 3,156.23 million baht includes the set aside amount of 1,901.53 million baht. 
(Minister of Finance has approved the SEC’s general reserve allocated from revenue over expenses until the full 
amount of 4,107 million baht is reserved.) Due to office building payment, the reserve for a permanent office building 
for an amount of 1,254.70 million baht was transferred to general reserve. 

 2016
1,510.10
       6.03
1,516.13

 2015
1,447.82
      62.28
1,510.10

 2016
500.00

    -   
500.00

 2015
271.21
228.79
500.00

 2016
2,878.57
   277.66
3,156.23

 2015
2,765.56

113.01
2,878.57



      4.11  Other components of funds
                                                                                                                                           Unit: Million Baht
 
Beginning balance
Add Gain on revaluation of available-for-sale securities 
       Gain on foreign exchange
Less Loss on revaluation of available-for-sale securities
Ending balance
 
               

   
      4.12  Revenues
                    4.12.1  Fee income 
                                                                                                                                           Unit: Million Baht
 
Annual fees from
       Securities businesses
       Asset management businesses
       Listed companies
       Limited brokerage, dealing and underwriting of 
       investment units (LBDU) businesses
       Others
Total
Other fees
Total

                   

 2016
49.40
21.83
3.35

            -  
           74.58

 2015
73.95

           -   
           -   

(24.55)
49.40

 2016

285.45
139.66
96.97
12.55

  38.00
572.63
238.64
811.27

 2015

262.94
142.83
88.02
5.78

  38.00
537.57
298.25
835.82

                 Other components of fund balances in the amount of 74.58 million baht were differences arising from value 

changes between carrying amount and fair value of investments in private funds and value change from foreign exchange 

transaction of investments in non-monetary securities in accordance with the SEC accounting policy in note 3.2
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               4.12.2  Investment incomes
                                                                                                                                           Unit: Million Baht
 
Income from investment in funds managed by private fund managers
       Interest income
       Dividend income
       Gain (Loss) on sale of investments
Total
Income from investments (internally managed)
Total
Less Income from investment for capital market development   
Balance

       
        
              4.12.3  Contribution from the Stock Exchange of Thailand
                                                                                                                                           Unit: Million Baht 

Contribution collected based on
Trading value
Listed company’s shareholder equities
Fixed rate
Total

      4.13 Human resources expenses
                                                                                                                                           Unit: Million Baht
      
Expenses for executives
Expenses for officers and employees
Total
  

 2016

104.23
38.78
74.59

217.60
  5.01 
222.61
(64.44)
158.17

 2015

115.51
26.77

(34.70)
107.58
   5.54

113.12
(34.78)
78.34

 2016

512.65
21.80

    2.00
536.45

 2015

430.62
23.08

    2.00
455.70

 2016
      66.01
     722.92
    788.93

 2015
79.04

     711.44
    790.48

1Income from investment for capital market development balance excluded gain on exchange rate on sale of overseas 
investment in the amount of 3.57 million baht in 2016.

1
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      4.14   SEC Board and sub-committees remuneration
                                                                                                                                           Unit: Million Baht
     
Committees/Sub-committee benefits for executives
Committees/Sub-committee benefits for commissioners 
Total
     
      4.15   Revenues and expenses for capital market development
                                                                                                                                           Unit: Million Baht

Revenues for capital market development
       Income from investment for capital market development
       Administrative fines
Expenses for capital market development
       Financial literacy, investor education and other activities
Total

      4.16   Commitments and contingent liabilities
     The SEC office and/or the SEC Board and/or Capital Market Supervisory Board were named in three pending 
administrative cases with claims amounting to 210.37 million baht as follows:
                1.  The first case involves the allegedly unlawful denial of the plaintiff’s name from listing on the publicly 
traded companies’ executive list, maintained by the SEC Office with a 50 million baht claim. Such denial is based on 
the SEC Office’s opinion that the plaintiff possesses prohibited characteristics as specified by the SEC Notification. 
The case was dismissed by the Central Administrative Court and now under the Supreme Administrative Court’s 
consideration.
                2.  The second case, with a 159.89 million baht claim, involves the allegedly unlawful revocation of the 
SEC-approved auditor status. The case was dismissed by the Central Administrative Court and now under the Supreme 
Administrative Court’s consideration.
                3.  The third case, with a 0.48 million baht claim, involves the alleged negligence to properly supervise 
the complaint on the price of warrants to purchase shares of listed companies being significantly reduced. The case 
was dismissed by the Central Administrative Court and now under the Supreme Administrative Court’s consideration.

 

 2016
              2.39

    19.14
      21.53

 2015
2.35

     17.92
    20.27

 2016

              68.01
0.52

(18.35)
 50.18

 2015

34.78
           -   

(28.75)
 6.03



Unit: Million Baht
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        Nevertheless, due to the fact that the SEC Office and/or the SEC Board and/or Capital Market Supervisory Board 
have carried out their duties with prudence and care, strictly observing the established legal framework, on an equitable 
basis and not acting inconsistently with the law, they are confident that it is very likely that their cases will be successfully 
defended without any damages required to be paid. Therefore, the SEC has not recognized any Provision in the financial 
statements.

        4.17  Reclassifications
     The comparative information presented in these financial statements. For the year ended December 31, 2015 
have been reclassified certain items in order to compare the financial statements. For the year ended December 31, 2016, 
with no impact on the statement of financial position and statements of comprehensive revenues and expenses are 
reported on.  
                Reclassification as follows:

                                                                                                                                     
Statement of Financial Position as at December 31,2015
Current assets
        Short-term investments
Non-current assets
        Long-term investments
        Other non-current assets
Statement of Comprehensive of Revenues and Expenses 
for the Year Ended December 31, 2015 
Revenues
        Deposit interest income
        Other income
Expenses
        Human resources expenses
        SEC Board and sub-committees remuneration

        4.18 Approval of financial statements
                Secretary-General of the SEC approved the financial statements on February 20, 2017.
 

 Reclassification

    
(4,856.69)

      4,742.23
        114.46

          (1.98)
            1.98

          79.04
         (79.04)

After       
reclassification

         249.87

      4,742.23
         114.93

            3.07
            4.75

         790.48
           20.27

Before      
reclassification

      5,106.56

                  - 
           0.47

           5.05
           2.77

        711.44
          99.31
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Financial Highlights

        The SEC's revenues consist of fee income collected 
from securities businesses and listed companies, subsidies 
from the Stock Exchange of Thailand and investment income. 
In 2016, total revenues amounted to 1,592 million baht 
while total expenses were 1,124 million baht. Revenues 
exceeded expenses by a net amount of 468 million baht 
since the basis for fee income and subsidies from the Stock 
Exchange were based on higher market trading volume 
in 2016 than prior years. Average daily trading volume 
was 52,526 million baht and even surpassed 130,000 
million baht on the busiest day. Returns from the SEC's 
private fund portfolio also increased in tandem with better 
market conditions. Total expenses, however, remained quite 
steady compared to the previous year. Expenses were
markedly below forecasts since staff recruitment only 
achieved 55% of positions sought due to delays in the migration 
of staff from the Agricultural Futures Trading Commission 
to the SEC from mid 2016 to November 2016. Expenses 
were also below predition with some programs being 
postponed to 2017 such as FinancialConsumer Education, 
Savings for Retirement, and FinTech Challenge Program.
        Staff wages and operating costs remained a predominant 
part of total expenses. Capital market development included 
spending on the ASEAN CG Scorecard project to lift the 
ASEAN market's appeal and acceptance on the world stage
by bringing listed companies' corporate governance to 

        

international standards. Other projects involved assessment 
of the quality of Annual General Shareholders’ Meetings (AGM) 
meetings, promotion of sound financial reporting ecosystem, 
financial audit quality control scheme, and collaboration 
with international regulatory bodies. We also extended 
assistance for capital market development to neighboring 
countries. FinTech and sustainable value creation through 
good corporate governance were other notable projects. 
Overall total expenses in 2016 were relatively similar to 2015.
        The SEC’s operating assets comprised property,
building, and equipment totaling 1,049 million baht. A budget 
of 500 million baht has been reserved for a permanent 
parking building for visitors and SEC staff.
        Budget forecast for 2017 includes an estimate total 
revenues at 1,430 million baht and total expenses at 1,550 
million baht, notably with fee revisions to be implemented in 2017. 
Revisions to annual fees collected from securities and asset 
management companies will cause fee revenues to drop 
by 77 million baht and 61 million baht, respectively. The 
expected deficit in 2017 will stem from postponement of 
project implementation from 2016 to 2017. Preparations 
for Financial Technology (FinTech) and other such projects 
make budgeted expenses for 2017 higher than usual.
        In summary, solid financial standing enables the SEC 
to roll out various programs, with adequate reserves 
to support its operations over the longer term.
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The Global Economy

     The global economy grew by 3.1%* in 2016, a slightly 
slower pace than the year before. The major economies 
did not achieve the forecasted growth rates while the 
emerging markets slowed down as well in the first half.  
Furthermore, the volatility of the China market, multi-year 
low in oil prices, concerns over the stability of European 
banks, and the Brexit referendum impacted the money 
and capital markets, putting sentiment on edge. Better 
economic performance in developed economies in the 
second half, particularly the US, brought strength and 
near full employment to prompt a Fed rate hike by 0.25% 
in December 2016, their second increase since December 
2015. The newly elected US president also started on 
a strong note with promises to give priority to US industries 
and national interests, infrastructure spending, tax cuts, 
and business legislative reforms, raising enthusiasm for 
the economic outlook and lifting the S&P Index above 2,000 
points. The USD strengthened and bond yields rose worldwide.
         The International Monetary Fund (IMF) believes the 
global economy can achieve higher growth of 3.4% in 2017, 
underpinned by US growth and recovery in the Emerging 
Markets, particularly India, Russia and Brazil. Oil-producing 
countries should also benefit from improvement in oil prices.
However, global political and policy instability may dampen 
global growth expectations. The United Kingdom’s withdrawal 
from the European Union could possibly turn into a disruptive 
Hard Brexit. General elections will take place in three major   
 
Note: *Preliminary figures for 2016. (IMF World Economic Outlook, update January 2017)

European powers (Netherlands, France, and Germany) 
and the US’s policy direction under its new president can all 
have a bearing on global trade and investment. With rising 
inflation and interest rates, emerging markets will experience 
greater shifts in fund flows and currency volatility, particularly 
the relatively fragile countries with high debts or large foreign 
or short-term debt exposure

Economic Growth in 2016 and Forecast for 2017

Source: World Economic Outlook, IMF (January 2017) and 

Office of the National Economic and Social Development Board 

(January 2017).
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The Thai Economy
  
       Thai economy expanded by 3.2% in 2016, faster than 
the 2.9% growth recorded in the prior year. Consumer 
spending spurred by government stimulus measures, low 
oil prices, and a vibrant tourism sector drove growth despite 
the export sector affected by trading partners’ economic 
slump as well as structural changes in international trade.
       Economic stability remained satisfactory with low inflation 
and current accounts strengthening from continued trade 
surpluses. Thailand’s net capital flows of 24.8 billion baht  
were characterized by investment outflows by Foreign 
Investment Funds (FIF) as well as outbound direct investments 
by Thai businesses. At the end of 2016, the Thai baht 
was 35.82 to the US dollar, appreciating marginally by 0.71% 
over the preceding year.

Notes:   National Economic and Social Development Board’s Quarterly GDP Report Q4/2016.

             Preliminary figures for 2016.  Bank of Thailand’s Economic and Monetary Conditions Report, December 2016.
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       The National Economic and Social Development Board 
expect the Thai economy to achieve 3.0-4.0% growth in 
2017, similar pace to last year. Growth is expected from 
export recovery, expansion of agricultural output, government 
investment through mass infrastructure spending, mid-year 
supplementary budget to stimulate industrial output, private 
investment and household spending, and tourism. Inflation 
will inevitably rise to 1.2-2.2% in 2017, from 0.2% in 2016, 
as oil and global product prices inch upwards. However, 
external factors, particularly trade protectionism and uncertain 
global political and policy shifts will be present as threats 
to economic growth.
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Equity offerings  

Type of Offerings
Initial public offerings  
Secondary public offerings** (SPO)
Total

** Source: the Stock Exchange of Thailand (excluding stock dividend)

Real Estate Investment Trusts (REITs)

Type of Offerings
Initial public offerings
Public offerings
Total

Debt securities offerings  

Type of Offerings
Domestic offerings
  By Thai juristic persons
       Short-term debt securities
              Public offerings
              Institutions / High net worth  investors
              Private placements
       Long-term debt securities
              Public offerings
              Institutions / High net worth investors
              Private placements

Note:   * Last update as of the making of this report

              p = preliminary data

2014
57,636

166,880
224,516

2015
38,771

113,462
152,233

2016p
32,488

191,594
224,082

2014
3,496,768
2,642,205
2,063,398

57,187
1,372,558
    633,653

578,807
159,393

  369,411
   50,003

2015
2,746,751
2,713,634
2,147,923

37,690
1,389,366

720,866
565,711
127,755
357,447
80,509

2016p
3,093,499
3,065,412
2,275,865

37,648
1,547,071

691,146
789,547
89,035

590,633
109,879

Unit: Million Baht

Unit: Million Baht

Unit: Million Baht

2015
9,711
5,752

15,463

2014
27,226

-
27,226

2016
20,169

3,163
23,332
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Debt securities offerings  

Type of Offerings
  By foreign juristic persons
      Short-term debt securities
            Public offerings
            Institutions / High net worth investors
            Private placements
      Long-term debt securities
            Public offerings
            Institutions / High net worth investors
            Private placements
  Overseas offerings
Total

p = preliminary data

Government debt securities offerings classified by types of securities

Types of Securities
Domestic offerings
      Government bonds
      Treasury bills
      Promissory notes
      State enterprise bonds*
      BOT bonds and FIDF bonds
Oversea offerings 
Total

Source: Bank of Thailand
Note:    *Excluding debentures issued by state enterprises that are limited companies.
p = preliminary data              
 

2014
   854,563
    842,973

-
    842,973

-
      11,590

-
      11,590

-
  147,422
3,644,190

2015
33,117
1,577

-
716
861

31,540
-

31,540
-

52,293
2,799,044

2016p
28,087

15
-
-

15
28,072

-
28,072

-
63,217

3,156,716

2014
6,311,984

534,995
833,657
133,810
132,070

4,677,452
-

6,311,984

2015
7,120,643

615,918
996,402
69,014

122,004
5,317,305

-
7,120,643

2016p
8,600,630

577,460
305,000
83,632

105,866
7,528,672

-
8,600,630

Unit: Million Baht

Unit: Million Baht
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Asset management businesses
 
Types of Funds
 

Mutual funds
Property funds
Real Estate Investment Trusts
Infrastructure funds
Private funds
Provident funds

Number of mutual funds and net asset values   classified by investment policy

Investment Policies

1. Local investment funds
       A. Local funds
            (1) Equity funds
            (2) Fixed income funds
            (3) Mixed funds
            (4) Other funds
       B. Country funds
            (1) Equity funds
2. Foreign investment funds
       A. Totally invested overseas 
            (1) Equity funds
            (2) Fixed income funds
            (3) Mixed funds
            (4) Other funds

 

No. of
 Funds
1,428

105
4
3

3,100
418

No. of
 Funds

491
489
205
171
102

8
2
2

937
519
159
225
55
80

NAV      
(Million Baht)

3,259,868
396,006
27,601

 143,362
488,107
837,075

No. of 
Funds
1,329

79
8
5

3,602
412

NAV      
(Million Baht)

3,469,168
368,954
43,660

 221,532
630,084
883,493

No. of 
Funds
1,394

76
12
6

3,829
401

NAV      
(Million Baht)

4,036,681
372,330
69,368

 236,666
767,440
973,273

2014                            2015                          2016

NAV      
(Million Baht)

987,108 
986,480 
476,312 
412,266 
85,783 
12,119 

628 
628 

2,272,760 
828,528 
104,433 
587,359 
57,076 
49,660 

 

No. of
 Funds

485
485
224
142
111

8
2
2

842
551
224
174
65
88

NAV      
(Million Baht)

1,051,298 
1,050,796 

472,283 
487,703 
80,035 
10,775 

502 
502 

2,417,870 
859,493 
221,682 
483,824 
105,740 
48,247 

 

No. of
 Funds

491
489
243
135
101
10
2
2

884
590
236
196
78
80

NAV      
(Million Baht)

1,151,543 
1,150,943 

537,391 
519,799 
79,877 
13,876 

600 
600 

3,605,738 
1,039,339 

192,976 
612,856 
188,955 
44,551 

   2014                          2015                            2016

1/

2/
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Number of mutual funds and net asset values   classified by investment policy

Investment Policies

     B. Partially invested overseas 
            (1) Equity funds
            (2) Fixed income funds
            (3) Mixed funds
            (4) Other funds
Total

Notes:   Excluding mutual funds being liquidated and Thai Trust Fund.
             Funds with a policy to invest overseas, as an average in an accounting year or as at a particular time, not less 
             than 80 percent of NAV.
             Funds with a policy to invest overseas, as an average in an accounting year or as at a particular time, less than 
             80 percent of NAV.

Number of property funds and net asset values* classified by investment policy

Investment Policies

1.Property funds for individual investor
      A. Specific fund
      B. Non-specific fund
2. Property funds for resolving financial
      institutions problems (Type II Fund)
3. Mutual funds for resolving financial 
      institutions problems (Type III Fund)
4. Property and loan funds (Type IV Fund)
Total 
  
Note:  * Excluding mutual funds being liquidated

No. of
 Funds

418
21

315
67
15

1,428

NAV      
(Million Baht)

1,444,232
22,332

1,061,083
353,148

7,669
3,259,868

 

No. of
 Funds

291
22

174
79
16

1,329

NAV      
(Million Baht)

1,558,378
23,102

1,240,393
278,764
16,119

3,469,168
 
 

No. of
 Funds

313
31

183
86
13

1,394

NAV      
(Million Baht)

1,845,800
50,081

1,345,458
429,118
21,144

4,036,681

 2014                          2015                            2016

NAV      
(Million Baht) 

279,036
276,976

2,060
26,432

5,477

85,061
396,006

NAV      
(Million Baht) 

279,727
277,881

1,846
19,258

-

73,345
372,330

2014                          2015                            2016

No. of
 Funds

52
59
2

14

6

33
105

No. of
 Funds

52
50
2
7

-

20
79

NAV      
(Million Baht) 

282,414
280,412

2,002
18,015

-

68,525
368,954

No. of
 Funds

50
48
2
6

-

20
76

3/

1/

2/

3/

1/
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Issuance and offering of derivative warrants (DW) 

Total

Note: New issue only

Provident fund status 

NAV (million baht)
No. of funds
No. of employers
No. of employees
 

Investment of provident funds

Investment Types

Cash and bank deposits
Government bonds, treasury bills and debt 
       instruments guaranteed by the Ministry 
       of Finance
Bills of exchange and promissory notes
Debentures
Common share, preferred shares and warrants
Investment units
Others
Liabilities
Net Asset Value

 

Value     
(Million Baht)

205,727
203,321

10,476
255,635
132,460
77,385
5,196

(6,707)
883,493

% NAV

23.29
23.01

1.19
28.93
14.99
8.76
0.59

(0.76)
100.00

Value      
(Million Baht) 

172,576
235,660

10,706
298,032
169,039
95,671
6,716

(6,127)
973,273

% NAV

17.73
24.21

1.10
30.62
16.44
9.83
0.69

(0.63)
100.00

Value     
(Million Baht)

(33,151)
32,339

230
42,397
27,579
18,286
1,520
(580)

89,780

% NAV

(16.11)
15.91

2.20
16.58
20.82
23.63
29.26
(8.65)
10.16

2015                          2016                            Change  

        Unit: Issue

2015
1,598

2014
1,373

2016
1,929

2016
973,273

401
16,405

2,905,800

2015
883,493

412
15,496

2,780,189

Change (%)
10.16  
-2.67  
5.87  
4.52  
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Provident funds with employee’s choice policy  

No. of master funds 
No. of participating employers 

Tender offers for business takeover

Tender Offers
For business takeovers
      Tender offer value (million baht)
      Acquired share value (million baht) 
      No. of cases
For delisting
      Tender offer value (million baht)
      Acquired share value (million baht) 
      No. of cases
Total
      Tender offer value (million baht)
      Acquired share value (million baht) 
      No. of cases

Tender offer waivers                                                                                 

Types of Waivers
Granted waivers
      (1)   No changes of control 
      (2)   Rehabilitation 
      (3)   Granted approval from shareholders’ meetings        
             (whitewash resolution)
      (4)   Necessary and appropriate
      (5)   Partial tender offer
Waivers of procedures or methods for making 
tender offers

Note:  *A waiver was granted to one case in Q4/2015, adding to the nine cases granted earlier during the year.

Unit: Case

2016
168

7,950

2015
162

6,151

% Change   
3.70    

29.25    

2015

49,847
42,507

8

4,153
3,401

1

54,000
45,908

9

2014

320,779
5,846

10

5,238
4,392

3

326,016
10,238

13

2016

140,310
89,293

16

3,731
2,872

3

144,041
92,165

19

2015
15 
10*

2 
2 
 

- 
1 
1 

2014
9
4
1
4

-
-
1

2016
19
16

-
2

-
1
3
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Actions against related party transactions and acquisition and disposal of assets 

Actions

Related party transaction and acquisition 
       and disposal of assets proposed for 
       approval at shareholders’ meetings 
Ordered rectifications  
Released investor alerts  
Ordered rectifications, transactions 
       postponed or cancelled

Rectification orders categorized by issues 

Relevant Accounting Standards
Auditor expressed a qualified opinion due to audit limitation 
       imposed by the management, or the financial statements
       were inconsistent with financial reporting standards 
Auditor did not express an opinion due to audit limitation 
       imposed by the management 
Under record liabilities
Property, plant and equipment (transfer of the revaluation 
       surplus not complying with the applicable accounting 
       standards)

Action on approved person

Types of Approved Person

Auditor

No. of   
Companies

59

12
5
2

Value 
(Million
 Baht) 

284,392 

26,359 
3,919 
2,822 

 

No. of   
Companies

45 

19 
6 
2 

Value  
(Million 

Baht) 
164,690 

94,533 
33,940 
23,940 

 

No. of   
Companies

54

31
6
4

Value 
(Million 

Baht) 
523,956 

92,259 
24,655 
7,134 

2014                               2015                                2016  

 Unit: Company

Unit: Person

2015
2

2

-
1

Sanction
Public Reprimand

1

2014
1

2

1
-

Misconduct

Breach of duty

2016
1

2

-
-
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Approval of securities licenses, derivatives licenses and trustee license in 2016

Types of Licenses
1.   A - All types of securities business 
2.   B - Brokerage, dealing and underwriting of debt securities investment advisory service + 
      securities borrowing and lending                        
3.   C - Mutual fund management + private fund management + investment advisory service +
      venture capital management + brokerage, dealing and underwriting of investment units
4.   D - Brokerage, dealing and underwriting of investment units 
5.   Sor-1 – All categories of derivatives businesses
6.   Derivatives advisory service
7.   Derivatives fund management
8.   Trustee license
9.   Agricultural derivative license 
Total

Activations of securities businesses, derivatives businesses and trustee businesses in 2016
 
Types of Businesses
Securities borrowing and lending business (only principal) 
Mutual fund management 
Private fund management 
Securities brokerage, dealing and underwriting of investment units 
Investment advisor 
Derivatives advisory service 
Derivatives brokerage
Derivatives fund management 
Securities brokerage of debt securities
Agricultural derivatives brokerage 
Trustee license

Note:  Excluding companies that request cancellation of old licenses and apply for a new one while operating business 
          continuously.

     Unit: Company

No. of Approval
1
2

2

5
2
1
1
1
1

16

No. of Activation
1
1
4
7
1
1
1
2
2
1
1
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Securities, derivatives and trustee business operators   

Types of Businesses
Securities businesses

Asset management 
businesses

Derivatives businesses

Trustee businesses

- Securities brokers
- Securities dealers
- Securities underwriters
- Investment advisors
- Securities borrowing and lending
- Inter-dealer brokers
- Securities financing
- Full branches 
- Cyber branches
- Mutual fund management
- Private fund management 
- Private fund management (provident fund)
- Brokers, dealers and underwriters limited    
  to investment units
- Venture capital management 
- Full branches
- Derivatives agents
- Derivatives fund managers
- Derivatives investment advisor
- Derivatives agent (Institutional investor)
- Derivatives dealers (Institutional investors)
- Derivatives agents (Agricultural)
- REIT managers
- Real Estate Investment Trust trustee
- Sukuk trustee
- Trustee of private equity trust 
- Trustee of infrastructure trust

2015
38
35
38
40
30
4
1

536
13
24
33
17
33

2
8

41
17
1
1

48
1

10
6
1
3
3

2014
36
33
37
38
28
2
1

514
12
23
33
18
33

2
4

40
15
1
1

45
-
5
6
-
-
-

2016
38
35
39
41
30
4
1

513
14
24
37
17
40

2
8

42
19
1
1

48
2

14
7
1
3
3
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Securities, derivatives and trustee business operators   

Types of Businesses
Other businesses

Note: Excluding companies whose operation was temporarily suspended.

Number of securities companies

Types of Businesses
Securities company
Asset management company
Investment advisory business 
Investment unit brokerage 
Total

2015
13
14
13
11
1
4
2

16

2014
13
14
13
11
1
4
2

16

2016
13
14
13
12
1
4
2

16

2015
42
24
11
3

80

2014
40
24
9
2

75

2016
41
27
10
5

83

- Mutual fund supervisors
- Custodians
- NAV verifiers of provident funds
- Marketing representative of private fund
- Marketing representative of derivatives fund 
- Fund rating agencies
- Credit rating agencies  
- Securities registrars
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Approval of personnel in securities and derivatives businesses

Types

Directors and executives
Investment analyst consultants
Investment consultants
Investment planners
Fund managers

Number of active personnel in securities and derivatives businesses
 
Types

Directors and executives*
Investment analyst consultants
Investment consultants
Investment planners
Fund managers

Note:  *Directors of securities businesses may concurrently hold the same position at other securities companies 
           (cross directorship).

Unit: Position

Approval

2015
1,361
1,246

54,973
3,277

683

2014
1,303
1,234

44,434
3,356

646

2016
1,378
1,301

65,779
2,631

711

Approval of independent professionals 

Types

Financial advisors (company) 
Financial advisor supervisors (person) 
Auditors (person)   

Note:  *Including foreign auditors 1 person.

   
New

4  
43  
27* 

   
Renewal

  12   
 12   

    39   

Total of Approved
Independent    
Professionals   

As of End of 2016
 73

380
197*

Unit: Position

Active

2015
1,354

719
46,143
3,088

449

2014
1,316

716
39,204
3,230

479

2016
1,370

733
65,701

2,294
426

Approval



Public complaints

Types of Complaints
1.   Unfair securities trading activities (market manipulation,   
      false news, insider trading)
2.   Unlicensed business
      2.1  Unlicensed securities and derivatives businesses
      2.2  Unlicensed investment advisory service
3.   Investment consultants’ misconduct
4.   Other complaints
Total

Investigations classified by types of offences

Types of Offences
Unfair securities trading activities
      -Dissemination of false news
      -Market manipulation
      -Insider trading
Corporate frauds or malpractices committed by executives of listed companies/issuing 
      companies and falsification of documents or accounts
Unlicensed securities/derivatives businesses
Failure to report securities holding and tender offer/other offences
Total

2015
18

58
45
13
29

488
593

Number of Cases

8
36
33
12

10
7

106

2014
41

34
25
9

25
294
394

2016
21

20
12
8

28
622
691

143
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Administrative sanctions and others in 2016

       The SEC sanctioned 44 offenders, including thirty-three investment consultants/analysts, seven securities company 
executives/securities and finance company/authorized persons/branch manager, two financial advisors and two financial 
advisor supervisors, with details as follows:

Types of Approved
       Persons

Investment
Consultant/
Investment
Analyst

      

Sanctions

Revocation

13 
4 

- 
 

- 

- 

- 

- 
 

- 
 

- 

1 
3 

Suspension

- 
- 

12 

1 

1 

1 

4 

1 

1 

- 
- 

Public   
Reprimand

- 
- 

- 

- 

- 

- 

- 

- 

- 

- 
- 

                Misconducts

Breach of professional conducts
1. Dishonest acts
     1.1   Fraud/embezzlement
     1.2   Using client’s trading account to trade securities 
             for himself or another person
     1.3   Exploiting investors’ benefit by taking advantage 
             of their work position
2.  Unprofessional acts
      2.1  Giving inappropriate advice for customer profile 
             and failing to explain to investors fund investment 
             and associated risks 
      2.2  Giving advice in non-compliance with professional 
             standards and without references supporting 
             document
      2.3  Giving material information incompletely which 
             resulted in a possible impact on investors’ interest
      2.4  Accepting authorization to make securities 
             trading decisions for clients
      2.5  Performing duties beyond the scope assigned 
             by securities company 
      2.6  Interfering with clients’ asset
3.  Unfair trading activities
      3.1  Principal in market manipulation
Disclosure or dissemination of false information or 
false documents to the SEC Office



Types of Approved
        Persons

Securities Company 
Executive/ Asset 
Management 
Company/Authorized 
Persons/Branch Manager
 

Financial Advisor
Financial Advisor 
Supervisor
Total

Note:    1. Some offenders may committed more than one offense.
            2. As some of the offenders failed to comply with several regulations, the number of offenders, therefore, is less than 
                the number of offenses.
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Sanctions

Revocation

1

-

3

-
-
-

25

Suspension

-  

1 

-  

3  
2  
2  

29  

Public   
Reprimand

-  

-  

-  

-  
-  
-  

-  

                     Misconducts

Breach of duty or failure to serve with integrity 
1.  Commanding subordinates to commit an 
     offense
2.  Using an incorrect judgment to solve problems 
     in a fraudulent case
Unfair trading activities or exploitation of investor 
     through trading of capital market product
Negligent inspection on operation
Improper performance of duty
Improper performance of duty
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Legal actions taken under the Securities and Exchange Act B.E. 2535 (1992)

Types of Offences

Securities business
       - Unlicensed securities business 
       - Securities brokerage
       - Investment advisory
       - Securities company failed to prepare and 
         submit financial information and operating 
         performance in accordance with the SEC 
         regulations
       - Executive of issuing company punished due 
         to the company’s failure to operate business 
         in accordance with the SEC regulations
Total
Asset management business
       - Mutual fund
Total
Unfair securities trading activities
       - Market manipulation
       - Dissemination of false news
       - Insider trading
Total
Takeover
Total

     No. of
Persons

- 
10 
1 
2 

1 

14 

6 
6 

7 
3 

15 
25 
5 
5 

No. of
Persons

17
- 
- 
- 

- 

17

-
-

16
-
3

19
3
3

Fine (Baht)

- 
8,015,437.50

130,000.00
441,000.00

 

80,000.00
 

8,666,437.50

4,523,400.00
4,523,400.00

21,057,969.50
1,500,000.00

41,441,042.80
63,999,012.30

459,332.00
459,332.00

SettlementCriminal Complaint
1

2 2
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Legal actions taken under the Securities and Exchange Act B.E. 2535 (1992)

Types of Offences

Securities issuance and offering
      - Issuers failed to prepare and submit financial information 
        and operating performance in accordance with the SEC 
        regulations
      - Executives of issuing companies were punished due to the 
        companies’ failure to prepare and submit financial information 
        and operating performance in accordance with the SEC 
        regulations
      - Issuers failed to report or disclose additional information 
        in accordance with the SEC Office’s mandate
      - Executives of issuing companies were punished due to the 
        companies’ failure to report or disclose additional information 
        in accordance with the SEC Office’s mandate
      - Executives of issuing companies failed to report changes 
        to their securities holding in accordance with the SEC 
        regulations
      - Issuers offered debentures without approval
Total
Misconduct committed by issuing company executives
      - Fraud 
      - Breach of duty
Total
Grand Total

Note:    1.  The table shows only the information related to the offenders consenting to, and fully paying for, the fines     
                 imposed by the Criminal Fining Committee pursuant to the Securities and Exchange Act B.E. 2535 (1992).
 2. In 2016, the Criminal Fining Committee ordered nine offenders involved in market manipulation activities to pay    
                 the total collective fine of 447,263,780.45 baht. However, the offenders failed to pay for the fine; thus, the SEC 
                 filed a criminal complaint against the offenders with the Department of Special Investigation for further legal   
                 proceedings.

   No. of  
Persons

20 

20 

1 

9 

2 

- 
52 

- 
1 
1 

103 

No. of  
Persons

15 

20 

- 

- 

- 

4 
39 

3 
- 
3 
81

Fine (Baht)

2,126,490.00

1,795,050.00

168,600.00

843,600.00

192,000.00

-
5,125,740.00

-
5,560,000.00
5,560,000.00

88,333,921.80

1SettlementCriminal Complaint
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Criminal complaints filed in 2016 under the Derivatives Act B.E. 2546 

Type of Offences

Operating derivatives business
        - Acting as derivatives agent
Total

Court judgments on 9 cases in 2016

1. Three cases on embezzlement of listed company’s executives

                       Offences
1.1  Mr. Wichai Chaisathaporn, former
Chairman and President of Nippon Pack 
(Thailand) Public Company Limited (“NIPPON”)
incharge of the company’s operation and asset 
management, had falsified documents for 
securities purchasing orders to deceive 
NIPPON into paying for such fictitious 
purchases in the total amount of 37.7 
million baht and misappropriated such amount
of money for his own benefit. In addition,
in the name of NIPPON, he applied for a loan 
from a financial institution by issuing short-term 
bill of exchange in return and then took the 
money for himself, causing the company 20 
million baht of damage. (The criminal complaint 
was filed on April 29, 2011).

No. of Persons

2  
2  

No. of persons

-  
-  

 

 

              Sections
281/2  in conjunction with
Section 89/7 307, 308, 
311, 312 and 313 of the SEA

Fine (Baht)

402,000.00
402,000.00

 

                      Judgements 
On October 26, 2016, the Criminal Court ruled 
against Mr. Wichai as he had committed 
the several distinct and different offences.
The Court inflicted the punishment prescribed 
for each offence as follows:
(1) seven counts of dishonest acts and failure 
to discharge his duty as director with due 
care and integrity, liable to 5-year imprisonment  
for each case, totaling 35-year imprisonment;
(2) being a director who acted to obtain 
unlawful gains from the company’s loan, 
liable to 5-year imprisonment;
(3) being a director who made incomplete or 
incorrect accounts to deceive juristic persons 
or shareholders into losing benefits that 
should have been received from securities 
investments in a non-existent company, liable 
to 5-year imprisonment;

 

Criminal Complaint                   Administrative Fines



Legal actions taken under the Securities and Exchange Act B.E. 2535 (1992)

Types of Offences

Securities issuance and offering
      - Issuers failed to prepare and submit financial information 
        and operating performance in accordance with the SEC 
        regulations
      - Executives of issuing companies were punished due to the 
        companies’ failure to prepare and submit financial information 
        and operating performance in accordance with the SEC 
        regulations
      - Issuers failed to report or disclose additional information 
        in accordance with the SEC Office’s mandate
      - Executives of issuing companies were punished due to the 
        companies’ failure to report or disclose additional information 
        in accordance with the SEC Office’s mandate
      - Executives of issuing companies failed to report changes 
        to their securities holding in accordance with the SEC 
        regulations
      - Issuers offered debentures without approval
Total
Misconduct committed by issuing company executives
      - Fraud 
      - Breach of duty
Total
Grand Total

Note:    1.  The table shows only the information related to the offenders consenting to, and fully paying for, the fines     
                 imposed by the Criminal Fining Committee pursuant to the Securities and Exchange Act B.E. 2535 (1992).
 2. In 2016, the Criminal Fining Committee ordered nine offenders involved in market manipulation activities to pay    
                 the total collective fine of 447,263,780.45 baht. However, the offenders failed to pay for the fine; thus, the SEC 
                 filed a criminal complaint against the offenders with the Department of Special Investigation for further legal   
                 proceedings.
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                                 Offences 

1.2  Mr. Shisiro Fukuda (the first defendant), 
a former President of DAIDOMON Group 
Public Company Limited (“DAIDO”), and 
Mr. Pisan Jaraslertrangsi (the second defendant), 
a former Vice President-finance and accounting, 
for falsifiled documents regarding sale 
promotion money received from Coke and 
accounting records in the DAIDO financial 
statements for the year 2002, making such 
financial statements more financially viable and 
operating, and Ms. Natchaporn (or Kanchanok) 
Likitsirisap (the third defendant), former Vice 
President–project management, falsified 
documents and accounts regarding purchasing 
of furniture accessories from Budget 
Management and Design Co., Ltd., and New 
Tique Co., Ltd., falsified documents and 
accounting records in the DAIDO financial 
statements for the first and second quarters 
of 2003 and thus misled shareholders and 
investors about DAIDO’s true financial 
condition.

              Sections

312 of the SEA

                      Judgements   
(4) being a director who failed to record 
important information in an account to deceive 
juristic person or shareholder into losing 
benefits that should have been received, 
liable to 5-year imprisonment. 
Since Mr. Wichai pleaded guilty, the Court 
reduced the punishments by half for 10 counts, 
resulting in an imprisonment of two year and 
six months for each count, totaling 20-year 
and 60-month imprisonment. However, 
since the maximum punishment for the most 
severe count exceeded three years, but up to 
10 year and the total punishment of all counts 
must not exceed 20 years, the defendant 
was liable to a total 20-year imprisonment.
On August 16, 2016, the Appeal Court ruled 
against the judgment of the Criminal Court 
that sentenced the defendants
From:
  - Mr. Fukuda, 12-year and 66-month 
imprisonment and a fine of 1,507,500 baht;
  - Mr.  P isan, 10-year and 54-month 
imprisonment and a fine of 1,256,000 baht;
  - Ms. Natchaporn (or Kanchanok) Likitsirisap, 
10-year and 54-month imprisonment and 
a fine of 1,256,000 baht
To: 15-year and 6-month imprisonment on 
Shisiro, 12-year and 6-month imprisonment 
on Pisan, and 13-year imprisonment on 
Ms. Natchaporn without suspending the sentence. 
(The case is under the consideration of the 
Supreme Court).
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Offences
1.3 During 2004 – 2005, {A}, Chairman 
and Chief Executive Officer, and {B}, former 

Deputy Managing Director-finance 
and accounting of {X1} Public 

Company Limited , committed fraud and 
sought unlawful gains for themselves or others, 
causing {X1} to suffer losses from the 

purchase of shares worth 45 million baht and 
committed or allowed misconducts to be 
committed on the company’s accounts 
and documents.

2. One case on unlicensed derivatives businesses

Offences
Mr. Kanok Juntarachot, Director of K.N.O. 
Marketing Co., Ltd. operated derivatives 
business without license or registration with 
the SEC in violation of the Derivatives Act 
B.E. 2546 (2003). (The complaint was filed 
on December 17, 2012). 

 Sections
307 308 311 of the SEA 

Judgements
On December 22, 2016, the Appeal Court 
affirmed the verdict of the Criminal Court that 
sentenced the defendant 10-year and 
8-month imprisonment without suspending
the sentence.

 Sections
Section 16 of Derivatives 
Act of 2003

Judgements
On August 9, 2016, the Bangkok South 
Criminal Court sentenced Mr. Kanok to a two-year 
imprisonment and a fine of 10,000 baht. 
As the defendant confessed, the penalty was 
reduced by half to a one year imprisonment 
and a fine of 5,000 baht. The jail term was 
suspended for two years. The defendant 
was required to report to probation officer 
eight times in two years and put in 48 hours 
of  social or public services.
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3. Five cases on listed companies' failure to submit financial statements and operating performance in accordance 
with the SEC notification. (All cases reached the final judgment.)

                        Offences
3.1 The financial statements for 2014, annual 
registration statement for 2013 (Form 56-1), 
and annual report for 2013 (Form 56-2). 
An executive responsible for the company’s 
operation was also liable to the penalty. 
(The criminal complaint was filed on September 
15, 2015.)

3.2 The financial statements for Q1, Q2 and 
Q3/2015. An executive responsible for the 
company’s operation was also liable to the 
penalty. (The criminal complaint was filed 
on December 8, 2015.)

3.3 The financial statements for 2014, the 
financial statements for Q1 Q2 and Q3/2015. 
An executive responsible for the company’s 
operation was also liable to the penalty. 
(The criminal complaint was filed on December 
24, 2015.)

              Sections
-  the company violated 
Sect ion 56 and 199 in 
conjunction with Section 56 
of the SEA.
- the execut ive violated 
Section 300 of the SEA.

                      Judgements
On March 23, 2016, the Criminal Court 
ordered both defendants to pay a fine of 
323,250 baht each and a further fine of 
750 baht for everyday during which the 
contravention continued.

On July 12, 2016, the Criminal Court ordered 
both defendants to pay a fine of 261,000 baht 
each and a further fine of 750 baht for everyday 
during which the contravention continued. 

On March 2, 2016, the Criminal Court ordered 
both defendants to pay a fine of 548,000 baht 
each and a further fine of 500 baht for everyday 
during which the contravention continued. 
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                        Offences
3.4 The financial statements for 2014, the 
financial statements for Q1 Q2 and Q3/2015. 
An executive responsible for the company’s 
operation was also liable to the penalty. (The 
criminal complaint was filed on January 26, 
2016.)

3.5 The financial statements for 2014, annual 
registration statement for 2014 (Form 56-1), 
the financial statement for Q1/2015. An 
executive responsible for the company’s 
operation was also liable to the penalty. 
(The criminal complaint was filed on July 27, 
2016.)

              Sections                       Judgements
On March 2, 2016, the Criminal Court ordered 
both defendants to pay a fine of 563,000 baht 
each and a further fine of 500 baht for everyday 
during which the contravention continued.

On October 7, 2016, the Criminal Court 
ordered both defendants to pay a fine of 
1,181,250 baht each.



2015
1,288.02

9,997,371
41,141
76.49

12,282,754
517

1,665
22.57
1.74
3.36

2014
1,497.67

10,193,179
41,605
80.41

13,856,283
502

1,592
17.81
2.13
2.94

2016
1,542.94

12,259,772
50,245
89.61

15,079,272
522

1,838
18.55
1.96
3.04
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Statistical highlights of the Stock Exchange of Thailand (SET)

SET Index 
Total trading value (million baht)
Average daily trading value (million baht)
Turnover ratio (%) 
Market capitalization    (million baht) 
No. of listed companies 
No. of listed securities 
P/E ratio (times) 
P/BV ratio (times) 
Dividend yield (%) 

Source:    The Stock Exchange of Thailand
Notes:      At the end of period
                Turnover ratio      =

 
 

 

trading value

 average market capitalization

x100

/1 

/1

/1

/1

/1

/1

/1

/1

/2

/2



2015

79,054
-6,417
81,708

-154,345
19,994,742
2,010,083
1,977,564

11,263,801
4,743,294

100.00
10.1
9.9

56.3
23.7

2014

71,424
3,581

-38,421
-36,584

20,386,358
1,944,010
1,925,982

12,049,002
4,467,364

100.00
9.5
9.5

59.1
21.9

2016

-8,657
25,372

-94,642.36
77,927.17

24,519,546
2,556,522
2,693,339

12,749,862
6,519,823

100.00
10.4

11
52

26.6
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1/

1/

2/

2/

3/

3/

buying value + selling value

total market buying and selling value
x100

Trading values of the SET 

Net buying value 
        Local institutional investors
        Proprietary trading
        Local non-institutional investors
        Foreign investors
Buying and selling value  
        Local institutional investors
        Proprietary trading
        Local non-institutional investors
        Foreign investors
Percentage of buying and selling value (%) 
        Local institutional investors
        Proprietary trading
        Local non-institutional investors
        Foreign investors

Source:   Stock Exchange of Thailand
Notes:        Net buying value  =  buying value - selling value
                  Buying and selling value  =  buying value + selling value
                  Percentage of buying and selling value  =

  



2015
522.62

768,097
3,161

217.42
323,478

122
167

52.94
3.29
1.00

2014
700.05

946,112
3,862

337.63
383,075

111
150

69.63
5.64
0.87

2016
616.27

556,487
2,281

148.63
425,364

134
178

63.27
3.86
1.24
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1/

1/

1/

1/

1/

1/

1/

1/

2/

2/

Statistical highlights of the Market for Alternative Investment (mai)

mai Index
Total trading value (million baht)
Average daily trading value (million baht)
Turnover ratio (%) 
Market capitalization (million baht)  
No. of listed companies 
No. of listed securities 
P/E ratio (times) 
P/BV ratio (times) 
Dividend yield (%) 

Source:     Stock Exchange of Thailand
Notes:       At the end of period
                 Turnover ratio      =

 

trading value

 average market capitalization

x100



2015

3,078
20

-1,813
-1,285

1,536,195
11,377
3,976

1,484,879
35,963
100.00

0.7
0.3

96.7
2.3

2014

-1,814
20

906
888

1,892,224
7,169
7,359

1,834,252
43,444
100.00

0.4
0.4

96.9
2.3

2016

8,789
4

-9,412
619

1,112,974
31,730
2,034

1,043,536
35,674
100.00

2.8
0.2

93.8
3.2
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1/

2/

3/

1/

2/

3/

Trading values of the mai 

Net buying value 
        Local institutional investors
        Proprietary trading
        Local non-institutional investors
        Foreign investors
Buying and selling value 
        Local institutional investors
        Proprietary trading
        Local non-institutional investors
        Foreign investors
Percentage of buying and selling value (%)
        Local institutional investors
        Proprietary trading
        Local non-institutional investors
        Foreign investors

Source:    The Stock Exchange of Thailand
Notes:      Net buying value   =   buying value - selling value                  
                Buying and selling value   =   buying value + selling value
                Percentage of buying and selling value   =  

 

buying value + selling value

total market buying and selling value
x100



2015
257.43

2.88
214.37

2.86
19,653,835
18,826,665

807,686
19,484
80,880
203.58
259.55
34.94
21.67

10,023,042
7,518,399
2,416,169

88,474
3,029

582
2,409

38

2014
244.94

3.18
204.39

3.38
18,867,218
18,238,424

592,560
36,234
77,009
206.43
260.91
28.97
34.86

9,287,288
6,988,684
2,207,230

91,374
2,879

622
2,218

39

2016p
261.55

3.01
219.74

2.85
22,409,446
21,330,597
1,056,864

21,984
91,842
214.55
275.36
40.43
26.12

10,886,721
7,974,604
2,812,272

79,845
3,296

548
2,715

33
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Statistical highlights of the Thai bond market

Government Bond Total Return Index 
Average Government Bond Yield (%) 
Investment Grade Corp. Bond Total Return Index 
Average Investment Grade Corp. Bond Yield (%) 
Total trading value  (million baht) 
      Government debt securities
      Corporate debt securities 
      Foreign bonds
Average daily trading value (million baht) 
Turnover ratio (%) 
      Government debt securities
      Corporate debt securities 
      Foreign bonds
Outstanding value of registered securities (million baht) 
      Government debt securities
      Corporate debt securities 
      Foreign bonds
No. of registered securities 
      Government debt securities
      Corporate debt securities 
      Foreign bonds

3/

3/

2/

2/

1/

1/

1/

1/

1/

1/



trading value

    average outstanding
x100

2015
100.00
26.07
73.93
2.64

47.81
2.78
4.74
7.28
0.33
8.35

2014
100.00
28.80
71.19
2.58

43.68
3.29
4.67
9.46
0.21
7.32

2016p
100.00
20.68
79.32
2.96

60.15
3.57
7.97

13.69
0.18

11.48

158

Statistical highlights of the Thai bond market

Percentage of trading value (%)
       Inter-dealers
       Dealers-to-clients
             Non-dealer license financial institutions
             Mutual funds
             Insurance companies
             Domestic companies
             Foreign companies
             Retail investors 
             Others

Source:    The Thai Bond Market Association
Notes:       At the end of period
                 Only outright trading value
                 Turnover Ratio  =   

              
              p = preliminary data

1/

2/

3/



2015

288,560
110,142

5,624
1,264

615,012
81,103

18,328
6,015

-
-

384
107

  13,584
1,118

-
-

2014

177,704
58,790

3,543
444

704,176
80,100

19,819
6,293

-
-

449
133

12,496
1,265

-
-

2016

283,692
131,939

13,582
1,757

1,589,464
138,634

24,958
11,901

-
-

-
78

8,180
835

-
-
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Statistical highlights of the Thailand Futures Exchange (TFEX)

SET50 Index Futures
Open interest *
Average daily trading volume
SET50 Index Options
Open interest *
Average daily trading volume
Single Stock Futures 
Open interest *
Average daily trading volume
Metal Futures
Open interest *
Average daily trading volume
Interest Rate Futures 
Open interest *
Average daily trading volume
Brent Crude Oil Futures 
Open interest *
Average daily trading volume
USD Futures 
Open interest *
Average daily trading volume
Sector Index Futures 
Open interest *
Average daily trading volume

Source: Thailand Futures Exchange Plc.
Note:   * At the end of period.

Unit: Contract



long volume + short volume

total trading volume
x100

2015
97,077,798
33,797,596
52,045,981
11,234,221

100.00
34.82
53.61
11.57

2014
72,042,300
25,916,251
39,769,129
6,356,920

100.00
35.98
55.20
8.82

2016
139,152,328
51,217,625
73,439,335
14,495,368

100.00
36.81
52.78
10.41
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Trading volumes of TFEX 

Trading volume (long and short) 
       Local institutional investors
       Local non-institutional investors
       Foreign investors
Percentage of trading volume (%) 
       Local institutional investors
       Local non-institutional investors
       Foreign investors

Source:     Thailand Futures Exchange Plc.
Notes:       Trading volume  =  long volume + short volume
                 Percentage of trading volume    =  

 

1/

1/

2/

2/

Unit: Contract



Sub-committees
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1.  Sub-committee on Consideration of Regulations on Issuance and Offering of Equity 
     Instruments and Governance of Securities Issuing Companies
      (1)    To consider and give advice on: 
              (a)   
              (b)   
                    
              (c)    
      (2)    To perform other duties as assigned by the Capital Market Supervisory Board.

      Comprises:
      (1)   
      (2)  
      (3)   
         
      (4)                       
          
      (5)   
      (6)   
      (7)      
      (8) 
      (9)   
      (10)  
      (11)        
                                                       

Chairman
Member
Member

Member
 
Member 
Member
Member
Member
Member
Member
Member and Secretary

Appointed on February 26, 2016 to serve a term from February 26, 2016 to February 25, 2018.

Ms. Saranya Chindavanig
Representative from the Stock Exchange of Thailand 
Representative from the Thai Company Secretary Club,
the Thai Listed Companies Association
Representative from the Investment Banking Club,                      
the Association of Thai Securities Companies 
Representative from the Association of Investment 
Representative from the Thai Investors Association 
Representative from the Thai Institute of Directors Association    
Ms. Kobboon Srichai 
Mr. Chatwut Tanchanpongs
Mr. Susheel Narula
SEC director of the department       
in charge of the supervision of equity,                                        
hybrid instruments, and warrants, 
or SEC director of the department 
in charge of governance of securities 
issuing companies, as the case maybe 

Issuance of regulations on issuance and offering of equity instruments;
Issuance of regulations on governance of securities issuing companies under Division 3/1 of the Securities
and Exchange Act B.E. 2535;
Issuance of other regulations attached and related to (a) or (b);
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2.  Sub-committee on Consideration of Regulations on Issuance and Offering of Debt 
     Securities, Derivatives and Structured Products
       (1)   To consider and give advice on issuance of regulations governing issuance and offering of debt securities, sukuk, 
               derivatives or derivatives-embedded instruments and structured products and other related regulations; 
       (2)    To perform other duties as assigned by the Capital Market Supervisory Board.

       Comprises:
       (1)  
       (2)   
       (3)  
        
       (4)   
       (5)   
      
       (6)  
       (7)  
       (8)  
       (9)   
       
       (10)                                                   
                                         
       (11)                                          
                                                  
       (12) 
   

Ms. Pornanong Budsaratragoon
Representative from the Thai Listed Companies Association 
Representative from the Investment Banking Club, 
the Thai Listed Companies Association
Representative from the Thai Bond Market Association
Representative from the Stock Exchange of Thailand
(in case of derivatives or structured products only)
Mr. Ekachai Chongvisal
Mr. Yingyong Nilasena
Mr. Arsa Indaravijaya 
Mr. Bhudinan Sethanandha
(in case of derivatives or structured products only)
Mr. Konthee Prasertwongse
(in case of sukuk only)                                  
Mr. Sakares Khamwalee                            
(in case of sukuk only)        
SEC director of the department
in charge of the supervision of 
debt securities, sukuk, derivatives or 
derivatives-embedded instruments and 
structured products

Chairman
Member
Member

Member
Member
 
Member
Member
Member
Member

Member

Member

Member and Secretary

Appointed on February 26, 2016 to serve a term from February 26, 2016 to February 25, 2018.    
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Chairman
Member
Member

Member
 
Member
Member

Member

Member

Member
Member
Member and Secretary

Appointed on February 26, 2016 to serve a term from February 26, 2016 to February 25, 2018. 

3.  Sub-committee on Consideration of Regulations on Property Funds, Infrastructure 
     Funds and Real Estate Investment Trusts 
       (1)    To consider and give advice on: 
               (a)  Issuance of regulations on the establishment and management of property funds and infrastructure funds; 
               (b)  Issuance of regulations on real estate investment trusts;
               (c)  Issuance of other regulations attached and related to (a) or (b);
       (2)    To perform other duties as assigned by the Capital Market Supervisory Board.

       Comprises:
       (1)      
       (2)    
       (3)       
                  
       (4)   
  
       (5)    
       (6)   
         
       (7)            
         
       (8)                            
       
       (9)                                                                                
       (10)                                                                                    
       (11)  

Mr. Ekachai Chongvisal        
Representative from the Stock Exchange of Thailand 
Representative from the Investment Banking Club,    
the Association of Thai Securities Companies            
Representative from the Association of Investment 
Management Companies
Representative from the Thai Investors Association  
Representative from the Custodian Club 
selected from mutual fund supervisors 
Representative from the State Enterprise Policy Office
(in case of infrastructure funds only)
Representative from the Thai Real Estate Association                            
(in case of property funds or real estate investment trusts)
Ms. Suchada Pavananunt                                                  
Mr. Pairat Monthapan                                                                                       
SEC director of the department 
in charge of the supervision of property funds,
infrastructure funds, real estate investment trusts
including financial instruments to invest in 
property funds, infrastructure funds 
and real estate investment trusts  
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Chairman
Member
Member

Member
 
Member
Member
Member
Member and Secretary

4.  Sub-committee on Consideration of Regulations on Asset Management
       (1)    To consider and give advice on: 
               (a) 
                    
   (b)   
                   
               (c)  
               (d)  
       (2)    To perform other duties as assigned by the Capital Market Supervisory Board.

       Comprises:
       (1)  
       (2)  
       (3)  
       
       (4)  
    
       (5)   
       (6)     
       (7)           
       (8)

Appointed on February 26, 2016 to serve a term from February 26, 2016 to February 25, 2018.   

Mr. Ekachai Chongvisal   
Representative from the Government Pension Fund 
Representative from the Association of Invesment  
Management Companies
Representative from the Custodian Club
selected from mutual fund supervisors
Representative from CFA Society of Thailand    
Ms. Pornanong Budsaratragoon    
Ms. Chotika Sawananon           
SEC director of the department 
in charge of the establishment of 
mutual funds and the supervision of 
mutual fund management and 
private fund management

Issuance of regulations on the establishment and management of mutual funds excluding property funds 
and infrastructure funds; 
Issuance of regulations on the establishment and management of private funds including provident funds 
and derivatives fund management;
Development on the issuance of investment products;
Issuance of other regulations attached and related to (a) (b) or (c);
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Chairman
Member

Member
Member
 
Member

Member
Member
Member
Member
Member and Secretary

Ms. Pornanong Budsaratragoon    
Representative from the Stock Exchange of Thailand  
and affiliated companies
Representative from the Association of Thai Securities Companies 
Representative from the Association of Investment      
Management Companies
Representative from the Thai Bond Market Association     
(in case of relavant matter only)
Ms. Saranya Chindavanig    
Mr. Kengkla Ruckphaopunt  
Ms. Chotika Sawananon                      
Mr. Somjin Sornpaisarn  
SEC director of the department  
in charge of supervision of licensing and
securities and derivatives business operators
or SEC director of the department
in charge of supervision of securities exchange,
derivatives exchange, clearing house, 
securities depository or SEC director of the department
in charge of promoting SME Businesses,
as the case maybe

To consider and give advice on issuance of regulations and other matters related to supervision of securities 
and derivatives business operators, securities exchange, bond exchange, over-the-counter centers, derivatives 
exchange, clearing house, securities depository and related business operators as well as securities-related 
agencies, derivatives businesses and promotion of SME businesses including other regulations attached and 
related to such case;
To perform other duties as assigned by the Capital Market Supervisory Board.

5.  Sub-committee on Consideration of Regulations on Supervision of Business and 
     Market intermidiaries
       (1)

       (2)

       Comprises:
       (1)
       (2)

       (3)
       (4)

       (5)

       (6)
       (7)
       (8)
       (9)
       (10)

Appointed on February 26, 2016 to serve a term from February 26, 2016 to February 25, 2018          
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Chairman
Member
Member

Member
 
Member
Member
Member
Member and Secretary

6.  Sub-committee on Consideration of Regulations on Business Takeovers
       (1)   To consider and give advice on the issuance of regulations on business takeovers including other regulations 
               attached and related to such case; 
       (2)   To perform other duties as assigned by the Capital Market Supervisory Board.

       Comprises:
       (1)  
       (2)   
       (3) 
               
       (4)  
        
       (5)    
       (6)       
       (7)   
       (8)  

      
Appointed on February 26, 2016 to serve a term from February 26, 2016 to February 25, 2018.

7.  Sub-committee on Consideration of Regulations on Supervision and Development 
     of Sales Conduct
       (1)   To consider and give advice on:
               (a)  Issuance of regulations on communication with clients and sales conduct; 
   (b)  Issuance of regulations on supervision of sales conduct providers ;
               (c)  Issuance of other regulations attached and related to (a) or (b);
       (2)    To perform other duties as assigned by the Capital Market Supervisory Board.

  
 

Ms. Saranya Chindavanig 
Representative from the Stock Exchange of Thailand 
Representative from the Investment Banking Club, 
the Association of Thai Securities Companies        
Representative from the Association of Investment
Management Companies
Mr. Kengkla Ruckphaopunt  
Ms. Patraporn Milindasuta      
Mr. Suparerk Auychai  
SEC director of the department
in charge of business takeovers
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Chairman
Member
Member

Member
Member

Member

Member

Member

Member

Member
Member and Secretary

       Comprises:
       (1)      
       (2)  
       (3)   
        
       (4)  
       (5)  
       
      
       (6)
       
       
       (7)              
       
       (8)                     
       
       (9)               
       
       (10)        
       (11) 

 

Appointed on February 26, 2016 to serve a term from February 26, 2016 to February 25, 2018.

Ms. Suchada Pavananunt     
Representative from the Association of Thai Securities Companies  
Representative from the Association of Invesment    
Management Companies 
Representative from the Thai Investors Association 
Representative from Bank of Thailand 
(in case of relevant matters governing sales of mutual funds and 
debt securities only)
Representative from the Thai Bankers Associations 
(in case of relevant matters governing sales of mutual funds and 
debt securities only)
Representative from the Office of Insurance Commission               
(in case of relevant matters governing sales of mutual funds only)
Representative from the Thai Life Assurance Association                      
(in case of relevant matters governing sales of mutual funds only)
Representative from Morningstar Research (Thailand) Ltd.                
(in case of relevant matters governing sales of mutual funds only)
Mr. Krisada Sektrakul      
SEC director of the department  
in charge of the supervision and 
development of sales conduct or
SEC director of the department
in charge of sales conduct,
as the case maybe
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Chairman
Member
Member and Secretary

8.  Sub-committee on Business Takeovers (Takeovers Panel)
       (1)   To make decisions on waiver of tender offers for business takeovers, rules on application for tender offers 
               or any other decisions under the regulations on acquisition of securities for business takeovers;
       (2)   To make decisions regarding any action or omission of action that may have an impact on tender offers under 
               the regulations issued by virtue of Section 250/1 of the SEA;
       (3)   To comment or give advice to the Capital Market Supervisory Board and the SEC Office on matters related 
               to acting in concert under Section 246 or 247 and any other matter concerning takeovers;
       (4)   To request any person to provide facts, explanation, advice and opinion or documents in support of takeovers 
               consideration, as deemed necessary. 

       Consisting of five members whom the Secretary-General selected from the Capital Market Supervisory Board- approved 
List to perform duties on consideration of any matter. The selection focuses on relevant knowledge, expertise and 
experience of members constituting a quorum. The selection criteria are as follows:

       (1)   One person from category 1 
       (2)   Three persons from category 2 and/or category 3 
       (3)   One person from category 4

       Comprises:
       Category 1:  Chairman 
       (1)     Khunying Jada Wattanasiritham
       (2)     Prof.Emeritus Khunying Suchada Kiranandana
       (3)     Ms. Pattareeya Benjapolchai

       Category 2:  Financial Experts as Member
       (1)     Mr. Chavalit  Chindavanig
       (2)     Mr. Paiboon Nalinthrangkurn
       (3)     Mr. Varah Sucharitakul
       (4)     Prof. Pornchai Chunhajinda, PhD
       (5)     Assoc. Prof. Kamphol Panyagometh, PhD

    



Chairman
Member

Member

Member

Member 
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       Category 3:  Legal Experts as Member
       (1)    Ms. Kulkanist  Khamsirivatchara
       (2)    Mr. Charin  Satchayan
       (3)    Ms. Pornpinant Asawawattanaporn
       (4)    Ms. Manida  Zinmerman

       Category 4:  SEC Representatives as Member and Secretary
       (1)    SEC director of the department in charge of the supervision of business takeovers
       (2)    SEC director of the department in charge of the development of regulations 

Appointed on February 18, 2015 to serve a term from February 19, 2015 to February 18, 2017.

9.  Legal Sub-committee (Consulting) 
      To consider and give opinions to the SEC Board and the SEC Office on matters as assigned by the SEC Board or 
as requested by the SEC Office, as follows:
       (1)   Legal issues under the SEA, the Derivatives Act and other laws;
       (2)   To examine and give opinions on the draft regulations of the SEC Board;
       (3)   To comment and give recommendation on special assignments.

       Comprises:
       (1)  
       (2)  
                  
       (3) 
     
       (4) 
        
                                                          
       
       (5)

      
       The SEC shall appoint an officer to serve as secretary of the sub-committee and not more than two officers to
serve as assistant secretary. 

Appointed on December 11, 2015 to serve a term from December 1, 2015 to November 30, 2017. 

Mr. Sarawut Benjakul 
Mr. Disatat Hotrakit 
Secretary-General, Office of the Council of State             
Mr. Krisada Chinavicharana 
Director-General, Fiscal Policy Office
Mr. Satorn Topothai (since December 1, 2015 - November 16, 2016) 
Assistant Governor, Bank of Thailand
Mr. Pruettipong Srimachand (since November 17, 2016)                                                      
Assistant Governor, Bank of Thailand
Assistant Secretary-General relevant to legislation, 
The Securities and Exchange Commission
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Chairman
Member

Member

Member

Member

Member

Member

10. Legal Sub-committee (Litigation) 
        To consider and give opinions to the SEC Board and the SEC Office on matters as assigned by the SEC Board or as
requested by the SEC Office, as follows:
        (1)   Criminal proceedings against offenders under the SEA, the Derivatives Act, and other laws as well as acquisition
               for compensation or other benefits under a civil case related to a criminal case, and giving of advice and
               assistance in relation to examination and sufficiency of evidence, conditions and elements of offense, including 
               legal proceedings against the offenders;  
        (2)   Seizure or attachment of assets of persons whose actions appear to be evidence of wrongdoing under the
               SEA and the Derivatives Act;
        (3)   Requisition of criminal court order to prohibit the persons under (2) from leaving the Kingdom and ordering
               of temporary prohibition of such act before the criminal court issues an order. 

        Comprises:
        (1)
        (2)   
                      
        (3) 
            
        (4)                    
           
        (5)

        (6)  
            
                                                            
         
        (7)

        The SEC shall appoint an officer to serve as secretary of the sub-committee and not more than two officers to 
serve as assistant secretary. 

Appointed on December 11, 2015 to serve a term from December 1, 2015 to November 30, 2017. 

Mr. Sarawut Benjakul 
Director-General or Deputy Director-Gerneral   
of Department of Special Investigation as assigned            
Director-General or Deputy Director-General
of Department of Special Litigation as assigned
Pol. Gen. Sutep  Dechrugsa                    
(Advisor (Level 10)), the Royal Thai Police
Mr. Chaiyos Panchabutchai 
Senior Expert Public Prosecutor
Executive Director’s office of Thailand Criminal Law institute
Mr. Satorn Topothai (since December 1, 2015 - November 16, 2016)   
Assistant Governor, Bank of Thailand
Mr. Pruettipong Srimachand (since November 17, 2016)   
Assistant Governor, Bank of Thailand
Assistant Secretary-General relevant to law enforcement, 
The Securities and Exchange Commission
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Chairman
Member
Member

11.  Appellate Sub-committee
       (1)   To make a conclusion on facts and legal issues and propose opinions on appeal cases against the SEC Office’s 
               administrative orders to the SEC Board;
       (2)   To perform other duties as assigned by the SEC Board.

       Comprises:
       (1)    Mr. Yokporn Tantisawetrat 
       (2)    Mr. Nontaphon  Nimsomboon     
       (3)    Assoc. Prof. Suda Wisarutphit
       SEC director of the department in charge of the implementation of the appeals process shall serve as secretary 
of the sub-committee.

Appointed on November 14, 2016 to serve a term from November 3, 2016 to November 2, 2018.
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List of Arbitrators 

       The arbitrators have the power to settle disputes between aggrieved clients and operators of securities business 
or derivatives business or related businesses for breach of contract or non-compliance with the securities law, derivatives 
law or provident fund law.

       Comprises:
       (1)    
       (2)  
       (3)  
       (4)   
       (5)   
       (6)   
       (7)   
       (8)   
       (9)   
       (10) 
       (11) 
       (12) 
       (13) 
       (14)
       (15) 
       (16)  
       (17) 

Serve a term from November 30, 2015 to November 29, 2017.

Assoc. Prof. Kulpatra Sirodom, PhD  
Assoc. Prof. Gasinee Witoonchart
Assoc. Prof. Paiboon Sareewiwatthana, PhD
Mr. Thinawat  Bukhamana
Mr. Tawat Ananthothai
Assoc. Prof. Tithiphan Chuerboonchai
Mr. Patchara Surajaras, PhD
Asst. Prof. Patcharavalai Jayapani, PhD
Mr. Punlop Pisitsungkakarn
Prof. Phijaisakdi Horayangkura 
Ms. Pattera Dilokrungthirapop
Prof. Warapatr Todhanakasem, PhD
Assoc. Prof. Wai  Chamornmarn
Mr. Somjin Sornpaisarn, PhD 
Assoc. Prof. Somjai Phagaphasvivat, PhD
Mr. Suparb Vongkiatkachorn 
Assoc. Prof. Anan Chantara-Opakorn, PhD



The SEC strives to enhance the benefits and

well-being of people through being a trustworthy

and proactive organization, collaborating with

all stakeholders to build a sustainable capital market.
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This 2016 Annual Report is about policies, strategies and performance of the

SEC. We aim to supervise and develop the Thai capital market to become

the essential mechanism driving sustainable economy and determined to perform

that duty with knowledge, responsibilities and governance. This report applies
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